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MNLULLEAITIBRNINIZNEY 0 Tuil 24 funan 2565 e muadnslunad i szguaniydie
W 28 Tufl 25 ww1ew 2565 U3EMATATmNNIAeYRIBIAMENTINT §3ANT LazduIms nndeiAedes was
AARaNdiuS Aoviurnuignaaniurindy 13.89% fioiu >6% Tasumngfiieatasne 55.50% uazfidadiunis
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aansiwanzvinleuien1einistis (FINANCIAL RATIO)
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129,658 103,803 125,164 102,324
16,891 18,766 12,842 15,147
65,316 69,063 65,211 69,003
82,207 87,829 78,053 84,150
211,865 191,632 203,217 186,474
80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
36,500 36,500 36,500 36,500
8,260 8,260 8,260 8,260
49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000
768,056 778,412 775,150 781,984
102,173 95,558 101,758 95,143
1,023,989 1,027,730 1,030,668 1,030,887
1,481 3,428 - -
1,025,470 1,031,158 1,030,668 1,030,887
1,237,335 1,222,790 1,233,885 1,217,361
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AU UINE (494,443) (409,660) (487,405) (401,546)
lstusiu 365,665 309,020 362,718 304,184
nelidu 15,490 8,420 15,554 8,188
sunulnnTInd e (269,279) (221,030) (262,446) (216,171)
A lganelunsusnig | (140,795) (132,801) (139,554) (128,894)
Ml3anmsmeedemannIngiiansnmu ] 35.401 ] 35.401
Ml3anmsinyagAnTangsfunIngnionagu
v e 667 2 667 2
M13(@1911) INAINTINANAWNU (28,252) (988) (23,061) 2,710
Nelanen Ik 376 327 375 327
FunHNIINILEn (1,315) (1,743) (1,008) (1,449)
mMils@anu)newnstule (29,191) (2,404) (23,694) 1,588
nela@Elrne)mEnula 24 4,426 (484) 4,398 (507)
mils@anw)dmiul (24,765) (2,888) (19,296) 1,081
ﬁﬂi(mﬂnu)l,ﬁma%ﬁ'u
emsfaglignisdsznmlulilwinlsvienanu
Tunenas:
wamlsEanwnEusmulua T a T wiimue
Tinygae meyamgAoTsnawinlsnany
daiadu 28,625 (4,143) 28,625 (4.662)
midulfemeanfazlignindaznminalilu
mls visanulunnenas (5.725) 828 (5,725) 932
Warl3@a)nuINMTIngae s
spsnaUselominsinowiivunls (1,029) 827 (1,029) 827
miduldrasnemifiazligniadszinmln
13lurinls 3o anulumenas 206 (165) 206 (165)
Als@emwdaasidudmivignsanms 22,077 (2,653) 22,077 (3,068)
mls@anu)daaierndnivl (2,688) (5,541) 2,781 (1,987)

086



uSun o 8 B 91a (UML) IlasuS¥ndod
vurhlsthanuibaiaso
ansul duaadun 31 SUoAU 2565

(28 1 NBUIN)

JUNNTHEUTIN JUNTHBRANIENINTT
AHIBLYA 2565 2564 2565 2564
maudeiluinls @anu)
dauwniduwnsudEnlng (22,818) (1,972) (19,296) 1,081
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(24,765) (2.888)
maudituinlsmen Waeiass
fuidurosisnlng (741) (4,625) 0781 (1,987)
dwmiidusasdmladenlddsmaniuny (1.947) (916)
(2,688) (5,541)
milssiavu (um)

MlsdaruduiugIu (0.38) (0.03) (0.32) 0.02
IIuUa I NeanI L 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
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AnlganenEiule (4,426) 484 (4,398) 507
ﬁunum@mifﬁu 1,315 1,743 1,008 1,449
Audonmmuazednine 18,857 19,763 15,215 16,880
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JUNTHWIIN JUMINUANIZAANTT

2565 2564 2565 2564
(9,074) (13,800) (9,074) (13,800)
(1,315) (1,743) (1,008) (1,449)
68,551 (30,256) 72,945 (29,079)
- (80,000) - (80,000)
(110,000) (80,000) (110,000) (80,000)
- 40,000 - 40,000
(2,261) (18,000) (2,261) (18,000)
31,305 613 31,305 613
1,000 - - -
3,081 2,014 3,380 2,014
- - (10,000) -
- 256,505 - 256,505
- (457) - (457)
(9,631) (1,961) (4,266) (1,116)
671 - 487 -
(289) (121) (289) (107)
(86,124) 118,593 (91,644) 119,452
(3,562) (2,935) (2,450) (2,148)
(3,000) (9,000) (3,000) (9,000)
(6,562) (11,935) (5,450) (11,148)
(24,135) 76,402 (24,149) 79,225
149,974 73,572 149,609 70,384
125,839 149,974 125,460 149,609
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5.2 gaamirdanuiaNIINeITeen

@

ganArieUyARauAzAINIIIAEITRINY tb TN 31 SunAn 2565 uaz 2564 fuit
(V48 : WKL)
DUMSIBUSOL/DUMSIBUIOWTOMS

2565 2564
anwiin1Id
U3Wn 1087, Buwmasiuduuna 100 (Nrew) 859 144
U3EN AALeN. 910 1,996 1,614
RIPLY 2,855 1,758
anuilngwdeuds
U3 Fald Tanatuuna (Ineuans) s1An - 10,534
UiEn walauea. (Uszindlneg) s1nm 324 213
I 324 10,747
Sk
V3EN animwdwnes laane $900 (W) 70 49
U35 1093 Buaasuduuna $900 (Naw) 408 408
TIN 478 457
Aunindmemaiulavywiondu
Huaanuluanasmussusnaanziden
V35N 1089, Hunosuduuna 300 (Nrmw) 52,523 47,748
U3EN ananduines Taan 3109 (Hvnaw) 24,585 22,922
VTN YAa T35 S1im (vaw) 13 10
IIN 77,121 70,680
Fuasmuluanamuraswisnililsuisnaanziden
U3En als Tanatuuna (Inswand) 3119 - 11,200
U3EN venenlaien Jaas 110 7,806 7,806
U35n Tninad Aan3dntu wous ladasad sna 5,070 2,809
International Commercial Coordination (Hong Kong) Ltd. 1,406 1,406
UIEN Iwauuﬂmws}’ﬁ NA 2,000 1,750
U3EN adnuge 41 4,200 4,200
v3un 101 Inavea (Uszindlne) d11a 9,000 9,000
U3EN arlaidel 370 8,250 8,250
U3EN aruaddaaa mMavies 30a 27,500 27,500
I 65,232 73,921
1IN MITNNNIIAYaAITUaImY 19,802 21,697
in ﬁhLﬁ"am@nmmmﬁm&aﬁhLﬁumnu (16,806) (16,128)
Q‘VIE 68,228 79,490
AulduuniusEsniieadoeiu
U3En oalawea. (Uszindlneg) 310 - 3,081
UIEN 0AFEIN 1. 9,701 -
Rt 9,701 3,081
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(M8 : WHUIN)
VUMSIDUSIU/OUMSIDUIAWENDMS

2565 2564
mdinnadn
U3En Huald anasuuna (Insuaus) s1in - 11,360
UIBN AMengasInia 3170 9,779 7,471
U3EN HwAaSndnuna LaUDaTIMasd 3ne 10,512 7,073
U3En Tnenaug 9119 1,758 845
U3WN Lo LA 19 Baasiuduuna onaasinag s1in (W) 1,133 753
V3NN oyanwol 109 (W) 1,443 371
USEn walo.uea. (Uszindlne) na 9,551 4,008
U3un arwaldaaa naies 0 8 -
IIN 34,184 31,881
Fnitngudeuds
U3En Tninad Aan3dodu uoud ladsaad sin 124 65
U3EN HWADSmLn LaULaTIMaTE 30 A 55 41
U39 1083, Suwaesuduuna 170 (Nrnemw) 752 296
U3Wn avwmwndumes loant s09 (Mvamw) 4 15
U3un o la.wea. (Uszindlneg) s1nm 2,969 -
TIN 3,904 417
mnﬁﬁymmm@mmmLﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmLLriu%ﬂwﬁLﬁm%’aaﬁ'u flevait
(g : WhUIN)
PUMSIOUSOU
) g00AVINGO L g00AVINGD
IPUIRFEUINUSENAINgoTovU _fu dun 31 IWUdusinowl  adavsthdwl  ru dun 31
SUNAU 2564 SUDAU 2565
U3un o lauea. (Uszndlne) 311a 3,081 - (3,081) -
398 3,081 - (3,381) ]
nafistuuaranamaniwliiduriuisniieoeiu fdl
(g : WhuIn)
PUMSIOUIAWERDMS
) goanvIndo goanvIhdo
IPUIRREUINUSENAINgoTovU udun 31 Wulusinowl  adavs:niowl  ru dun 31
SUDAU 2564 SUAU 2565
U3un o lauea. (Uszndlne) 311a 3,081 - (3,081) -
VIBN 01WNasld 37100 - 10,000 (299) 9,701
TIN 3,081 10,000 (3,380) 9,701
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6. Uoyalwuiauingdnuas:lalobudaa
HUFALAZIIENSALUWNRBER UIenaumie Iuaalulowaseanainan luowIaNT HUaaLAZI18N1IA UYL 1
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A a & | A
53 sensniiadwlusznineg

1813530 NVUIENEBE)

FoRuA
FoNSWEFU

1801553090V ENNN 0 9AR
B RUANIBNIIIHUSNNS

Wt unaiy

el@an e

Tonswean

Toaun

Al RIEINNITUE

A3ne

anldanedn g

ATMDUWNWNTINNIT

ANMDULNIEUINIT
natszleniszezan

navseloaiszezenidn

TeMInuAININNedasnud Il Sugaiun 31 sunaN 2565 unz 2564 Aot

(V%8 : W)

énsul duaadun 31 suoAu

TINANMDULNUK LTI

VUMSIDUSOU OUMSIDUIAWRADMS

2565 2564 2565 2564
- - 189 46
- - 280 -
23,939 7,004 23,939 7,004
3,509 1,739 3,509 1,739
3,932 2,088 3,932 2,088
499 - 499 -
233,482 195,401 233,482 195,401
3,531 349 3,531 349
5,690 5,026 5,690 5,026
6,443 3,967 6,443 3,967
4,192 4,469 4,192 4,469
23,590 22,129 21,310 19,849
1,202 2,372 1,202 2,372
24,792 24,501 22,512 22,221

NuER

WWAINNIZLET8 %

WuEnaannIneg
POHY

6.2 F1ENINLHNITNUIBER

dmiull Auge Tud 31 Sunas
Fnilnmstenienauazqunsal
Fnitanmsdeauniwslafiman
Suiiuaauluamaanuilalduisn

Naanzidenluaann

IUNTZUARUAA UIznauauaInmenIituanigiwensiv Aol

@

6.1 RUFALAZIIENIHNIUYNELEA b IUN 31 5uNAN 2565 waz 2564 dsneazdennail

(nuag : WhLIn)

VUMISIDUSOU VUMISIDUIIWEADMS

2565 2564 2565 2564
104 84 74 64
1,164 747 1,122 718

124,571 149,143

124,264 148,827

125,839 149,974

125,460 149,609

(Mg : WHLIN)

VUMSIDUSOU OUMSIDUIIWENOMS

2565 2564 2565 2564
878 449 878 449
156 8 156 8
190 - 190 -



(M8 : WHLIN)

VUMSIDUSOU VUMSIDUIAWEADMS
2565 2564 2565 2564
(Ml)eanuIINMIIAYaigioIINT DY
fmmwEJmaﬂﬁLmlwuummau 7,599 2,454 7,599 2,454
(fls)manuainmsiayadivadves
natszleminginen 1,029 (827) 1,029 (827)
IIN 9,852 2,084 9,852 2,084

maasnuladurianiiAnanAanTana amBui MU A mum 31 Swnan 2565 uaz 2564 AdiralUil

(M4UI8 : NHLIN)

VUMSIDUSOU
goaduu ns:aduaanin ) goaUuanal
fu dun 1 flonssuvYamIdu msiuaguivao tu dun
unsSIAL — . Allgiduaa 31 suoAl
2565 ouaasu ouaasg 2565
Lﬁuﬁﬁmva g%"ﬂ’]ﬂﬂﬂﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁaﬂﬁ% - 1,000 - - 1,000
mwumimm mwumunﬁuau 98,610 - - 22,542 121,152
wuﬂummmmm 21,932 - (3,562) 3,116 21,486
PP} 120,542 1,000 (3,562) 25,658 143,638

(n4ag : WhuIN)
OUMSIDUIIWENDMS

goadyt NSAAUAADIN . gdoauang
U dun 1 IPNSSUYAMIdU msiUaguidao fu dun
uNsSIAL - . AlTsiduaa 31 suoAl
2565 1Uaasy jouaacd 2565
Lﬁuﬁﬁmwa &’umﬂmﬂaﬁﬁm%mﬁ’u - - - - -
Lm‘wumimm meuwunﬂuau 97,966 - - 21,444 119,410
wuﬂummmmm 17,478 - (2,450) 657 15,685
370 115,444 - (2,450) 22,101 135,095

(MUI8 : WHLIN)

VUMSIOUSOU
goaduu NSNEIdUEaIN . goaUangu
fu dun 1 AoNSsUYanIdu msiuagaundao fu dun
UNSIAL nlulsiduaa 31 suoAy
2564 puaasu ouaasd 2564
Lm‘wum‘smm meuwuunauau 112,191 - - (13,581) 98,610
wuﬂumuammmﬂ 24,867 - (2,935) - 21,932
TN 137,058 - (2,935) (13,581) 120,542

(M8 : WHLIN)
VUMSIDUIAWENDMS

goaduu NSNEvUEaIN . goaUangU
fu Jun 1 fionssuYanIdu msiJaguiav  tu dun
unsIAW __ . Alulsiduaa 31 suoAu
2564 louaasu louaavd 2564
Lf\nwumimm meumunauau 110,834 - - (12,868) 97,966
wuﬁummmmlfm 19,626 - (2,148) - 17,478
TN 130,460 - (2,148) (12,868) 115,444
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7. ankinisAlma:ankikyuidgudu
anviimaduazgnvilvapudeudu o Al 31 Sunen 2565 waz 2564 fneazideadil

(n4ag : WhuIN)

PUMSIOUSOW PUMSIOUIIWEADMS
2565 2564 2565 2564
anwiin1Ie
anviinaduaEniAeda ety 2,855 1,758 2,855 1,758
anwilnadusEnas 117,905 116,887 117,102 116,443
JIH 120,760 118,645 119,957 118,201
N fvhLﬂ'ammnmuﬁmmaﬁmﬁm@iwmﬁmﬁu (3,612) (4,402) (3,612) (4,402)
ﬁq'ﬂ% 117,148 114,243 116,345 113,799
anviitvapdeudu
Qﬂﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁwﬁlﬁmimﬁu 324 10,747 324 10,747
Bu 3,876 554 3,639 248
I 4,200 11,301 3,963 10,995
iauqﬂwaHWiﬁﬂLL@:Qﬂwf:muﬁﬂuSu 121,348 125,544 120,308 124,794

(M4I8 : WBLIN)

oun_13|6uso_u/
oUMSIDUIIWERPMS
2565 2564
ﬂ'wL?jamm@nué’mmiﬁmmmwzLﬁﬂﬁu
) 4,402 6,370
AANIIZHINND (8) (1,968)
wﬁquﬁﬁ@ﬁwmmzmwﬂ (782) -
Uaed 3,612 4,402

(M4I8 : WHLIN)

PUMSIOUSOU/
DUMSISUIAWETOMS
2565 2564
visnifignuiiniaduenamuangnitldaoil
anviinsdusEnTAeda ey
gilsimsuinuadisy 136 628
NUAARATITE
%oendn 3 1hon 2,183 1,130
3-6 \faw 536 -
6-12 Liaw - -
NN 12 1heu - -
TmgnuitmIfuIEniieadaiu 2,855 1,758
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VUMSIDUSOU

(M8 : WHLIN)
OUMSIDUIDWEADMS

2565 2564 2565 2564
anviimIfuIEnd
gvliAsuimuadTe 76,954 70,774 76,505 70,497
AT
#oendn 3 LHan 39,155 43,976 38,869 43,821
3-6 LAon 734 62 729 50
6-12 fiow 87 111 24 111
NN 12 LFow 975 1,964 975 1,964
iaanwf:ﬂwﬁwu%ﬁwﬁu 117,905 116,887 117,102 116,443
8. duA1AVIKAD
Fuaunas o Tull 31 Sunen 2565 uaz 2564 fiTeazdendil
(MUI8 : WHLIN)
OUMSIBUSOU OUMSIDUIAWEDMS
2565 2564 2565 2564
eELIENYER! 540 426 - -
fuddniagy 81,082 134,246 80,798 134,197
FuArnae 62,215 67,776 62,215 67,776
TIN 143,837 202,448 143,013 201,973
N mLﬁa}Jamﬁuﬁm@m (2,794) (3,995) (2,794) (3,995)
TINRUAAILNAD 141,043 198,453 140,219 197,978
Funurasdudaundafitufinduenlieuas raluinddunune
(n4ag : WhUIN)
VUMSIDUSOU oUMSIdUIAWENDMS
2565 2564 2565 2564
éfunwnw 495,643 409,328 488,605 401,214
miﬁ%’uamﬂamLﬂmﬂamqw%ﬁﬂwmwﬂﬁ%’u (1,200) 332 (1,200) 332
TIN 494,443 409,660 487,405 401,546

9. &unsSwWgdn1vNISIBUKYUISYUDU

E‘mw%wﬁmﬁmiﬁumuﬁmﬁu N 31 5UINAN 2565 waz 2564 HTn8asidenndi

uasnulumibeamuiiiayamdenagiss
WU lIIAN Y
Fuaanulumbieasmuizezamu
AR NG T Ienau
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(Mg : WhLIN)

VUMSIOUSI/
VUMSIDUIAWENDMS

2565 2564

190,669 80,002

190,669 80,002
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1%

Temaefonnilusznilaugaiui 31 funan 9asRunIwgnmamaiunyuleuduias

(M8 : WHLIN)

OUMSIDUSOU/

DUMSIDUIOW:NDMS

2565 2564
o Tufl 1 e 80,002 39,907
Fo3znined 110,000 80,000
189213191 - (40,000)
iwﬂmiﬁuwammué’mmiﬁmﬁ'mmwzLﬁ@%u - 93
mimﬁﬂuuﬂmimﬂamqﬁﬁﬁm 667 2
o il 31 Funan 190,669 80,002

10. dunswgnionisivullikyuidaudu

Funingmamainladvgudendn o Ui 31 Swnen 2565 uar 2564 fnegavideanii

(g : WHLIN)

PUMSIDUSOU/
OUMSIOUIRWTOMS
2565 2564
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WE ARE SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE
"We believe that people who enjoy a good quality of life
will be able to fulfil their roles and duties in society"
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WE ARE SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE
"We believe that people who enjoy a good quality of life
will be able to fulfil their roles and duties in society"

0.C.C. Public Company Limited or OCC Group has operated business with good governance
for more than 49 years. The stable growth of an organization is driven by its morality along with
continuing to show social responsibility with ethics. We believe that the organization will move
forward towards its goals successfully, it must be subject to 6 key elements of good governance
which are Rule of Law, Equity, Transparency, Participatory, Accountability and Effectiveness.
Driving business with mentioned principles, this will enable the organization to grow strongly
and sustainably along with creating a higher mass producing happiness in the society, including
public sectors, government sectors and private sectors. This will have a positive impact on the
development of the country.

In 2022, O.C.C. Public Company Limited has continued its CSR (Corporate Social
Responsibility) project: “Pass on Happiness to Society through Beauty Dimension” with the concept:
“The Power of Sharing”. We believe that the power of sharing fulfills the happiness of both the
givers and the receivers. The 4 minor projects of the Company’s CSR project as follows:

1. Project “OCC Contributes to the Construction of Vihara”

. 1 R " e e 74
' | | g Nowdecter g kol A= (71 =0 o
[V ’ i i g ’ 1 t

The Company contributes to the construction project
of Phra Wali Rojana Buddha Mahamuni Vihara at Wat
nakhonin, in Nonthaburi province. Total contribution was
Baht 133,000, which was divided by Baht 100,000
from O.C.C. Public Company Limited and Baht 33,000
from the management and employees. The height of
Phra Wali Rojana Buddha Mahamuni Vihara is 55
meters, while the width is 19 meters and the length is
22 meters. The structure of Vihara has 9 floors.
Objective of the construction of this Vihara, apart from
the extension of Buddhism to last long, we also aim for
4 important purposes as follows:

1. The place to enshrine the Lord Buddha relics.
(On top of the Phra Ket Kaew Chulamunee
Pagoda)

2. The place to enshrine Phra Wali Rojana Buddha
Mahamuni; Principle Buddha Image

3. The place for the monks and novices to study
Dharma.

4. The place of worship for monks, novices, and
the general public.
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The Covid-19 outbreak in Thailand remains
ongoing and it's unable to predict the end of
Covid-19. O.C.C. Group is aware of the health and
well-being of the people, especially children, who will
be a cog in driving the country forward in the future.
The Company is committed to support guidance for
adapting to life with COVID-19 and staying safe, in
accordance with the govemment's measures
continuously, therefore we have collaborated with Iris
Ohyama (Thailand) to provide IRIS OHYAMA facial
masks to the kids between ages 3-6 years. In 2022,
we donated face masks to the foundation for
underprivileged children, shelters and academies
with total value approximate Baht 1,391,600 million
as below:

4 Phayathai Babies Home : donated face masks worth 68,000 Baht

4 The Cardiac Children Foundation of Thailand: donated face masks worth 234,000 Baht

4 Woman of Faith Group: donated face masks and air purifier with filters worth 893,200 Baht

4 Ban Thep Daycard Mursdry: donated face masks and air purifier with filters worth 196,400 Baht
This is a part of activities that help keep the children safe from COVID-19 and have a better quality of life.
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3. Project “Separate Bottles to help Doctors”

OCC Group is aware of frontline medical personnel, who are of importance for the situation of
COVID-19 pandemic because they must encounter the risks of treating and helping patients infected with
COVID-19, which is inevitable. The Company participated in the project "Separate Bottles to help Doctors”
organized by Less Plastic Thailand; social networks to reduce waste, and Less Plastictu by Medical
Students from Chulabhorn International College of Medical, Thammasat University (CICM). Donations of
used clear plastic bottles from executives and employees within the organization shall be upcycled to
produce reusable PPE kits, which can be washed and reused up to 20 times, to frontline medical personnel.
It also encourages employees in the organization to participate in the management of plastic waste, which
is @ major environmental problem and pollution that causes global warming.

OCC Group accepts donations of clear plastic bottles from April to December 2022 and forward
them to the donation point of the project at Wongpanit Suvarnabhumi Recycle Station with Total numbers
of approx. 47 kgs or equivalent 1,800 bottles.
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OCC Group continues to emphasize on creating sustainable careers and incomes for people in the society. Therefore,
the OCC project has been continued with the project "OCC collaborated in the Pracharath public-private project to develop
career path skills” . This is one of the CSR missions of OCC Group, which builds on the main project "Pass on happiness to
society through beauty dimension" by organizing makeup workshops; "KMA Professional Makeup Exclusive" Course. This is
intended to provide basic makeup knowledge, skin care and technique to adjust or correct any defect on the face, to the
general public free of charge. They can apply the gained knowledge to be their careers in the future. All participants will have
knowledge of both theoretical and practical workshops by the Company's instructors who are a professional makeup team from
OCC Group with over 20 years of experience. The workshop will take about 3 hours. In 2022, 4 workshops had been organized
at the Beauty Queen Room in OCC Building.

OCC Group has provided proper knowledge on taking good care of skin to the young generation and to many
educational institutes through the project "OCC collaborated in the Pracharath public-private project to develop career path skills"
for about 6 years. The Company aims to offer the opportunity to the young generation to have healthy skin, to relieve the skin
problems of teenagers, as well as to enhance self-confidence and good personality for having a happy life. In addition, the
Company also provides makeup knowledge to underprivileged in the shelters including female inmates on the verge of release
in various correctional institutions to apply such knowledge to be their careers in the future.

Up to now, OCC Group has already provided makeup knowledge to more than 1,000 participants. And after this, we
continue to carry out our mission under the project “Pass on Happiness to Society through Beauty Dimension” by organizing
makeup workshops, to provide all groups of Thai people with access to knowledge in the field of skin care thoroughly.

O.C.C. Public Company Limited or OCC Group continues to stand for business development along with its corporate
social responsibility. We are committed to being a part of enhancing the quality of life for people in the society and the
underprivileged. Employees in the organization are encouraged to participate in volunteer work and public interest activities to
build a sustainable foundation of social responsibility. As mentioned earlier, “The Power of Sharing” will always fuffill both the
givers and the receivers.
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Message from the Board of Directors and the Management

The Company is committed to build sustainable growth of its organization and taking into account the rights of all
stakeholders by developing products and services, as well as to adapt the operation strategy to be in line with the situation.
2022 was the year that the private consumption and tourism sector began to recover after the coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) pandemic unfolded. The Thai government accelerated relaxation measures for international travel restrictions
by canceling the Thailand Pass Registration for foreign tourists.

The Company’s performance result began to have a gradual recovery from the mentioned situation but this not
has been enough to make a profit. For the year 2022, the Company generated revenue from the sale of 860.11 million
baht, an increase of 141.43 million baht or 19.68%. The Company has its annual operating loss of 24.77 million baht, an
increase of 21.88 million baht or 757.72%, compared to the year 2021. As a result of 2021, the Company had a profit
gained on sale of land in the amount of 35.40 million baht. However, the Company strongly believes that conducting
business operation with integrity and respecting the legal rights of all parties involved, having the responsibility towards
society, community and environment, is important for the growth of sustainable business by adhering to the principles
of good corporate governance, skill enhancement and competency development for employees to work as professional
employees. The Company strives development to provide good quality products and services to the whole of society, that
meet consumer demands for creating the most favorable satisfaction and utmost impressions. We are also looking for
business opportunities after the situation has been recovered for driving the organization to be strong and step forward to
success as well as to achieve the Company’s goals.

The Company’s policy is opposed to all forms of corruption. All directors, executives and employees of the
Company are adhering to all forms of anti-corruption policy. In 2022, the Company received the 3 membership renewal
certificate of Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption from the Thai Private Sector Action Against Corruption
Council for the 3™ quarter of 2022. The Company continues to monitor the governance for prevention of corruption risks,
as well as to monitor and evaluate the implementation of the anti-corruption policy.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management, we would like to extend our thanks to all shareholders,
customers, business partners, employees and all stakeholders for their support shown at all times. The Company is committed
to conduct its business in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance for the best interests of all related
parties.

pe— Teornde /)

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong
Chairman Managing Director and CEO
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Risk Management Committee’s Report

The Risk Management Committee of O.C.C Public Company Limited consists of 5 senior executives. The Managing
Director and CEO is the Chairman of the Risk Management Committee. There is one additional member who is the Chairman
of Audit Committee. Total numbers are six. In 2022, the meeting are 12 times as name list below :

Name Position Attendance Statistics
1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Chairman of Risk Management Committee 12/12
2. Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong  Risk Management Committee Member 12/12
3. Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn™ Risk Management Committee Member 9/9
4. Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Risk Management Committee Member 12/12
5. Ms. Patcharee Thumrongkittikul Risk Management Committee Member 12/12
6. Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D Risk Management Committee Member 12/12

*The employment contract ends on 30 September 2022

The duty are support the operation of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee in regards to the risk
assessment and to define prevent measurement, to modify the risk and follow up the result constantly. To consider any
important topics that could be summarized as follows:

1)  Define and review an organization-wide risk management framework to ensure appropriateness. in line with the

company’s strategic plan and environment.

2) Supervise the core business of the company and analysis of various risk factors has been conducted are
potential. Covering both business risks financial risk Operational risks Corruption risks and risks from external factors on
a regular basis. Including assessing the trend of impact that may have on the organization. To prioritize formulate a risk
management plan and prepare a guideline to control such risks appropriately. To manage the risk to be at an acceptable
level or reduce the likelihood of future risks occurring.

3) Follow up and review the implementation of the risk management plan. Under the policy and risk management
framework established annually. To ensure that risk management is in line with the Company’s risk control guidelines and
strategies. The risk management committee report is prepared to present the key risks of the main lines and core businesses
of the group that the management has supervised, reviewed, and followed up on a quarterly basis to the audit committee
for review. Before presenting to the Board of Directors for acknowledgment and additional comments on a quarterly basis.

4)  Annual review of the Risk Management Committee Charter. to comply with the principles of good corporate
governance and the changing environment appropriately

5)  To consider the risk which follows to the anticorruption measure. It includes core process design for the operations
which are for considering its appropriation and sufficiency towards likelihood of corruption. To practice in accordance with
the Company’s policy and anticorruption measures.

The Risk Management Committee has confidence on the Company’s risk management that it has effectiveness and
continuity. It harmonizes to principles and guideline practice of corporate governance, including sufficient and appropriate
Internal Control System to the business. The practice along with the laws and regulations that concerned to business

operation correctly and completely.

Teortda A\

(Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong)
Chairperson of Risk Management Committee
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Remuneration Committee’s Report

The Board of Directors of O.C.C. Public Company Limited has appointed the Remuneration Committee to perform its duties
and respondsibilities, as specified in the Charter of The Remuneration Committee. The Committee comprises three members as

follows:
Name Position Meeting Statistics
1. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 2/2
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Remuneration Committee Member 2/2
3. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong  Remuneration Committee Member 2/2

The Remuneration Committee has fulfilled its duties as specified in the Remuneration Committee’s Charter approved by the
Board of Directors. The Remuneration Committee has duties to determine the remuneration for the Board of Directors, subcommittees
and senior executives to be appropriate, including to motivate an effective working and retain knowledgeable and capable persons
to work with the Company, for proposing to the Board of Directors’ Meeting.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee convened the meetings for determining policies and criteria to approve an appropriation
of remuneration of the Board of Directors. It's comparable to the remuneration’s information of the company directors that are in the
same business and with similar business sizes, compliance with competency and the Company’s operating results. It's considered
the authorities and responsibilities assigned and operating performance. This included the growth and result of the Company’s
operating performance, business liquidity, factors that may affect the Company or the overall economic conditions, by having the
procedure stipulated in accordance with the Charter and related regulations.

The Remuneration Committee annually reviews the Charter of Remuneration Committee, for having abilities to perform its
duties efficiently with clear scope of responsibilities. The remuneration of the Board of Directors, Committees and the Management
has been disclosed in the annual report and Form 56-1 One Report, of which the Remuneration Committee has determined that
it's appropriate, in line with duties and responsibilities and in accordance with the policy of the Company.

/== A

Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Normination Committee’s Report

The Board of Directors of O.C.C. Public Company Limited has appointed the Nomination Committee to perform its duties,
as specified in the Charter of The Nomination Committee. The Committee comprises three members as follows:

Name Position Meeting Statistics
1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Chairman of the Nomination Committee 2/2
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Nomination Committee Member 2/2
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Nomination Committee Member 2/2

The Nomination Committee has carried out the duties as assigned by the Board of Directors which is specified in the
Charter of The Nomination Committee. Its duties are to select suitable candidates with proper qualifications, knowledge and
expertise in various professions, to serve as the company directors and top management.

The Nomination Committee has determined the criteria and methods for nominating which conform to the charter
and related regulations by considering appropriation that gives benefit to the Company’s operation, qualifications, knowledge,
competence and diverse expertise of nominating persons that are in accordance with the strategy of the company’s business
operation which include skill analysis, experience, knowledge and directorial expertise (Board Skill Matrix). In addition, the
nominated persons must be the person with leadership, vision, morality, ethics, and transparent work experience as the Company’s
directors and the members of sub-committee in the past as well as to have ability to express opinion independently and no
characteristics as forbidden by laws and the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company has provided opportunities
for minor shareholders to participate in nominating candidates to be appointed as the Company’s directors prior to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders. Previous year, none of the shareholders nominated any candidates to be considered as
company directors.

In 2022, The Nomination Committee convened its meeting to carry out duties as assigned. The Nomination Committee,
has considered the qualifications of 3 persons who had been nominated to serve as the company directors replacing those
who retired by rotation at the 28™ Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which were 1) Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana
2) Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong and 3) Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art to be elected as the company directors also at the 28"
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2022.

Moreover, the Charter of the Nomination Committee is also reviewed annually to comply with the related practice
guidelines, while the Nomination Committee has performed its duties as assigned discreetly and reasonably.

Teornda /)

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
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Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee’s Report

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee has been appointed by the Board of Director to perform its
duties and responsibilities as specified in the Charter of The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee comprises
three members as follows:

Name Position Meeting Statistics
1. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Chairman of the Corporate Governance 3/3
and Sustainability Committee
2. Mr. Knit Kounavudhi Corporate Governance and 3/3

Sustainability Committee Member
3.  Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Corporate Governance and 3/3
Sustainability Committee Member

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee has fulfilled its duties as specified in the Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee” Charter approved by the Board of Directors. The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee has
duties to be responsible for the corporate governance of the Company’s operation to be performed in accordance with the good
corporate governance principles with transparent and exposable administration, be able to audit and have fairness to all groups of
stakeholder. This includes sustainable business development in line with the Company’s business operations in terms of economy,
society and environment.

In 2022, the Committee held a total of two meetings. A summary of its activities is provided below.

1) Review the Charter of the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee and improve the scope, duties
and responsibilities to be appropriate to the current situation, compliance with sustainable development and to build trust with
all stakeholders. Previous name of the Corporate Governance Committee has been adjusted to the Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee by having an approval from the Board of Directors.

2) Supervise and monitor the performance to comply with the principles of good corporate governance and sustainable
development of the Company.

3) Review anti-corruption policies of the Company and approve regulations related to anti-corruption. Continuously monitor
the practice that complies with anti-corruption policies to ensure the compliance of the Company’s good corporate governance,
and to have a corporate culture that will not tolerate all forms of corruption and be transparent in business operations.

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee places great importance on ensuring the Company strict compliance
with the Corporate Governance Policy and Business Code of Conduct for the Thai economy, society and environment. The Committee
encouraged the Company to gain confidence and trust from all stakeholders which it will be the foundation for sustainable growth
in the long period.

e

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn
Chairman of the Corporate Governance
and Sustainability Committee
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Executive Summary

The prosperity business of O.C.C. Public Company Limited has been continuously conducted for a long time
and stepped to its 49" Anniversary with stability. The major products of the Company are high quality cosmetic and clothing
products under the leading trademarks, which are widely well known and popular. Distribution and sale of the Company’s
products are conducted through the network of business partners covering almost all sales channels nationwide. Examples of
the Company’s leading products are “Covermark” cosmetics, and “Guy Laroche” sport wear, nightwear and lingerie.

Overview of the Thai economy in the past year, it was a gradual continuous recovery, driven by the easing of
the COVID-19 situation. Therefore, economic activity gradually resumed normally. In addition, the tourism sector has started to
grow due to the gradual easing of international travel restrictions since the middle of the year. Private consumption began to
expand, according to the recovery in household incomes. This is combined with measures to support government spending
through various projects continuously from the previous year and measures to mitigate the impact of the energy price crisis.
However, domestic purchasing power remains pressured by rising cost of living due to rapidly rising inflation in the direction of
rising oil prices as well as household debt that remains high. The export sector expanded well in the first half of the year but
it began to slow down in the last quarter of the year. This is in line with signs of a global economic slowdown. Meanwhile, the
manufacturing sector of this year remained sluggish amid a shortage of manufacturing parts.

According to the economic condition that has not yet been recovered entirely, there were both faster and slower
recovery in business. Business operations were also fraught with high uncertainty. There were constantly competitors entering
the market, therefore, the Company has implemented strategic management, while the situations were closely monitored along
with changing tactics both proactively and defensively. In the past year, the Company had total revenue from sales of Baht
860.11 million. It increased by 19.68% from the previous year. Loss before extraordinary items and corporate income tax was
Baht 29.19 million. It decreased by Baht 8.61 million or equivalent 22.78%. And when including extraordinary items, which
the profit gained from the sale of land amounted to Baht 35.40 million since last year, the loss before corporate income tax
increased by Baht 26.79 million from previous year. And when deducting corporate income tax, there was a net loss of Baht
24.77 million. Loss increased from the previous year by Baht 21.88 million or equivalent 757.72%.

The current financial structure of the Company remains constant for many consecutive years by having several
indicators of the significant financial ratio which are able to reflect the good liquidity. For example, this year, the Company has
a Net Working Capital of Baht 483.67 million, the liquidity ratio is 4.73 times while the Debt to Equity ratio is at the very low
level at only 0.21 times.

The performance of the previous year was a result of the dedication and effort of the employees from all levels
who are not discouraged from the problems and obstacles. They all have determination to develop the products and services
in order to respond continuously to the customers’ satisfaction. The Company has careful management and plans to handle the
situation that may change rapidly. The Company has committed to good corporate governance under the principles of good
governance as well as to develop business to have sustainable growth for the maximum benefit of all related stakeholders.
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SECTION 1 Business Operations and Performance

1. Structure and Operations of the Group of Companies
1.1.  Policy and Business Overview
1.1.1. Vision Objective Goal Strategy
The Board of Directors places a great deal of importance on the Company’s operation by participating in engaging
vision, corporate culture, values and operational strategy of the Company for the executives and all employees to aim at the same direction
and to comply with the direction of the marketing competition.

Vision

OCC is moving forward strongly

by creating products with a difference and best quality.

We strive to return the loyalty of our customers,
employees, trading partners, shareholders,

and Thai society by providing products and services

which creates beauty, happiness and complete satisfaction.
Corporate Culture Beauty from within “Be Beautiful from the Inside Out”
6 Corporate Values

B is for Boundaryless

E is for Ethics and Integrity

A is for Adaptability to Change

U is for Unity

T is for Talent

Y is for You are our valued Customer

Beauty from Within

Concurrently, the Board of Directors also recognizes the importance of human resource development as expected
by the organization, therefore, the Company has engaged OCC Core Competency for the executives and all employees to adhere to it
as a guideline to cooperate for achieving its goals and established vision. The Company also encourages and improves the ability for all
levels of employees to gain more knowledge and expertise, including the best approach to customers by good products and services.
To initiate innovation and have adaptability to change in every way for the Company to have its development and move forward steadily.

Core Competency

OCC IS A FEAT
I Information Technology; creation and development of technology
S :  Service Focus ;having service mind, be kind to each other and creation of

products and services

Ability to Learn; job creation and ready to learn

Flexibility; having compromise, stretch

Ethic and Integrity; having strong adherence to integrity and ethics
Accept Change ;being ready for new things to moving towards change
Teamwork; having collaboration to move forward together

— > m T >

In order to conduct the business operation to achieve the goals as defined in the vision, the Company has a

strategic planning to build sustainable growth and profitability as follows:

1. Establish a strategy to source new beauty innovations as well as to place importance on quality products that
meet customer’s demands continuously.

2. Establish a strategy to develop the strength of a product’s brand by emphasizing on brand - building awareness
among the group of customers through the selection of marketing communications tools that are suitable and
have continuity.

3. Establish a strategy to build diversity by seeking new business partners to develop new distribution channels
that meet the demand of each group of customers. Technology is implemented to facilitate the target group
for their products approaching so simply with the best impression.
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4. Establish a strategy to create sustainable values for the shareholders, customers, business partners, employees,
community and society, as well as the development of personnel in the organization to have competency that
is ready for competition and constant change.

In addition, in 2022, the Company has adopted enterprise performance management tools for managing its performance.
Corporate KPls is a quantifiable measure of performance, which complies with the rules of Balanced Scorecard. Organizational indicators
for managing enterprise-level performance to achieve goals are as follows:

Corporate Key Performance Indicators

CORPORATE 1 Net Sales Achieved
L e e e
Finance 2 Earnings Before Tax Achieved
= 3 Retention Rate of Existing Customer for B2B
9 e e .............. 5
';: KPI 4 Ability to Gain New Customer for B2B
N U OMIT |
4 . .
< 5 Satisfaction of Customer
)
o
© CORPORATE 6 Satisfaction of Effectiveness and Service by Department
KPI
Internul PI‘OCESS .......................................................................................................................................................
7 Non-Performing Loan Rate
CORPORATE . .
KPI 8 O.C.C. Transformation Project of all Department
Learning

1.1.2. Significant Changes and Developments

O.C.C. Public Company Limited has been established and operated since 1973 with its initial name “O’Leary
Covermark Center Company Limited”. The Company distributed O’Leary Covermark cosmetics by opening the beauty service center for
consulting customers who purchased and used the products. Later on, the Company has expanded its distribution channels to have the
sales counters in department stores and to have beauty salons nationwide, by implementing an after-sales service strategy to impress
customers. Specifically, organizing an optional promotional team at each point of sale to demonstrate products’ usage, services and
recommend how to select the suitable products. All these ensured the customers’ confidence with positive response, and enhanced the
“Covermark” cosmetics to be a prestige brand that could lead the Company to continuously achieve with progressive success until now.

The Company was granted approval to be a listed company in the Stock Exchange of Thailand in 1994 and
registered its conversion to “Public Company Limited”. The Company has expanded its distribution with different product categories. The
main product groups can be divided as follows:

Cosmetic Product Group: consists of cosmetics for the face and body, hair care products, makeup accessories

Clothing Product Group: consists of women lingerie, nightwear, sport wear, swim wear and casual wear

Other Groups: consists of manufacturer/distributor Food & Beverage Service

The Company’s target market is mostly women of working age who are likely to prefer good quality products and
is truly attentive to customer service, for enhancing beauty, personality, building confidence and being aware of skin care, physical and
mental health as well as to enhance happiness for themselves and close persons.

The Company’s core business is the distribution of domestic market products by basing on trade ethics, risk
management principles, systematic management, transparency, auditability in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance.
The Company has a commitment to excellence in business performance, by placing importance on its personnel, encouraging all employees
to work with happiness in a friendly environment that helps activate their creativity. All employees are encouraged to have the opportunities
to learn and develop, in order to be able to use their effective potential that completely exists
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Significant Changes and Activities in 2022

In June 2022, distributorship of Shiseido Professional hair care products of the Company, was discontinued, due
to the change in license holding. However, the Company has prepared the same kind of products as replacement. In Quarter 3, the
Company was granted a distributorship to distribute hair care products under WELLA Brand from Germany and b-ex Brand from Japan.
In Quarter 4, the Company was granted a distributorship to distribute DEMI Brand from Japan.

On November 14, 2022, the Company received the Investors’ Choice Award 2022, as assessed for the quality
of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, receiving a total score of 100% for 15 consecutive years by Thai Investor Association
under the Rights Protection Volunteer Program

1.1.3. If the issuer uses the money raised from the public for other purposes first which does not meet
the objectives

- None -

1.1.4. The Company’s commitment as promised on disclosure in the securities offering statement

(filing form)

- None -

1.1.5 Company Name and Head Office Address

O.C.C. Public Company Limited is engaged in the business for distributing cosmetic products, clothing products
and beauty services. Its short name on the Stock Exchange of Thailand is “OCC”. The Company has registered as a juristic person under
Public Limited Companies Act, on May 9, 1994 with registration number: 0107537001323.

As at December 31, 2022, the Company had a registered capital of 80 million shares with par value of Baht 1.00
(One Baht) per share. 60 million shares were paid with par value for Baht 1.00 (One Baht) per share, amounting to Baht 60 million.

The address of the Company’s head office is No. 729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Road., Bangpongpang Sub-district,
Yannawa District, Bangkok 10120, Tel no. 02-2954545, 02-2954567, Fax No. 02-29504 11, website: www.occ.co.th.

1.2.  Nature of Business
1.2.1. Income Structure

Product Group 2022 Ratio 2021 Ratio 2020 Ratio
Cosmetics 751,800 87.41%| 649,953 90.44% 791,353 91.71%
Clothes 98,323 11.43% 55,349 7.70% 65,827 7.63%
Others 9,985 1.16% 13,378 1.86% 5,707 0.66%

Total 860,108 100.00% 718,680  100.00% 862,887 100.00%

1.2.2. Product Information
(1) Cosmetic Product Group

(1.1)  Characteristics of Products and Services

The Company is a distributor of good-quality cosmetic products under international trademarks and local
licensed brands which consists of Covermark, Paul & Joe, KMA, Sungrace, WELLA, b-ex, DEMI, BSC Hair Care including Easy Cut; haircut
service business. Each product has met the needs of each consumer’s level, covering every sales channel which are department stores,
beauty centers, beauty salons and modern trades both in Bangkok and provinces. Salespeople who are well trained about products, sales
techniques and service as professionals, are ready to consult and demonstrate how to use products with attention to service. In addition,
it has added online distribution channels to respond to current consumer behavior and to cope with changing market conditions.

(1.2)  Marketing and Competition

Previous year, the Thai economy continued to improve for consecutive quarters, as a result of the unraveling
of the COVID-19 pandemic, comprehensive and effective vaccine distribution. This affected the recovery of the tourism sector and the
number of foreign tourists is steadily increasing from the easing of entry restrictions, including spending stimulus measures for government
projects that have been rolling out continuously since the beginning of the year.

Though the growth of the Thai economy has slowed down and not yet widely spread over all sectors, the
cosmetic distribution business continues to grow every year because of the consumers’ behavior that pays more attention to their good
looking personality and skin care as always. Therefore, it is a very competitive market. There are a large number of new entrepreneurs
competing in business, both Thai brands and imported brands. According to the situation of COVID-19 pandemic that's spreading all over
the world, a domestic lockdown was engaged. Everyone must wear a face mask to protect themselves. Purchasing power of customers
has decreased. Tourists are shrinking. These factors cause the overall cosmetics market to be sluggish.

180



However, the Company does not stay calm under said circumstance. The Company continues to create new
products under various innovative beauty innovations, for approaching the products with outstanding quality, modernity, high standard
quality and value creation for consumers. Adding more of the sales counters in new opening department stores coupled with promotional
marketing activities throughout Bangkok and in the province, to encourage consumers to be interested in the quality of the products and
have confidence to buy. Excellent services are provided to the customers for increasing their satisfaction level and achieving maximum
impression.

Covermark is the major brand of the Company’s cosmetic product group, in which the main ingredients are
developed to get valuable compounds. It offers a range of product varieties to meet the needs of modern women, of which the brand
can attract the new generation of consumers even more. As a result of accessing online communication, the brand attaches importance
as priority, whether utilizing influencers to post contents on various platforms such as Blog, Instagram, Facebook and Youtube. Therefore,
Covermark is well known among consumers of different age segments. In the previous year, it has released a new formula serum namely
Cell Advanced Serum WS serum product, that helps to replenish moisture to keep skin visibly plump with a smooth, concise and brilliant
look than ever. Thanks for the latest technology that combines the power of 3 extracts derived from neem leaves, tea leaves and eggplant
fruit, which help level up deep penetration a step further. It also contains peel extracts of Mallotus philippensis, which is only under
Covermark licensing, by inventing and researching in collaboration with Osaka University, Japan. This serum was developed to have an
effectiveness that helps maintain the youth and healthy skin, under the concept “Get the Bright Face”. Although the market conditions
are still very competitive and consumer behavior is constantly changing, the brand maintains product standards and has the potential to
compete on the beauty products market as well.

KMA brand is the cosmetic under the license of the Company, with which its new collections are continuing
development. This year, there were new products available, such as KMA Peach Me Cleansing Collection; a facial cleansing set. This
set consists of Micellar Cleansing Water and Formula 3 in 1 Cleansing Balm, with the main ingredients being Japanese Peach Extracts.
Micellar Cleansing Water is suitable for oily and sensitive skin, while Cleansing Balm is suitable for dry and normal skin with a touch of
texture balm. KMA Ever Bright Super Serum is a concentrated skin serum with beauty technology of Elastosome Whitening Complex. It's
a combination of 4 effective Whitening compounds; Vitamin B3, Vitamin E, Vitamin C and Alpha Arbutin which helps improve dull and
weak skin to brighten. It also contained 5 powerful nourishing substances; Niacinamide 10%, Vitamin C, Alpha Arbutin, Tranexamic Acid
and Licorice Extract which have features to minimize dark spots, freckles, blemishes and wrinkles, as well as to reduce skin inflammation,
provide moisturizer to maintain skin elasticity with long-lasting strength. In addition, promotional activities are held nationwide and distribution
channels are expanded in many areas, which has been well received. Advertising and public relations are implemented via various media
such as: printing media, social media and to convene workshops with external organizations regularly for giving awareness to target groups
to have recognition and opportunity to test the products.

PAUL & JOE brand, is the well know cosmetics of French designer in France. The products are carefully
selected with natural ingredients that moisturize the skin in large quantities throughout the day and it can reflect the beauty of skin tone
naturally, then the skin looks healthy, glamorous, and fascinating. The design of its packaging is retro modern, combining beautiful, colorful
and funny patterns. In addition, the packaging of each product represents its delicacy, luxury, worthiness and reliability. The products are
available at Central Chidlom Department Store, and Siam Paragon department or Online Shopping at Central online shop, www.lazada.
co.th/shop/pauljoe and https://shop.line.me/@paulandjoe_th. The top item that is admired has gained the trust of its target customers is
Protecting Foundation Primer, which represents the brand image for a long period. In 2022, Protecting Foundation Primer received Iconic
Skin Smooting Primer Award from 2022 Praew Iconic Beauty Contest. This Protecting Foundation Primer has effectiveness in helping
to camouflage pores to be smoothly and even skin tone. It makes skin look radiant from harmful UV rays with SPF 50+ PA++++ skin
protection. At the end of the year, PAUL & JOE had launched 2 exclusive collections which one of them is Paul & Joe x Cinnamoroll.
This collection has collaboration with Sanrio to create cosmetics and packaging with cute sinamoroll pattern, on the occasion of 20th
Anniversary. It consists of Furry Compact C, Compact C, Lipstick Case C, Lip Treatment Balm C and Hand Cream C. Another collection
is Christmas Collection that customers can enjoy chrysanthemum pattern gift box and cute Jepsy and Nunett cats. Beauty items inside the
gift box that come in the form of an Advent Calendar, consist of funny 24 items such as Latour Eclat Foundation Primer Limited (10ml),
Powder Blush Limited (3g), Eye Color Limited (2.5g), Lipstick Limited (2.6g), Moisture Lotion (25ml), Hair Tie, Compact, Lipstick Case
Limited, Pouch, will let young ladies enjoy the unwrapping of gifts each day.

In June 2022, the Company’s distributorship of Shiseido Professional hair care products was ended. The
Company acquired a license to distribute Wella Professionals brand, leading global German hair color and hair care products in Thailand.
AS Wella Professionals is a powerful brand of which its 3 strengthened concepts of Innovation, Services and Education are emphasized.
Wella Professionals brand consists of a product range for Hair Care, Hair Styling, Hair Perm and Hair Color, which has been invented and
created with innovations that meet and cover all the needs of consumers. Due to product uniqueness, it has a competitive advantage
over its competitors in the market. In regard to the Services and Educations of Wella Professionals Brand, the Company emphasizes
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on services that support and encourage creativity. The Company inspires professional hairdressers throughout Thailand by improving
skills and knowledge of hair fashion trends, as well as providing knowledge on effective marketing. This includes the instruction to plan
for hair salon development to be equivalent to a hair salon abroad and to impress consumers after having the services. It also creates a
sustainable partnership to grow together and to expand the salon customer base in Thailand to be active after the decline of COVID-19
pandemic. In regard to the marketing strategies, the Company will focus on the Hair Color product group in the first year, because it
has the largest market share in salon distribution channels. As Salon Services First Mindset is our core strategy, therefore, we focus on
creating new hair color products for salons that cover the group of consumers who have different demands. Maximum satisfaction will be
created through world-class quality products. In addition, there is a creation of new hair color trends and new content by representatives
of the new generation who are Celebrity, Influencer, Blogger and Net Idol. We also emphasize on communicating through hair stylists in
Thailand and overseas, in order to inspire Thai hairdressers to be fashion trend leaders.

In addition, the Company also has other well-known hair product brands from Japan, which are mainly imported
and distributed through the Beauty Salon channel. The products belong to b-ex Inc., consist of various groups, which are Throw (Professional
Hair Color); hair color products. Lashe; cool perming and treatment products, Hahalife; hair straightener products, Loretta; hair styling
products and Deep Layer 5 Step Treatment. There are also products from Nikka Chemical Co., Ltd., a leading chemical company that
invents and develops hair products under the name DEMI from Japan. Its concept is “Deliver..... Beautiful and Healthy Hair Naturally”

Easy Cut is a business that provides haircutting services with a service concept focused on cleanliness,
convenience, fast, safe and modernity. Professional hair technicians are well trained on specific courses. Service units of Easy Cut are
available at metro, department stores and shopping malls in Bangkok and provinces. Easy Cut received good response from customers.

(1.8) Procurement of Products or Services

The Company places importance on selecting products and adding new products as an alternative to consumers
to be able to use cosmetic products with good quality and high standard. There are parts of imported goods that the Company operated
through Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd, Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd and there is a part of goods that are imported directly
from Albion Co., Ltd. Japan.

Domestically developed products are cooperated with SAHA Group companies such as International Laboratories
Corp. Limited and S&J International Enterprise Public Company Limited. They are cosmetic manufacturers with international standards and
specialize in manufacturing processes and cosmetic quality control for a long time, therefore, it has been trusted from the owners of many
leading brands from overseas to be a manufacturer to export to overseas.

(2) Clothing Product Group

(2.1)  Characteristics of Products and Services

The Company is the sole distributor of clothing products which are women’s lingerie, nightwear and swimwear
under Guy Laroche licensed brand in Thailand. The products are carefully produced from the source of quality raw materials, selection
of high quality lace fabrics from abroad, design and selection that reflects elegant tastes. This includes Guy Laroche’s unique elaborate
tailoring methods to suit the body of Thai ladies. All Guy Laroche products are available in leading department stores nationwide by having
sales staffs to provide product information.

The inner wear products under Gunze Trademark which is well-known from Japan, it is divided into groups
of goods imported directly from Japan and manufactured locally using raw materials imported from Japan, which emphasize the use of
high-quality cotton fibers. There is a wide variety of weaving techniques which received good response from customers. In addition, G&G
is the Company’s lingerie brand for being another consumers’ choice. This lingerie is beautiful, modern and comfortable to wear. It helps
contour body shape with affordable price but still with good quality which is the core principle of the Company in business operation.

In addition, the Company has distributed Smileyhound; an underwear for men which is the new product.
Smileyhound is made of high quality cotton and spandex fabrics that provides a soft touch and comfort, fits to body shape and is
breathable. Its extra stretch elastic waistband with the imprint of cool brand name is an accessible item that meets all of lifestyle needs.
An outstanding design of the logo is the screen of the dog which is the unique image of this brand. It's available with 2 styles that
comprise of Smileyhound Trunk; sporty men’s trunk underwear and Smileyhound Brief; classic men’s brief underwear for the target group
of working men with the age between 25-45 years. These 2 styles are modermn and fashionable that suit those men who have their own
style with taste. The products are distributed through Smileyhound Shop, Central Ladproud, Robinson Rama 9, Robinson Thalang and
online channels via Line My Shop@smh_innerwear, Lazada.co.th/shop/smileyhound-innerwear, Shopee.co.th/smileyhound

(2.2) Marketing and Competition

Previous year, the overall economic condition of the Company began to improve in a good direction. This has
resulted in the competitive market condition of the lingerie, nightwear and swimwear for women that were at a high level. In particular,
the middle to upper levels emphasize strategies to make a difference, both in terms of innovation by offering lingerie products suitable
for Thai women’s body composition, and to build confidence when wearing, including a variety of raw materials and design style. This
could be able to meet the demand of consumers for all lifestyles. The mass market has emphasized on price competition rather than the
quality for targeting customers with less purchasing power.
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For lingerie, Guy Laroche continues to create products with modern designs and develops new patterns
continuously to be able to meet the demand of modern women in terms of comfortable to wear, body shape tightening to strengthen
confidence. This includes the selection of standard materials, good quality lace fabric from abroad and combining innovative cutting and
sewing. Previous year, the Company has launched a new collection namely, “The Lover”, a charming lace of premium vintage design
that encourages a more perfect women’s physical body with 2 pastel color shades, pink and cream colors. Sweetness and romance
are enhanced with exquisite sewing on every detalil. It represents the luxury, beauty and sexy image of Guy Laroche. In addition, Guy
Laroche has launched “Tiger Satin Sleepwear Collection. It's inspired from the combination of luxury, comfort and sexiness in a type of
Guy Laroche’s female tiger getting from the charm of soft and smooth fabrics, comfort at every touch and movement with luxurious sexy
designs that represent yourself.

G&G underwear products remain focused on the target group of middle-income earners for competitive product
pricing. Previous year, G&G has added a variety of products in the Group of sport wear or fitness wear for responding to the demand
and modern lifestyle of the women who care for health and love to exercise. G&G has added sleepwear products with a variety of styles
and colors to meet the needs of women of all ages and lifestyles. The sleepwear products are made of 100% cotton, rayon span, satin
and ltalian silk. All fabrics are comfortable, cool, breathability, easy to take care of and versatile with beautiful designs. G&G sleepwear is
available in nightgown, pajamas, both short pants and trousers.

For the swimwear group, there is competition for modern design styles and offer versatility to wear, which is
in line with the fashion trend of healthy fitness increasing in the past 2-3 years. New brands are also creating more colorfulness in the
market for competition. Guy Laroche swimwear group has continuous development, this year, a more modern design has improved to
be more modern. There is a new collection “ROAR”, a design that reflects the sleekness but keeps its luxurious image and outstanding
sexy tiger pattern with exquisite sewing. Plus Size swimwear is added in the group for plus size customers.

In regard to Gunze products, research has been conducted to develop innovative products in Japan for adding
value and the benefit continuously. Apart from the Cool Magic collection; which its design is modern with soft fabrics, cool feeling effect
and sweat absorption, there is the Collection Hot Magic that is made of a light texture which gives a warm feeling and responds to the
customers’ demand perfectly. Gunze realizes the importance of the environment saving and pollution, therefore Organic Cotton fabric
has been added in the collection and has been launched in previous year and received good response. This group has been certified by
Oekotec Certified (Eco-Tex) that in every process of this production, there was a control not to have chemical residues contained in the
fabrics which may affect health and environment.

(2.3) Procurement of Products or Services

Most apparel products are manufactured from renowned SAHA Group subsidiaries with reliable quality such
as Thanulux Public Co., Ltd, Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd, and Thai Gunze Co., Ltd. Each manufacturer has high standard production
and received reliance from the brands’ owner to be the export hub for exporting to other countries.

(8) Other Product Groups

(8.1) Characteristics of Products and Services

The subsidiary is a French bread manufacturer and distributor of AMATISSIMO brand and coffee drinks are
included by having natural ingredients’ selection of good quality both domestically and internationally. The outstanding products are bread
in croissant groups with special recipes made with care of every step, the meticulous production process takes up to 3 days and is
full with tasteful butter from Normandy, France. And Brioche Bread that uses imported flour from France, premium butter from Brittany,
France. It is made from cow’s milk, which is fed with fresh grass all year and still uses the Drum Churning method, which is a traditional
butter production. Even though there is less production than industrial, this gives it a special taste from curing milk. In addition, it also
adds Natural Lactic to give butter a unique taste and smell. The classic buttery tender texture has been meticulously processed for up
to 3 days. It takes more than 48 hours to cure dough, this gives it a deep soft taste with a long aftertaste, sweet and unique. There is a
good control system, this makes it possible to get good quality products, delicious, clean, fresh, safe and gives benefit to consumers. It is
distributed wholesale from the Company’s branches and distributed directly as required orders from customers through online channels
via Facebook, Line@ and Instragram. Delivery services are available in Bangkok and metropolitan areas. Examples of products sold include:
Croissant Waffle, French Butter Croissant, Almond Croissant, Brioche, Brittany Butter, and Truffle Brioche

(3.2) Marketing and Competition

The bread market is a very competitive market. Besides the competition for quality, cleanliness, deliciousness
and nutritional value to make customers choose their own bread first. Today, bread also competes in manufacturing innovation to make a
difference, diversifying products to be interesting. From the economic conditions that have not recovered, as a result, consumer purchasing
power is decreasing and slowing down spending. Amatissimo bread is a premium product. It has a unique taste and target to the mid-
to-upper-end who have purchasing power, reasonable selling prices and to provide cost-effectiveness in consumption. Therefore, it does
not have much impact.
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(8.3) Procurement of Products or Services

The Company recognizes the quality of products that consumers can receive as a priority. Therefore, it is strict
with all stages of production. It starts with the recruitment process for trusted raw material vendors such as American-European Products Co.,
Ltd., Repeture Kulynare (Thailand) Co., Ltd. up to the delivery of goods to consumers. The production facility has designed a building structure
with a good air circulation system and sufficient light. With modern production tools available, the products are produced in consistent quality
with the same standard.

1.2.3. Assets used in business undertaking
- on Attachment 4
1.2.4. Jobs that have not yet been delivered

- None -

1.3 Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies
1.8.1 Shareholding Structure of the Group of Companies
The Company’s major business is the distribution of goods in the domestic market, by considering the ethics of trade,
risk management principles and business management that is systematic, transparent, auditable and in compliance with good corporate
governance principles. The Company strives to move forwards for excellence in business, by placing importance on the personnel in
the organization, motivating all employees to work happily in a friendly environment and improving creativity, originality and initiative. The
Company encourages to support learning and development opportunities to all employees, in order to be able to utilize their competence
with full efficiency.
* The Company does not have joint venture partnership but there is one subsidiary, namely Amatissimo Company
Limited, involved in the bakery business both manufacture and distribution of breads, bakeries, foods and beverages.
Total number of shares is 76.92%.
e Distribution of shareholding by nationality as of Book of Shareholders’ Registration as at March 24, 2022

Overview Juristic Persons Individual Persons
Nationality = Number of | Number of o Number of | Number of o Number of | Number of o
Shareholders Shares ° Shareholders Shares ’ Shareholders Shares ’
Thai 575 59,369,540 98.95 33| 30,217,735 50.37 542 29,148,405 48.58
Foreigner 4 630,460 1.05 0 0 0.00 4 630,460 1.05
Total 579 60,000,000 100.00 33| 30,221,135 50.37 546 29,778,865 49.63
e Cross-shareholding as at March 24, 2022
OCC’s OCC’s
Rank Company Name Shareholding in Shareholding Major Shareholder ' Cross Shareholding
other Company (%) (%)
1. 1C.C. International Public Company Limited 0.55% 19.73 v 4
Saha Pathana Inter-Holdin
2. , el 0.06% 14.36 4 4
Public Company Limited

The Company has a cross—shareholding structure with major shareholders, which there is no significant effect to the
Company. Such cross-shareholdings are not of the nature conflicting with nor contradicting to the Notification of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board No. TordJor 28/2551 regarding “Application for and Approval of Offer for Sale of Newly Issued Shares” No. 14.

* Distribution of Minority Shareholdings (Free Float Shares)

As per free float shares report as at March 24, 2022, which stipulated the right to attend the 28" Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders on April 25, 2022, shareholding ratio of the Board of Directors, managers and the management including those involved
and those who have relationship, held the total share of the Company equaled to 13.89 %, >5% shareholders including those involved
with 55.50%. Ratio of free float holding shares equaled 30.61% of all total issued shares.

e Juristic persons which the Company holding shares over 10 %

Amatissimo Co., Ltd.
Head Office 120/4 Soi Ramkhamhaeng 112, Saphan Sung Sub-district, Saphan Sung
District, Bangkok 10240

Type of Business Manufacture and distribution of breads, bakeries, foods and beverages
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Registered Capital Baht 19,500,000 with fully paid, divided into 195,000 common shares
with par value of Baht 100 per share

TEL. 085-4829977
FAX -
Shareholding Ratio 76.92%

1.3.2 Persons who may cause the Conflict of Interest - None -

1.8.3 Relationship with the Business Group of Major Shareholders

OCC Public Company Limited is a member of SAHA Group. The Company’s major business is the distribution of
goods in the domestic market, by being the distributor of cosmetics and clothes under the trademarks from international and domestic
copyrights.

Cosmetic Products

1) Procedure of import goods are operated by Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd., and Albion Co., Ltd.,
Japan. 2) Goods from domestic research and development, there are collaborations with the companies in SAHA Group such
as International Laboratories Co., Ltd. and S&J International Enterprise Public Company Limited. These 2 cosmetic manufacturers
meet international standards.

Clothing Products Most of the Company’s clothing products are manufactured from SAHA Group’s companies which
are well known with reliable quality, such as Thanulax Public Company Limited, Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd. and Thai Gunze Co., Ltd.

1.3.4 Shareholders

¢ Major Shareholders

List of Top Ten Major Shareholders as Record Date at March 24, 2022
Rank Shareholders Number of Share % Shareholding
1. .C.C. International Public Company Limited 11,839,980 19.733
2. Mr. Samrerng Manoonpol 9,241,540 15.403
S Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited 8,615,400 14.359
4. I.D.F. Co., Ltd. 3,136,680 5.228
& Mr. Boonkiet Chokwatana 2,844,335 4.741
6. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 1,831,325 3.052
7. Watsadoramai Co., Ltd. 1,624,570 2.708
8. Mr. Boonyasithi Chokwatana 1,357,490 2.262
9. Mrs. Revadee Dhanasarnsilp 994,960 1.658
10. Mr.Thananun Ua-Arak 931,990 1.663
Total 42,418,270 70.697

1.4 Amount of registered Capital and paid-up Capital
1.4.1 As at December 31, 2022, the Company has the registered capital at Baht 80,000,000. Paid-up capital was
Baht 60,000,000 divided into 60,000,000 common shares with a par value of Baht 1 per share.
1.4.2 Other types of shares with different rights or conditions differ from ordinary shares
- None -
1.4.3 Shares or convertible securities of the Company to be underlying securities for issuing investment units of
mutual funds for foreign investors
- None -
1.5 Other Securities Issuance
1.5.1  Convertible Issuance
- None -
1.5.2 Bond Securities
- None -
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1.6 Policy on Dividend Payment
The Company has a policy to pay annual dividends to shareholders at the rate of not less than 0.20 baht per share or
is equivalent to 20% of par value. This is primarily based on the Company’s performance and economic conditions. Once the Board of
Directors has approved dividend payment, then the matter shall be proposed to the shareholders’ meeting for further approval.
The Company pays dividends in compliance with the Company’s policy. The dividend payment rate from operations
during the past 4 years are summarized as follows:

Year 2021 2020 2019 2018
(Interim Dividend)
Annual Net Profit (Baht) (2,887,428.00) 5,112,927.00 31,5659,805.00 169,094,491.00
Value of Share (Baht) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Dividend per Share (Baht) 0.05 0.15 0.25 0.80
Total Amount (Baht) 3,000,000.00 9,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 48,000,000.00
Proportion (%) Annual Net Profit N/A 176.02% 47.53% 28.39%

Subsidiary The Company’s subsidiary has a policy to pay dividend from cash exceeding the necessary from normal
business operation.

2. Risk Management

2.1 Risk Management Policy and Plan
The Company places importance on good organizational management for the organization to develop and progress steadily.
Stable business expansion have a stable financial position and reduce damage from the environment that may occur which will affect
personnel, assets, business operations including the image of the organization.
The Company therefore deems it appropriate to implement a risk management system so that relevant persons understand the
principles of risk management and apply them appropriately.
Risk Management Policy
1. Provide integrated risk management throughout the organization. By being consistent and included in the organization’s
strategic plans and processes. This includes defining risk management as one of the steps in preparing a business plan
budgeting investment decision and project management able to successfully achieve the goals.
2. Risk management must cover both external and internal risks. Including the risk of damage uncertainty and lost opportunities.
There is a process for identifying, analyzing, managing, monitoring, and reporting risks on a continuous, regular basis and
throughout the organization so that the risk management process is the same standard throughout the organization.
4. Promote and develop risk management as part of the operational process according to the principles of good corporate
governance.
5. Assigned to have an effective communication process. Including training and seminars to encourage everyone to realize the
importance of risk management.
Risk Management Plan
1. Determine policies, objectives, scope of operations, duration and activities for implementation. Including the designation of
responsible persons for operations in accordance with the risk management policy.
2. Identify risks by considering any risks associated with the operations of the organization, such as finance, operations
management, marketing, including risks that affect the reputation of the business, etc.
3. Specify the degree of damage that may occur from each type of risk and prioritizing the risks from the results of the above
risk analysis.
Determine measures or methods to deal with the identified risks.
5. Preparation of risk management reports and evaluation of risk management.
Follow up and review the sufficiency of the policy and the risk management system to ensure the effectiveness of the system
and continually comply with the specified policy.
2.2 Risk Factors of the Company’s Business Operations
1) Operational Risks
The Company is the distributor of Cosmetics, Hair care and Apparels. The ratio of import products is 0.6 1% while 99.39%
belongs to domestic products that are purchased from international license’s manufacturers. Present day, Pias Intercosmex (Thailand)
Co., Ltd. is the Company’s major supplier and the purchase amount of previous year was Baht 131.45 million or equal to 29.51% from
the Company’s total purchase.
Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd. is the licenser of the Company’s major products and the Company is the distributor of these
brands in Thailand. Therefore, there is no business obstacle for the continuous operation in the future.
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2) Economic Risk

The Company has managed risks by closely monitoring the situation. Carry out planning for various measures and strategies to
cope with potential impacts ensuring that the company will be able to overcome obstacles and lead the business steadlily.

Executives use a new management concept. Assigned all employees the opportunity to participate in driving the organization by
being open to ideas and seeking a variety of business channels in order to cover the main customer groups of the company and adjust
strategies to respond to customer needs quickly keep up with the situation and embed these into corporate culture.

3) Risks related to changing customer behavior

Now, consumers can access information instantly via mobile devices such as smartphones and tablets, resulting in purchasing
decisions can be changed at any time. And consumers will always find information before making a purchase decision. This is a radical
change in behavior from customers receiving various information from a single media and making a purchase decision. As a result, the
company added communication channels, both online and offline to cover access to customer information.

The company focuses on developing good quality products at a reasonable price to support the needs of more specific groups
of consumers create a good feeling in the minds of consumers. At the same time, it also creates incentives for consistently attractive
marketing and match specific target groups to maintain customer base and expanding the new customer base who want to try more.
Including having a strong customer relationship management system. It is to expand the market base to be wider.

The company has increased communication channels to cover all channels by increasing the proportion of communication more
online in order to be in line with the changing behavior of media consumption. It also added distribution channels to online channels. So
that customers have more purchasing options.

4) The risk of relying on personnel

Personnel is a very important factor in running a business which requires specialized knowledge and expertise of each division
and develop work to keep pace with changes in the current environment that is constantly evolving all the time and is highly competitive
which is a matter that the company attaches great importance to the company has established a policy to encourage all employees to
have steady career advancement. Knowledge is developed competence and organize training seminars continuously for personnel. The
remuneration is set at an appropriate level and can compete with other operators in the same industry. Create a good environment within
the organization and provide good welfare. Including strengthening good relationships between personnel within the company to build
morale and encouragement for employees to work with the company in the long term.

5) New product development and procurement risk

Due to modern trade with more competition, the company must have the ability to adapt in order to make the business more
competitive and grow in the long run. There are various approaches depending on the business strategy. However, developing new
products to meet the needs of customers is one of the strategies used by businesses to gain competitive advantage. And continuous
improvement creates effective long-term sustainability. The company always focuses on researching consumer behavior. Ask for the
opinions of the customer group rating including various needs both before releasing the product and after product release to bring
information obtained from consumer behavior research. To develop new product models to meet the needs. And in line with the behavior
of consumers of all ages and lifestyles, both in terms of function and fashion based on good quality products at a cost-effective price.

6) Financial risk

The assets and liabilites as shown on the Balance Sheet consisted of cash equivalent, shortterm investment, trade accounts
receivable and payable, and loans. The accounting policies in recording and measurement these financial instrument are disclosed in the
released notes to the financial statements. The Company has reduced the risks as follows:

(1) Risks on Debts

Risk on credit granting may happen if debtors become unable to comply with previous agreements. The Company has policy
to avoid this kind of risks by having financial status analysis, tight credit control and closely follow-up. The maximum of its risk will equal to the
next book value after reduction of the allowance for doubtful debit shown on the balance sheet.

(2) Risks on Interest Rates

Risk on the change of interest rates may cause a damage on the Company form present term and next terms. However the
Company believes it is able to manage this risk as the Company has set a plan and to monitor the situation as all time.

(8) Risks on Exchange Rates

As at December 31, 2022, The Company had no foreign currency loan but there was a slightly import purchase amount.
The Management believes there is minimized risk on currency exchange in the low level.

3. Driving Business for Sustainability
3.1 Sustainability Management Policy and Goals
The Company is committed to conduct business and to develop the organization in accordance with corporate governance

principles to ensure its business to achieve ongoing sustainable growth, which can deliver excellent returns to all stakeholders. There is
an establishment of an operational framework that covers the principles of good corporate governance and appropriate risk management
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with considering the current situation, trend, direction of change and sustainable factors either internally or externally including relevant
requirements, rules, and standards. The Company takes into account the environment, society, economy and corporate governance of all
sectors of stakeholders. Along with enhancing the skills and developing the potential of employees to work professionally, striving to develop
and offer good products and excellent services which are valuable to society.

Environment: Protecting the environment and controlling the use of resources knowingly according to the Sufficiency
Economy Philosophy, to mitigate the impact of business operations towards ecosystems.

Society: Conducting business with responsibility, take into account the human rights principles, labor protection and
safety hygiene. As well as to foster pleasant working environment, take care and treat employees with fairness, improve knowledge and
skill of employees continuously, this includes building trust with all groups of stakeholders

Economy: Developing products and services, supply chain management and responsibilities to consumers

Corporate Governance: Complying with Good Corporate Governance Principles, business ethics, applicable laws, criteria
and relevant regulations, disclosure of information, accurate and transparent performance, including anti-corruption.

3.2 Managing Impact on Stakeholders in the Business Value Chain
3.2.1
The Company places importance on the development of Supply Chain by managing its business from upstream to
downstream consistently. We begin with the selection of environmentally friendly trading partners and manufacturers, in order to ensure our
clients that the products under the Company’s operations are produced with fine quality, quantity and appropriate price for responding to

Business Value Chain

customers’ needs. The Company operates business in compliance with good governance and builds trust with all stakeholders, as well as to
support all concerned parties to collaborate creatively for sustainable growth and development together.

Factors of Production Management : Select products from trading partners and manufacturers who have policies
to source raw materials and packaging, including environmentally friendly production processes, and continuously obtain production
standards.

Operation : Sourcing of high quality raw materials for product development, which are ready to distribute for consumer’s
safety and be friendly to the environment.

Marketing and Sales : Each product has usage directions and information on label to raise awareness of the proper
use of it for the utmost consumers’ benefit, in accordance with applicable law. The Company’s staff are also available at counter sales to
provide advice or update knowledge for consumers’ benefit.

After - Sales Service : The Company places importance on customers’ confidentiality and set up the Customer Relations
Unit to be a center to receive complaints, suggestions and consult about the products and services from the customers. Customers can
contact Tel. no. 02-295-1333 and Fax no. 02-295-04 11, which the Company has provided to the staff who are ready to provide service
and process to ensure that all requirements are responded promptly to the satisfied customers and general service users.

3.2.2 Stakeholder Analysis of the Business Value Chain

The Company places importance to all groups of stakeholders, either internally or externally, by communicating and
listening to all comments through various channels. Expectations issues of stakeholders which consists of 7 main groups, are taking to
operate as follows:

Stakeholders

Participation Channels

Expectation

Operation

1) Shareholders/
Investors

AGM

Investor Relation
Website / E-mail
Company Visit

Good return on investments

Good performance and continued
growth

Manage business with transparency
and verifiable

Information Disclosure

Comply with good corporate
governance principles

Develop communication channels
with shareholders and investors

2) Employees

Conversation with employees
Intranet System / Company’s
Website

Survey Satisfaction
Complaint via whistleblowing
Channels / Complaint
(Whistleblowing Policy)

Proper remuneration and benefits
Progress and stability of Life
Quality of life and safety at work
Improve knowledge, work skills to
enhance working ability

Determine appropriate
remuneration and benefits

Settle career progression path
Build up love and bond to be
corporate culture

Promote knowledge improvement
and training

3) Customers

Customers’ satisfaction survey
Website / E-mail / telephone
Customers Relations Call
Center

Whistleblowing Channels
(Whistleblowing Policy)

Good quality with reasonable price
Safety in product usage
Communicate product information
clearly

Receive complaint and find solutions

Good products with innovation
Develop various distribution
channels for easily approaching
Manage complaints rapidly with
efficiently
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Stakeholders Participation Channels Expectation Operation

Fair business operation Ethical business operation
Jointly develop products

Collaborate against fraud and

4) Business Partners | * Meeting
* Website / E-mail / Telephone | e Business growth
* Whistleblowing Channels

(Whistleblowing Policy) corruption
5) Community e Website / E-mail / ¢ Social contribution e Carry out CSR continuously
Social Media ¢ Transparent business operation * Comply the practice of good
corporate governance principles
6) Environment * Website / E-mail / ¢ Use natural resources effectively ¢ Implementation of environmental
Social Media ¢ Reduce effects on the environmental laws
* Energy conservation and global
warming reduction
7) Government e Letters Meeting / Discussion | ¢ Conform to the legal regulations * Assess compliance of the law
sectors * Corporate Social Responsibility e Conduct transparent business
e Participation in public sectors’
activities

3.3 Sustainability Management in Environment Dimension

3.3.1  Environmental Policies and Guidelines

Corporate Social Responsibility, Community and Environment are important policies of the Company. The Company has
conducted training courses to educate employees about the environment, in order to instil them to have conscience of treating good
deeds, learning to give and share as well as to engage in behavior of good citizenship by having responsibility to the society, community and
environment. The Company cultivates awareness among employees to reduce waste either inside or outside the organization by minimizing
the usage of materials that may cause pollution or the causes of imbalance of the natural environment. There is a campaign for employees
to jointly reduce electricity consumption by using stairs instead of elevators and turning off the electric lights and air conditioners during lunch
break. Communication via internet and intranet are encouraged to reduce paper consumption but to implement the Reuse in accordance with
the 3R Principles: Reduce, Reuse and Recycle. Employees are also encouraged to participate in conserving the environment, Thai culture
and traditions to stay with the Thai society forever.

3.3.2 Environmental Management

The Company operates its business as a distributor of cosmetic products, clothes, hair care products and hair salon services.
Therefore, the Company’s operation contributes indirectly to greenhouse gas release. The most greenhouse gas-generating activity is to hire
other parties to produce various goods for the Company, which in such cases is considered to be an activity that produces Carbon Footprint
in Scope lll or Other Indirect Energy Emissions as majority.

The type of activities that generate greenhouse gas are categorized as follows:

1. The activities of the Company that generate Direct Emissions are from burning fuel to drive vehicles to transport
employees or goods at the destinations, refrigerant used in air conditioning systems, methane generation from the
wellhead systems, methane production in wastewater treatment systems and use of fire extinguishing agents etc.

2. The activities of the Company that generate Indirect Emissions, such as electricity consumption inside the
organization, etc.

3. The activities of the Company that generate Other Direct Emissions, such as to hire other outsourcing
manufacturers, consumption of papers and water, occasional travels for working, regular round trips between
accommodation and the organization of employees, etc.

Managing the natural resources to acquire maximum benefits and sustainability as follows:

1. Energy Management

The Company provides regular maintenance of electrical control equipment systems and air conditioning systems for
efficiency. Energy saving policies are defined such as, a specific time to set air conditioner to turn on and turn off from 8.00 am. to 4.45 p.m.
(turn off 15 minutes prior to closing on office hour), turn off the computer screen while it's not being used, turn off the lights at lunchtime and
the “Take the Stairs” campaign by using the stairs instead of elevators, etc.
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e Overall of Electricity Consumption in the Company’s Buildings for 2022
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In this regard, the Company and its personnel share a common goal to save energy by continuously decreasing the number
of units of electricity consumption in office buildings.

2. Water Management

The Company provides regular maintenance, inspection and maintenance of water supply systems and water utilities. There is
a campaign for economical use of water such as turn off the tap when not in use, use the water not exceeding necessity, turn off the water
when not in use. Check the faucet after discontinuation to see whether it is completely close.

3. Garbage, Waste and Pollution Management

The Company manages to sort garbage and waste in the process of systematic business operations following to the 3R
principles (Reuse Reduce Recycle) in order to reduce the burden of waste disposal to those who take waste from the Company, coupled
with raising awareness and engaging with those involved. The Company also plans to measure indoor environmental quality and around
the establishment at least once a year. In 2022, it was found that air quality, smell, sound and light have standard as required by applicable
law. No case of refrigerant leakage was found from the use of air conditioning in office buildings. In the past, the Company has never been
complained by the residents nearby the Company about the effect of these things.

4. Greenhouse Gases (or GHG) Management

At present, the Company does not collect greenhouse gas emissions data in a formal manner but there have been ongoing
campaigns to save energy and conserve the environment. The Company’s employees collaborate to help save energy in various ways as well
as the use of resources in a meaningful way, as mentioned. The Company aims to develop natural resource conservation to be more efficient.

Since 2020, the Company has installed the Human OS Application to reduce paper consumption in the office, of which
employees can record time in/out at work, submit a leave approval request and on-site working hours. This includes the communication of
employees’ benefits through such applications instead of paper.

3.4 Sustainability Management in Social Dimension

3.4.1  Social Policy and Guidelines

The Company places importance on fundamental human rights of its employees and respect for equality to everyone. The
Company conducts its business in accordance with laws and respects human right principles, non-discriminatory, without discrimination of
gender, nationality, religion, political rights or any other matters. The Company has ethical policy and guidelines to operate its business, in
connection with employees to work under Thai labor law that strictly covers the protection of their human rights. All employees have the
rights for their arguments to prove themselves, in the case of guilty or fraud indicators on duties. There is no unfair dismissal. Employees are
educated to have knowledge about human rights principles in order to be implemented for their lives and workings. All employees have equal
rights, freedom and equality in their performance, as well as career progression.

3.4.2 Social Performance

Employees

Respect for human rights is defined in Corporate Governance Policy and Business Ethics of the Company, and this has
been communicated to all executives and employees to acknowledge and practice. Throughout these past years of business operations,
the Company has always complied with laws relating to human rights principles. Both men and women employees are treated equally and
equitably, non-employment of child labor and giving fundamental rights to employees as follows:

* Develop and increase employee potential continuously and regularly through coaching and instruction or development

projects and various training programs.
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* Fair employment Practices such as permission to leave of absence, transfer and to provide communication channels
between employees and management to listen to opinions from employees directly.

* Provision of medical expenses, life insurance and accident insurance, provident fund, subsidy to pay employees for
various cases, care for safety of employees by providing fire rehearsals, defense system and security activities.

Customers

The Company is committed to developing products and services with good quality and safety, to meet customer satisfaction.

The Company draws attention to providing the best thing to its customers in terms of quality and price, as well as to place importance on
customer confidentiality. The Company provides a customer relations unit for being a center to receive complaints, customer feedback and
consultation on products and services by contacting Tel. no. 02-295-1333 or Fax no. 02-295-04 11. The Company has arranged the staff
who are available to provide services and take action to the fullest extent so that all requests can be responded promptly to satisfy customers
and service users.

In 2022, there were no significant complaints from customers, while other complaints were taken into account by the

Company for consideration to analysis and promptly resolved, to prevent the defects from recurring. All these things are for giving to the
customers to get utmost satisfaction with the products and services of the Company because “You are our valued Customer”.
mmunity an i
The Company collaborates with other organizations to develop community and society as well as to enhance the preservation of
local cultures and traditions. This includes the building of good relationship between the Company and community and whole of society. Activities
that continuously give benefit to the society are encouraged to proceed such as the project “Inherit Palangpracharat, Develop Knowledge to Move
on the Career Path” by provide sending out the Company’s hair technicians to give haircuts to disadvantaged groups in different places.
3.5 Other Management
3.5.1  Fair Operating Practices
The Company’s Board of Directors recognizes and places importance to fair operating practices by taking into account
equality and not exploitative and honest in business operations, as well as to protect the benefit of stakeholders in accordance with good
corporate governance principles with the following management:

¢ The Company values important to all employees, who are the most valuable resources. The Company promotes and
supports the best care for the welfare and quality of life of employees, by offering fair and appropriate remuneration
under a happy working atmosphere. Welfare for the Company’s employees include annual health checkup, provident
fund, provision of group accident insurance policy covering all cases of death, grant in case of death of an employee
or parent of an employee or spouse and vaccination against new strains of influenza etc.

e The Company has consistently valued and held all customers accountable. The Company is committed to ensuring
satisfaction and maintaining a sustainable relationship by focusing on products’ development, caring for and being
responsible for customers. Customers must receive products/services with good quality, safety, reasonable price and
meet the standard as defined. Customers’ information shall not be used for the Company’s benefit and related parties.
In this regard, the Company has a customer relations (Call Center) Tel. no. 02-295-1333 for accepting complaints,
suggestions and for consulting on products and services from the customers.

e The Company treats its trade partners in accordance with good faith trading conditions with equality and fairness.
Both parties build a good connection among each other to exchange knowledge and jointly develop to add value for
goods and services. Both parties respect each other’s rights and strictly adhere to the fulfilment of the promises and
commitments made to partners. To operate business with a code of conduct, do not call, receive or agree to receive
property or any other benefit other than trade agreements.

e The Company treats all its either loan payables or creditors through strict compliance with contractual terms and
conditions. The Company paid sums to loan payables and/or creditors in accordance with the agreed credit terms
without any default.

* The Company complies with the framework of honest trade competition by adhering to business practices fairly within
the framework of the law strictly. The Company adheres equally to the rules of good competition. In the previous year,
the company was never engaged in any trade dispute with other competitors.

e The Company attaches importance to supervise and protect the rights of all shareholders equally and fairly for
fundamental rights under the law, the right to obtain information, the right to attend shareholders’ meetings and voting
cast, the right to express opinion freely at the shareholders’ meeting, the right to receive appropriate remuneration,
including the measures to supervise and prevent the use of internal information about confidential news.

352 Respect Human Rights

The Company places importance on respecting human rights, by taking into account equality, non-discrimination in nationality,

religion, motherland, gender, skin color, age, physical fitness, sexual orientation, political opinion, status, education or any other conditions, as
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well as respect for individuality and human dignity in accordance with international norms.

The Company recognizes that respect and abuse of human rights is an element of strengthening the sustainable growth
of its business. Therefore, the policy on this matter has been established in the Corporate Governance and Business Ethics Policy and
communicates to all executives and employees to acknowledge and practice.

Throughout the past business operations, the Company has always practiced in compliance with the laws that are related to
human rights’ principles. Male and female employees are hired and treated equally and equitably. The Company does not employ child labor.
The Company also provides work opportunities for persons with disabilities. Basic human rights of employees are as follows:

- To develop and increase employee potential continuously and regularly through coaching and instruction or development
projects and various training courses. To have an opportunity to visit and take study courses abroad, as well as to have an
assignment to work as a team.

- Fair employment Practices such as permission to leave of absence, transfer and to provide communication channels
between employees and management to listen to opinions from employees directly.

- Welfares that meet requirement of employees such as provision of medical expenses, life insurance and accident
insurance, provident fund, subsidy to pay employees for various cases, care for safety of employees by providing fire
rehearsals, defense system and security activities

3.5.3 Fair Treatment of Labor

The Company recognizes human rights and equality, by treating those involved fairly and does not discriminate against any
person due to similarities or differences no matter physical fitness or mind, nationality, political opinion, status, education or any other matters.

In business operations, the Company’s employees are the most important human resources. Apart from the development
of employees in terms of skill, knowledge and working capability, the Company emphasizes and places importance on treating employees
with fairess in all aspects. Fair employment based on the value of working performance by determining remuneration and various welfare
to comply with the laws and employment conditions of the labor market. Treat existing and new employees fairly without management bias
of employment. There are contracts for employment and other terms of employment or other benefits in the same regulations and standard
frameworks such as payroll or reward based on the level of working achievement and fair assignment. Employees have an opportunity to grow
in the Company based on their individual abilities. Employees have an opportunity to participate in expressing different opinions independently
and creatively as individuals who have equality in the organization. To ensure that employees are fairly treated, the Company has defined a
clear written process in Employee Code of Conduct. Employees have independence to complain for various matters that they are not treated
fairly or equally.

354 Consumer Responsibility

The Company continues to develop and innovate to achieve better products and services for consumer satisfaction as well
as the highest benefits through efficient products and services. Along with provision of the information deemed necessary to make decisions
without hiding the facts. There is a customer data storage system for keeping customers’ secrets without posting or taking advantage of the
Company or other persons without permission. The company also has channels to receive feedback. Receive product and service issues to
satisfy consumers.

3.5.5 Environment Preservation

The Company is committed to place importance on the selection of products that are safe for consumers and environmentally
friendly. We also select and develop products with manufacturers by continuously seeking raw materials and packaging as well as standardized
production processes. Natural ingredients are selected to be contained in KMA Peach Me Cleansing Baim and Peach Me 3 in 1 Micellar
Cleansing Water with Peach Extracts, which help nourish and moisturize the skin. Therefore, it is safe for consumers. The packaging is also
selected to be able to be recycled for waste reduction and to reduce environmental problems, which are a major problem in the world today.
The Company continues to cultivate a sense of social responsibility and environment for employees at all levels to be committed to the same
approach.

3.5.6 Innovation and Dissemination of Innovation, which is obtained through Social Responsibility, Environment &
Stakeholders

Previous year, the Company has selected the Demi brand, which is the licensee of Assort Allia C Hair Color product. This
product has innovative development of Hair Coloring formula for intense shade of colors with shiny look. It preserves hair from dryness,
harshness and frizz from 2 innovations. Oxy-Stabilizer Innovation, is developed from corns, under the copyright of Demi, it helps capture Metal
lons that will destroy the important substances in the coloring process and then complete the color changing process. Therefore, the color
of hair provides a shiny intense effect. Color Delivery System Innovation, is the unique formula of the substance that has properties that easily
carry the primaries into the inner core of the hair, without using a high amount of alkali for opening the scales as wide as possible. There is a
color-carrying substance in the hair core, so hair is full of color. Therefore, the color of dying hair is bright with shiny beauty, as well as to help
reduce the pungent smell on the hair and reduces the problem of dry, damaged hair and lack of shine. 153 color shades are available.
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3.5.7 Personal Information Management

The Company recognizes the importance of personal data protection. Therefore, the Company has established a personal
data protection policy as a framework for the company’s business objectives. This includes: 1) Definition 2) Collection of Personal Data
3) Purpose for Collection of Personal Data 4) Disclosure of Personal Data 5) Operation of Personal Data Protection 6) Rights of Data
Subjects 7) Use of Cookies 8) Change of the Personal Data Protection Policy and 9) Contact Channels of the Personal Data Protection
Officer. Details of the Company’s Personal Data Protection Policy are disclosed on www.occ.co.th

3.5.8 Consumer Protection in use of Goods and Services

The Company is primarily engaged in the distribution of cosmetics and clothing products. The Company has a policy
to conduct business by complying with the Consumer Protection Act, and strictly comply with the conditions of the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) to keep fairness to consumers. It has established a procedure for checking labels of cosmetics/ dietary supplements as
well as texts contained in all kinds of advertising materials that are in accordance with the criteria, announcements and relevant law. There is
no over advertising or misleading the significant theme of the goods or services. In case the Company receives complaints from stakeholders
such as consumers or investigations from the various departments. The Company has established procedures for receiving complaints to
determine solutions to solve it, such as sampling delivery or result of investigation to investigate/review inside the Company, to ensure that the
Company does not act in violation of the requirements of the law.

4. Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

4.1 Analysis of Operating Results and Financial Position

1. Ovenview of Operating Results and Financial Position in the Past Year

In 2022 the Company had total revenue of Baht 876.64 million. It increased by Baht 113.81 million or equivalent to 14.92 %
compared to the previous year. It divided by revenue from sales amounted Baht 860.11 million, which increased Baht 141.43 milion or
equivalent to 19.68%, and by other revenues amounted Baht 16.53 million, which decreased Baht 27.62 million or equivalent to 62.55%.
The total expense was Baht 901.4 1 million. It increased by Baht 135.69 milion compared to the previous year. This represented an increase
of 17.72%. Net loss after deduction of corporate income tax was Baht 24.77 million, compared to the previous year, the increase was Baht
21.88 million. This represents an increase of 757.72%.

As at December 31, 2022, the Company had total assets of Baht 1,237.33 million. It increased Baht 14.54 milion from the
previous year or 1.19%. Current assets increased Baht 27.69 million and non-current assets decreased Baht 13.15 million. The Current assets
consisted of cash and cash equivalent decreased Baht 24.14 million. Trade receivables and other current receivables decreased by Baht
4.20 million from effective debt management control from effective debt management control. Inventories decreased by Baht 57.41 million,
due to efficient inventory management by adjusting the quantity of orders in accordance with consumers’ demand. Other current financial
assets increased by Baht 110.67 milion gained from the investments in shortterm equities. Other current assets increased by Baht 2.77
million. Non-current assets consisted of other non-current financial assets decreased by Baht 0.42 million as in line with the adjustment of the
value of equity investments at fair value. Investment properties decreased by Baht 1.70 million from depreciation deduction. Buildings and net
equipment increased by Baht 3.18 million. Right-of-use assets decreased by Baht 4.22 milion which was the result of write-off according to
service life. Net intangible assets decreased by Baht 3.23 million. Deferred tax assets decreased by Baht 1.09 milion and other non-current
assets decreased by Baht 2.59 million.

Overview of the Thai economy in 2022, it was a gradual continuous recovery, driven by the easing of the COVID-19 situation.
Therefore, economic activity gradually resumed normally. In addition, the tourism sector has started to grow due to the gradual easing of
international travel restrictions since the middle of the year. Private consumption began to expand, according to the recovery in household
incomes. This is combined with measures to support government spending through various projects continuously from the previous year and
measures to mitigate the impact of the energy price crisis. However, domestic purchasing power remains pressured by rising cost of living
due to rapidly rising inflation in the direction of rising oil prices as well as household debt that remains high. The export sector expanded well
in the first half of the year but it began to slow down in the last quarter of the year. This is in line with signs of a global economic slowdown.
Meanwhile, the manufacturing sector of this year remained sluggish amid a shortage of manufacturing parts.

According to the economic condition that has not yet been recovered entirely, there were both faster and slower recovery in
business. Business operations were also fraught with high uncertainty. There were constantly competitors entering the market, therefore, the
Company has implemented strategic management, while the situations were closely monitored along with changing tactics both proactively
and defensively. Personnel skills are developed continuously, to be able to achieve the intended goal. It's a result that the growth rate of sales
amount is higher when compared to the previous year.
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There are also other factors that impact the performance of the work to enhance, support or hinder business operations such as:
(1) Issuing several measures to maintain the level of consumption inside the country, in order to mitigate economic impact of
the government and related units such as the measure; Shopping Well, Having a Return, We Travel Together Project, project
to increase purchasing power for state welfare card holders, project to increase purchasing power for those who need extra
help and the measure “Half Each”. These measures have contributed to supporting domestic demand and reducing the
burden of public expenditure, as well as increasing income for small entrepreneurs and manufacturers throughout the supply
chain. At the end of the year there was also the support that was driven by adjusting minimum wage levels nationwide.

(2) Inflation rate was rising in line with the increase in the price of energy and consumer goods. Therefore, it affected the
increase of people’s cost of living. The Thai Baht was getting stronger at the end of the year, compared to the U.S. Dollar.
However, the swing of the baht throughout the year did not significantly affect the cost of raw materials and finished import
goods from overseas.

1.1 Policy and Plan for Adaptation

(1) Regarding the competitive market condition that is more aggressive, existing and new competitors are
constantly entering the market by implementing a variety of dimensional strategies to engage in market share. The Company
has established a strategy to maintain an existing customer base and has also attempted to increase the number of new
customers by organizing events at point of sale to encourage product trials. There is an advertisement for the product’s brands
to meet with target groups to raise awareness and interest in trying the products. It has also expanded more sales channels
via online.

(2) The Company places importance on the development of outstanding innovative products, for responding to
the consumers’ demand at every occasion. The Company has improved the quality of service in various kinds, to build the
highest confidence and satisfaction for consumers. The Company also places importance on analyzing customers’ data both
internally and externally, to further develop the design of products and services to cover all objectives and usage of customers

(3) The Company encourages all levels of employees’ knowledge and competency by conducting the training
courses to increase skills based on business growth strategy, in order to have the potential to lead the business towards
sustainable excellence. To appoint the “Culture Working Team” to join the campaign to improve 6 core values of corporate
culture under the “BEAUTY from within” theme by establishing an action plan for each working unit to have cooperation
stepping towards the same destination. Collaborative working culture has created mind opening and encourages new working
concepts. As well as to place importance on professional team collaboration, to encourage knowledge sharing exchange and
learn together between groups of employees in each profession through media communication inside the Company.

1.2 Performance of each Product Line

In 2022, the Company had total sales revenue of Baht 860.11 million. It increased by 19.68% from the previous year.
This was due to the economic conditions that started to recover continuously. Resumption of all points of sale compared to
previous year that some points of sales were closed in accordance with the government’s lockdown measures in Q3 of 2021.
It has also benefited from the recovery of domestic consumption and the recovery of the tourism sector. Sales revenue gained
from 2 major product lines, which sales amount are as follows:

(A) Cosmetics and Others

Total sales amount was Baht 761.79 million or equivalent to 88.57% of the Company’s total sales. Compared to

the previous year, it was an increase of 14.84%. It came from more proactive marketing to expand the customer base. Variety
of advertising materials were selected to create awareness. Marketing strategy has been adapted and organized to stimulate
expense at point-of-sale continuously. To emphasize on building good relationships with existing customers for keeping the
love and bond in the brand to be in mind at all times. In addition, we also work with partners to organize sales promotions on
various occasions to stimulate customer expenditure.
(B) Apparels
Total sales amount was Baht 98.32 million or equivalent to 11.43% of the Company’s total sales. Compared to the
previous year, an increase was 77.64%. This is due to a quantitative increase in product expansion to large customer group.
Products have designs that truly meet the needs of customers with a selection of high-quality fabrics and materials for fine
sewing as well as reasonable selling prices. Therefore, customers have confidence and satisfaction when wearing. Provide
sales promotion regularly, both existing products or and new products for introduction. Discounting activities are held for
increasing sales volumes and attract consumers who have never used the Company’s products to test them.
1.3 Performance versus Estimate
In the previous year, the Company didn't show estimates of performance on the Application for the Offer for Sale of Securities.




1.4 Report of Auditors
In the previous year, the Company’s Auditors has audited the Company’s financial statement and expressed an opinion
that it was accurate as materially in compliance with the standard of financial report.
1.5 han f Important A nting Polici
The change of important accounting policies in 2022, has no significant effects related to the Company’s financial
statement report.
2. Profitable Ability
2.1 Revenue
In 2022, the Company had total revenue of Baht 876.64 million, compared to the previous year, it increased by Baht
113.81 million or equivalent to 14.92%. The major income earned from the total sales was Baht 860.11 million, it increased
by 19.68% of previous year and earned from the 2 major product lines as mentioned above.
2.2 Cost of Sales and Expense
In previous 2022, the cost of goods sold was Baht 494.44 milion or equivalent to 57.49 % of total net sales that
increased from previous year 0.49%. It earned from the sales of high-cost goods in greater proportion and to have promotional
activities for clearing existing stocks. The amount of cost of distribution was Baht 269.28 million, increased by Baht 48.25
million or 21.83%. This is due to an increase in expenses of employees, to increase motivation to generate sales amount and
marketing expense to create awareness and encourage customers to make purchases faster and more frequently, in line with
an increase of sales amount. Administrative expenses was Baht 140.80 million. It's increased by Baht 7.99 million or equivalent
to 6.02%, which mainly earned from the rental fee of the computer system and recording an impairment loss of investments.
Financing costs, which consist of leasehold interest and interest on loan payments, amounted to Baht 1.32 million. It
decreased Baht 0.43 million or equivalent 24.54%, which came from Interest payment of shortterm loans.
2.3 Other Revenues
Other revenues that did not earn from the regular operation was Baht 16.53 million. It decreased Baht 27.62 million from
the previous year or equivalent to 62.55 %. It was the decrease of profit from sale of empty land, located next to Home Pro
Rama 3 branch, which amounted to Baht 35.40 million in previous year. There were some other incomes that increased in
number, which earned from dividends, received interest and promotional contributions from suppliers and the others.
24 Profit
After deducting the cost of goods sold, sales and administrative expenses from total sales revenues, the Company has
lost Baht 44.41 million on the operating result. The loss decreased Baht 0.40 million or equivalent 0.90% compared with
previous year according to the above mentioned reasons. But when including other revenues and deducting the payable
interest, the loss before the corporation income tax was decreased to Baht 29.19 milion and the income tax income
amounted to Baht 4.43 million. Therefore, the net loss was Baht 24.77 million. The loss was increased Baht 21.88 million or
equivalent 757.72%.
If compared to the cash flow statement, the ratio of net cash from operations toward net profit was -2.77 times, while it
was 10.48 times in previous year. However, the Company has a good level of liquidity.
25 Return on Shareholders’ Equity
The Company paid a dividend for the year 2021 at the rate of Baht 0.05 per share. As an amount Baht 3 million or
equivalent -103.90% of the net loss for 202 1. Dividends were paid from retained earnings taxed that the Company had paid
to the rate of 25%.
3. Ability to Asset Management
3.1 Quality of Receivables

Total amount of account receivables aging over 3 months, was Baht 2.33 million, compared to previous year it increased

9.12 % and if compared by proportion, it was only 1.99% of the total trade receivables. This reflected the management of
credit that remained at a good level as well as accelerated tracking of money closely. The Company has set up the reserve
for doubtful accounts amounting to Baht 3.6 1 million by implementing the same regulations as previous year.

3.2 Inventories and Impairment

As at the year end, the inventory amount was Baht 143.84 million. The Company reserved the allowance of inventory
impairment by taking the criterion as the same as in previous year. In 2022 the outstanding reserve was Baht 2.79 million,
or equivalent to 1.94%.

3.3 Investment

In the past year, the Company did not have significant additional investment items due to the situation of pandemics and
unfavorable economic conditions. However, if the overall external market conditions improve, the Company is ready to expand
its investment.
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4.  Liguidity and Source of Funds
4.1 Suitability of Capital Structure
(A) Capital Structure
The ratio of the Company’s Debt to Equity was 0.21 times. It increased only 0.02 times from previous year and
the Company had a burden of shortterm loans from related parties of only Baht 1.00 million. Therefore, these indicators
showed the excellent financial structure and the strengthened financial position of the Company. If the business opportunity is
facilitated and the economic benefits are worthwhile, the Company will be able to expand its investment by having loans from
the financial institutes.
(B) Shareholders’ Equity
At the end of 2022, the value of shareholders’ equity was Baht 1,025.47 million. It decreased by Baht 5.69 million
or 0.55% from the previous year. This was a decrease of net loss amounted to Baht 24.77 million, deduction of dividend
payment for the year 2021 amounted to Baht 3.00 million, Plus another comprehensive profit of Baht 22.08 million.
(C) Cash Flows
In 2022, net cash from operating activities was Baht 68.55 million, increased from previous year to Baht 98.81
million, due to the decrease in inventories and reduction of trade creditors and other current creditors. Total net cash from
investment activities was Baht 86.12 million, which resulted from cash paid for purchase of other current financial assets
amounted to Baht 31.31 million. Cash paid for purchase of other non-current financial assets amounted to Baht 1.00 million.
Cash receipt from repayment of loans to related companies amounted to Baht 3.01 million. Cash received from the sale of
buildings and equipment amounted to Baht 0.67 million, less cash payment for purchase of other current financial assets
Baht 110.00 million. Cash payment for the purchase of other non-current financial assets Baht 2.26 million. Cash payment
for the purchase of buildings and equipment Baht 9.63 million. Cash payment to purchase other intangible assets amounted
to Baht 0.29 million. Net cash spent in financing activities totaled Baht 6.56 million were from the cash dividend paid to the
shareholders and repayment of lease liabilities, combined with cash at the beginning of the year, cash remaining at the end
of the year was Baht 125.84 million.
(D) Liabilities
At the end of 2022, the Company had total liabilites amounting to Baht 211.87 million, increased from previous
year amount to Baht 20.23 million from the increase of current liabilities. Majority of liabilities belong to the trade-related current
liabilities group which the Company always pay on schedule
4.2 Ligquidity and Debt R ment iliti
At the end of 2022, the Company had a liquidity ratio of 4.73 times, decreased 0.91 times from the previous year.
The fast liquidity ratio was 1.90 times, decreased 0.69 times from the previous year. These two liquidity ratios remain at a
very high level and available working capital was sufficient. Overall, the average Cash Cycle was 125 days, which was down
from 59 days from the previous year. It's a result from the average debt collection period and average sales period that was
shorter. This has shown potential of the Company to access cash from its operation faster.
As the current assets amounted to Baht 613.32 million, was higher than current liabilites amounted to Baht 483.67
million, thus it's a clear indication of the adequacy of liquidity and the ability to repay debts.
5. Debt Obligations and Off-Balan heet Burden Management
Contingent obligations and liabilities have details shown in the Notes to the Financial Statements No. 30 on page 295

4.2 Key Factors and Influences that may affect the Performance or Financial Position

in the Future

In regard to the tracking of the information from various sources, the Thai economy situation in 2023 has been anticipated to
be very fragile and different in each industry and area. This is driven primarily by the continued recovery of the tourism sectors after China
announced to open up to overseas travels. Private consumption is expected to continue growing. This was driven by rising consumer
confidence. The labor market is likely to improve in line with the recovery of domestic economic activity. In particular, tourism-related
businesses are expected to see an increase in employment and this will increase household income as well. However consumption of
low-income households may be constrained by high levels of debt, rising interest rates and reduction of measures to support government
spending. Private investment is expected to continue to expand from the growth of domestic economic activity. Though investments may face
limitations due to rising financial costs in accordance with the direction of interest rate hikes, the export sector tends to have a slowdown in
global demand that begins to show a sign of slowdown.

However, the Company shall operate the business with carefulness by considering the risk factors in the business operation
entirely and to manage the organization with caution by preparing readiness in advance in order to cope with situations that may occur. The
Company shall examine the problems carefully with rationality. Contingency plans to respond to bad situations shall be planned. The Company
shall adhere to good corporate governance principles. We are committed to delivering products and services to meet the requirements of
consumers in order to satisfy and impress their utmost pleasure. To emphasize on monitoring the IT systems in various aspects for making
decisions and solving problems in a timely manner. To improve employee skills and develop employees to manage their work as professionals.
To enhance the working atmosphere for achieving shared power and ready to move on to sustainable mutual success forever.
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4.3 Significant Financial Information

Financial Information

(Unit 1: BHTT1, 000)

ltem Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2020
Revenue from Sale and Services 860,108 100.00% 718,680 100.00% 862,886 100.00%
Less Cost of Goods Sold 494,443 57.49% 409,660 57.00% 466,788 54.10%
Gross Profit 365,665 42.51% 309,020 43.00% 396,098 45.90%
Less Selling & Administration Expenses 410,075 47.68% 353,831 49.23% 405,735 47.02%
Earnings (Loss) from Operations (44,410) (5.17%) (44,811) (6.24%) (9,637) (1.12%)
Add other Income 16,533 1.92% 44,151 6.14% 16,752 1.94%
Earnings (Loss) before Interest and Income Tax (27,877) (3.25%) (660) (0.09%) 7,115 0.82%
Less Financial Cost 1,315 0.15% 1,743 0.24% 980 0.11%
Earnings (Loss) before Income Tax (29,192) (3.40%) (2,403) (0.33%) 6,135 0.71%
Less Income Tax (4,426) (0.51%) 484 0.07% 1,022 0.12%
Net Profit (Loss) (24,766) (2.89%) (2,887) (0.40%) 5,113 0.59%
Total Income 876,641 100.00% 762,831 100.00% 879,638 100.00%
Total Expenses 905,833 103.33% 765,234 100.32% 873,503 99.30%
Earnings (Loss) before Income Tax (29,192) (3.33%) (2,403) (0.32%) 6,135 0.70%
Less Income Tax (4,426) (0.50%) 484 0.06% 1,022 0.12%
Net Profit (Loss) (24,766) (2.83%) (2,887) (0.38%) 5,113 0.58%

Significant Financial Ratios
ltem Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2020

LIQUIDITY RATIO
Current Ratio 4.73 Times 5.64 Times 245 Times
Quick Ratio 1.90 Times 259 Times 1.08 Times
Cash Flow Liquidity Ratio 0.59 Times (0.20) Times 0.25 Times
Account Receivable Turnover 7.18 Times 5.55 Times 5.59 Times
Collection Period 50 Days 65 Days 64 Days
Inventory Turnover 2.86 Times 2.04 Times 2.13 Times
Inventory Coverage 126 Days 177 Days 169 Days
Account Payable Turnover 7.01 Times 6.21 Times 5.98 Times
Payable Period 51 Days 58 Days 60 Days
Cash Cycle 125 Days 184 Days 173 Days
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Gross Profit 4251 % 43.00 % 4590 %
Operating Profit (5.16) % (6.24) % (1.12) %
Other Profit 189 % 579 % 190 %
Cash against Operating Profit (154.36) % 6752 % (453.31) %
Net Profit (2.83) % (0.38) % 0.58 %
Return on Equity (2.41) % (0.28) % 0.50 %
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ltem Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2020
EFFICIENCY RATIO
Return on Assets (2.01) % (0.23) % 0.40 %
Return on Fixed Assets (1.51) % 329 % 474 %
Assets Turnover 0.71 Times 0.59 Times 0.68 Times
FINANCIAL RATIO
Debt to Equity 0.21 Times 0.19 Times 0.28 Times
Interest Coverage (21.20) Times (0.38) Times 7.26 Times
Debt Coverage (Cash Basis) 0.74 Times 0.28 Times 2.23 Times
Dividend Ratio (108.90) % 176.02 %
5. General Information and Other Material Facts
5.1 General Information

Company Name O.C.C. Public Company Limited

Head Office Address 729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpongpang Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

Type of Business Distributing cosmetics, clothes, and rendering of beauty services

Registered No. 0107537001323

Type of Shares Common stock 80,000,000 shares at 1 Baht par value. Issued and paid-up share capital

amount 60,000,000 common stocks at Baht 1 each

Telephone (662) 2954545, (662) 2954567
Facsimile (662) 2950411
Website www.0cc.co.th

5.2 Other Material Facts

5.2.1  The Company invested in the following companies by holding 10% or more of shares:

Amatissimo Co., Ltd.
Head Office Address

Type of Business
Type of Shares

Telephone
Facsimile
% Holding

522  Other References:
1. Register of Common Stocks

2. Auditor

3. Legal Advisor
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120/4 Soi Ramkhamhaeng 112, Saphan Sung,

Saphan Sung, Bangkok 10240

Production distribution bakery service and beverage.

Common stock 195,000 shares at 100 Baht par value and paid up capital
amount 19.5 MB.

085-4829977

76.92%

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

98, 14th Floor. Ratchadapisek Road, Din Daeng, Bangkok 10400
Telephone (662) 0099691, 9690

Mrs. Suvimol Chrityakierne or Miss Suphaphorn Mangjiit or

Mr. Nopparoek Pitsanuwong or Mr. Joompoth  Priratanakorn or

Miss Somijintana Pholhirunrat or Mr.Wirote Satjathamnukul

D I A International Audit Co.,LTD.

316/32 Sukhumvit Soi 22 Sukhumvit Rd., Klongtoey Bangkok Thailand 10110.
Telephone (662) 2595300

Facsimile (662) 2601553

Vira Law Office Office Co., Ltd.

548/14-15 Soi Sathupradit 58 Junction 18, Bangpongpang, Yannawa,
Bangkok 10120.

Telephone (662) 683-8023 Facsimile (662) 683-8843




4. Investor Relations

5.3 Legal Disputes

Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom

Executive Director of Accounting - Financial Division
O.C.C. Public Company Limited

729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpongpang
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120.

Telephone (662) 295-4545 Ext510

Facsimile (662) 295-0415

The Company does not have a legal dispute in the manner in which the company will have a significant negative impact on

the Company’s business operations.
5.4 Secondary market
- None -

5.5 Frequently contacted financial institutions
(only for the case where the company issues debt instruments)

- None -
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SECTION 2 Corporate Governance

6. Corporate Governance Policies

6.1 An Overview of Corporate Governance Policy and Practice

The Board of Directors has established a policy on Good Corporate Governance for all directors, executives and
employees to adhere to their working guidelines. Corporate governance policy is regularly reviewed for updating economic
circumstances and social change. The Company has announced and communicated this Corporate Governance Policy by giving
its manuals to directors, executives and employees. The Board of Directors believe that the Company has a good management
system, transparency and auditability, adequate and appropriate balance of power and internal control systems. Alongside these
mechanisms are due respect for the rights and equality of shareholders with responsibility towards its stakeholders as well as
denial of all forms of corruption. These key factors contribute to the enhancement of the organization’s immunity and promotion
of a balanced and sustainable growth in the long term, in compliance with good corporate governance policy as follows:

1. Company Directors, executives and all employees are fully committed to the application of corporate governance
principles, business ethics and Codes of Conduct for Company Directors, Executive Officers and Employees
to Company business operations.

2. Company Directors, executives and all employees must perform their duties responsibly, prudently, earnestly
and honestly in accordance with the relevant laws, Company Articles and notifications.

3. Actions shall be taken to ensure that the Company management structure contains clear prescriptions of
powers, duties and responsibilities of each committee and executive officer.

4. Aninternal control system shall be installed and risk management shall be managed at suitable levels, including
an accounting system and financial statement which are accurate and reliable.

5. Information shall be disclosed in a sufficient, reliable and timely matter to the extent that the legitimate interests
of the Company are not prejudiced.

6. The ownership rights of shareholders shall be appreciated and respected. Shareholders shall be treated
equitably.

7. Undertakings shall have regard to the responsibilities of shareholders, stakeholders, communities, society and
the environment.

8. There shall be a determination to strive towards business excellence with commitment to the creation of
customer satisfaction by receiving comments and self-assessments in order to enhance management capabilities
and continually promote productive creativity.

The Company has issued and disclosed “Good Corporate Governance Principles, Second Edition” for all Company
Directors, executives and all employees to acknowledge and adhere it to be a guideline for practice on the Company’s website
at www.occ.co.th, under the heading “Investor” which comprises of 1) Good Corporate Governance Policy 2) 8 Good Corporate
Governance Principles 3) Code of Conduct for Directors, Executive Officers and Employees.

6.1.1 Policies and Guidelines related to the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of persons who shall be diverse in terms of qualifications, such as professional
experience, ability and diversity of experience in accounting, finance, management, marketing and Information Technology,
as compliance on Board Diversity. The Board of Directors plays an important role in establishing the Company’s policies in
collaborating with senior management to stipulate an operation plan for shortterm and long-term such as monetary policy,
corporate governance, risk management, overview of organization, including anti-corruption policy.

tructure of the Board of Director
The Company’s management structure is composed of the Board of Directors and six committees, which are appointed
by the Board of Directors. The six committees comprise the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee and the Executive Committee, to perform
specific duties and propose matters to the Board of Directors for consideration or acknowledgement. Therefore, all related stakeholders
can be sure that the Company’s business has been carefully operated and scrutinized.
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Independence of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has the duty to diagnose, express an opinion and vote on an undertaking in which the Board of
Directors has the authority to make decisions. In case the Board of Directors’ decision is under pressure because of working duties or

family or has a stake in that matter, that decision shall be distorted for taking its own side, close persons or for its own benefit. Therefore,
independence is so important for the directors to take into account. In order to protect the benefit of shareholders, the Company has
clearly established the practice guideline by not allowing directors or executives who are stakeholders or involved in the process of
decision making for determination on the transaction made between the Company and stakeholders or related to such matters. At the
Board of Directors’ Meeting, directors who are stakeholders shall leave the meeting room and not cast a vote on that agenda for the
fair decision of the Board of Directors and executives as well as for being the real benefit of shareholders.

lifications of In ndent Dir r
“Independent Director” of the Company is an independent person who has qualifications as prescribed by the Capital
Market Supervisory Board. Details of qualifications of independent directors are displayed under the heading Nomination and Appointment
of Directors and Senior Executives under sub-heading “Criteria for Independent Director Selection” on page no 232 - 233 of this annual
report. Director Nomination Process

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee has the duty to nominate the qualified candidates, who are adequately knowledgeable and
possess expertise in various professional fields as complied with the Board Diversity, to be the company directors. The qualifications of
each individual candidate were considered with all due circumspection, and the composition of qualification to be in line with the business
strategies, attributes of leadership, vision, ethical principles and good moral, as well as clear and unblemished career records, ability to
express opinion independently, no prohibited characteristic under the laws and Articles of Association of a company. Candidates are also
deemed qualified, particular professional skills and the Board Skill Matrix to be in line with the requirement of the company for proposing
to the Board of Directors’ Meeting to scrutinize their qualifications and consensus of opinion prior to proposing to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders to consider for election. In case a vacancy of director is not by rotation, candidates who have qualification that
meet with criteria of nomination process, shall be proposed to the Board of Directors Meeting for the appointment to be the company
directors taking place of vacant positions to be in line with Articles of Association of the Company.

Additional information on the Director Nomination Process is displayed under the heading Nomination of Directors and
Senior Management on pages 233 - 234

Age Limit for Company Directors and Term of Offi f Company Director.

The company directors have no age limit and/ or limit of maximum number of directorships for consecutive terms. The
Company believes that each director's business expertise and capabilities should not depend on age, as long as he/she proved to
utilize knowledge and experience for the utmost benefit to the Company. Including that, the directors are entrusted by the shareholders,
therefore, previous directors should be elected to their directorships for another term.

Terms of office of the committee members which comprise the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Executive
Committee, is valid for one year. All committee members are appointed by the Board of Director and they might be reelected to be the
committee members upon their termination.

The Number of Companies in which the Directors take Positions

The Company has not specified the number of companies in which the directors take their positions. The Board believes
that business abilities and the expertise of each director do not depend on the number of companies in which the directors take their
positions, as long as each director has commitment to perform the duties of the company directors to utilize knowledge, competence
and business expertise for the utmost benefit to the Company. However, none of the current Company’s Board of Directors serves as
director in more than five listed companies.

Information on Working Experience and Director Tenure of each Director is disclosed in this annual report on pages
296 - 300

Separation of Position of Chairman from Managing Director

The Board of Directors considers an appointment of Chairman and Managing Director. Authorities and responsibilities
of Chairman and Managing Director are specified to contribute their works with independence and balance. Details are as follows:
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* The Authority and Responsibility of the Chairman

1.

@

5.

The Chairman as the chief of the Board of Directors supervises and monitors the due performance of the
Board of Directors and sub-committees.

The Chaiman presides over the Board of Directors Meeting and casts the deciding vote in the case of a tied vote.
Call for the Board of Directors Meeting or assign a proxy to carry out on one behalf.

The Chairman presides over shareholder meetings to control the meeting to be in line with the Company’s
Articles of Association and conduct it to be in accordance with specified agenda in the notice of meeting.
To perform any other duties as delegated by the Board of Directors.

e The Authority and Responsibility of the Managing Director

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

To have the authorities to enter into administration of the Company’s operation pursuant to the policies,
laws, objectives, Articles of Associations, resolutions of the meeting of shareholders, resolutions of the
Board of Directors, resolutions of the Executive Committee, as well as relevant regulations and procedures.
To have the authorities to command or perform any matter as necessary and appropriate to carry out the
functions of above Article 1 to be completed. In the case of important matters, a report and/or notice
shall be informed to the Board of Directors and/or to the Executive Committee for acknowledgement.
To have the authorities to command, recruit, appoint, remove, transfer, consider performance appraisal
and disciplinary measures, to determine compensation and welfare benefits of employees. In the event,
any action taken as mentioned above must not be contrary to or inconsistent with the authority of the
Executive Committee.

To have the authority to issue regulations on the Company’s operations, such regulations not being
inconsistent with or contrary to the policies, articles, regulations, rules, commands and any resolutions of
the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.

To have the authorities to grant approval for sourcing and to invest in fixed assets at each time for the
amount not exceeding Baht 50 million.

To have the authorities to grant approval for investment and to trade investment in ordinary shares at each
time for an amount not exceeding Baht 10 million.

To have the authorities to grant approval for investment and to trade short-term investment each time at
an amount not exceeding Baht 50 million.

To have the authorities grant approval to authorize the Company’s engagement in juristic acts involving
non-financial transactions at each time for an amount not exceeding Baht 10 million.

To notify any proceeding under Articles 5, 6 and 7 to the Board of Directors and/or the Executive
Committee to acknowledge as appropriated at the next meetings.

To grant proxy and/or delegate authority to other persons to perform specific tasks on behalf of the
Managing Director.

The above authorities of the Managing Director cannot be exercised in the case where the Managing
Director is a stakeholder or has a conflict of interests in any manner with the Company.

To exercise the authority of the Managing Director, in case there is any doubt or unclear exercise of
authorities as specified, this matter shall be proposed to the Board of Directors for consideration.

To carry out any other operations as assigned by the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

L rshi

nd Vision

The Board of Directors is composed of qualified persons who achieve Board Diversity qualification in terms of professional

skill and specialization that benefit the Company’s business, have leadership and freedom to express opinion and make

decisions. The Board of Directors performs duties as professionals to perform the best interests of all parties. The Board of

Directors plays an important role to define vision, mission and strategy that shall be determined as the agenda at the Board

of Directors Meeting every year, to achieve the Company’s goals and objectives. The Board of Directors places importance on

creativity of innovation to develop the organization to get ready for rapid change by implementing Information Technology to

play an important role. These include a policy to review in accordance with the agenda and change the situation, to be in line

with the policy of business operation that has responsibility towards the society and environment appropriately.
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In addition, the Board of Directors has the ability to express opinions on the strategy, goal, working plan and company
annual budget, which shall be proposed by the management. There is a provision of mechanism to corporate, monitor and
supervise the implementation of the Company’s strategy to perform. The management has a duty to report the operation’s
performance to be complied with the strategy as defined. Other than the report of the result of turnover and performance as
well as other important matters to the Board of Directors to acknowledge on a quarterly basis for contributing an efficient and
effective performance, by commencing on the utmost benefit of the Company, shareholders and all related parties as important
as comply with the principles of good corporate governance.

Report on Vested Interest of the Directors, Executives and Related Persons
The Board of Directors and Executives of the Company have duties to prepare the report on vested interest reports of their

own or their related persons for adopting it as the fundamental data to corporate the vested interests at the level of the directors
and senior executives. This said report must be prepared every time if there is any change and the Company Secretary is defined
to have the duty to organize, collect and manage a copy for submitting it to the Chairman and Chairman of the Audit Committee
for acknowledgement within 7 days upon the receipt of such report, as for auditing and to corporate the conflict of interests. In
addition, the Company determines to put agenda “Issue on Report of the Company Security holding by the Board of Directors and
Executives” to be a regular agenda at the Board of Directors’ Meeting and Executive Committee Meeting for reporting it to all
parties to acknowledge.

Regulated Use of Inside Information

The Company supervises and prevents the use of inside information in accordance with corporate governance principles as
clearly written in business ethics, Code of Conduct for the directors, executive officers and staffs for everyone to perform duties with
integrity, responsibility, discipline and conscientious to the public by not seeking for unlawful benefit of oneself or another person
form positions. Summary of significant policies is as follows:

¢ The Company has authority to prohibit directors, executives, employees and related persons such as spouses and minor
children including persons who work in the units that involve with sensory information and use inside information that has
significant issue for the change in the price of the Company’s securities and are still not disclosed to the public for securities’
trade of the Company within 1 month prior to the disclosure of the financial statements to the public and after the financial
statements are disclosed 24 hours later. In case of failure to comply, these shall be considered disciplinary offenses as
complied with the Company Code of Conduct. The Company shall notify the directors and executives for acknowledgement
of the period for which the Company’s securities should be refrained. In 2022, the directors and executives strictly followed
the policy and it did not appear that the Company’s securities were traded during the prohibited period.

e The Company determines and notifies the directors and executives to have duties to report the changes in securities holding
of the Company to the Office of the Security Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 59 of the Securities and Exchange
Act within 3 working days from the date of change of securities holding. The report of the changes in securities holding of
the Company’s directors, executives and spouse, is defined as a regular agenda to the meeting of the Board of Directors
and Executive Committee. In addition, the Company determines a policy for the directors and senior executives to notify the
trade of the Company’s securities to the Company Secretary at least 1 business day prior to trading day.

¢ In 2022, according to the data review, there was no change in securities holding of the Company’s directors and executives.
6.1.2 Policies and Guidelines towards Shareholders and Stakeholders

¢ The Rights of Shareholders

The Company recognizes the importance and respect to the ownership rights of shareholders as well as taking into
account the duty to protect the rights of all shareholders equally and fairly. To facilitate all shareholders to equally receive the
fundamental rights for major shareholders, minor shareholders, foreign shareholders and institutional investors. The company
does not violate the rights or deprivation of shareholders’ rights by encouraging the exercise of shareholders’ rights in various
aspects as follows:

Legal Fundamental Rights

Legal fundamental rights comprise the right to buy, sell and transfer their own securities independently, equal right to
receive dividends, the right to obtain information about the Company in a timely and consistent manner, the right to attend
a shareholder meeting, the right to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and to vote on one’s behalf. The right to express
opinion and to inquire during a shareholder meeting, the right to jointly make decision on important issues, the right to elect the
Company’s Directors and determine remuneration, the right to appoint the Company’s Auditor and determine remuneration, the
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right to approve important transactions and affect the direction of the Company’s business operation and the right to amend
the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company for example.
The Right to Asset to Information

Shareholders have equal rights to obtain information. The Company discloses information both in Thai and English via the
Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website: www.set.or.th and the company website: www.occ.co.th. Information comprises operation
performance, management policy, related transaction information, trade of the Company’s important assets, information for using
in the shareholder meeting, list of top ten shareholders as of the closing date for Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, to
report the minutes of shareholder meeting within 14 days after the meeting date and other information that are necessary for
the shareholders to make decision.

The Right to attend the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Company has scheduled for Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held once a year within 4 months after
completing its accounting year. In the event of such emergency situations, possibly affecting the shareholders’ interests, or
involving amendments to the laws or company articles requiring approval by the shareholders, the Company was authorized to
convene the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on a case by case basis. The meeting shall be scheduled on an appropriate
date, time and venue which is convenient for all shareholders to attend.

For 2022, the Company convened the 28" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on April 25, 2022 at Montien
Riverside Hotel. The Company has strictly established measurements and practice guidelines for the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders under the circumstances of the Coronavirus 2019 outbreak (COVID-19). The Meeting has been convened in
accordance with AGM Checklist's manual from the Office of Securities Exchange Commission. Previous year, the Company
has not called any shareholders’ extraordinary meeting, no agreements were made between shareholders that had a significant
impact on the Company or other shareholders and it does not discourage or build obstacles to provide an opportunity for
shareholders to communicate with each other.

¢ Prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

1. The Company provided the shareholders with the opportunity to propose meeting agenda or qualified
candidates to be elected as the directors prior to the 28" AGM’s date for 2022, during the period of December 1 - 30, 2021,
by providing related conditions on company website in both Thai and English languages, together with news channel of The
Stock Exchange of Thailand. Nevertheless, there were no shareholders proposing any meeting agenda during said specified
period. The Company Secretary has reported it to the Board of Directors’ Meeting to acknowledge.

2. The Company informed the shareholders of the resolution to convene the shareholders’ meeting in both
Thai and English languages via the information dissemination system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand 32 days prior to the
meeting date, namely on March 24, 2022 and the shareholders’ meeting was April 25, 2022.

3. The Company disseminated the meeting invitation letter and attached documents such as meeting agenda,
in advance via company website: www.occ.co.th, in both Thai and English. This was carried out on March 24, 2022 or 30
days prior to the meeting, to provide the shareholders with necessary information in a swift, convenient, and sufficient manner
in advance. Proxy Form A, B and C, carrying the same content as type of documents can also be downloaded. The call for
the AGM was announced in the Thai daily newspaper for 3 consecutive days and at least 3 days prior to the meeting.

4. The Company sent out the meeting invitation letter together with additional supporting documents to the
shareholders longer than 21 days prior to the meeting date. Delivery date was April 1, 2022. Thai shareholders will receive Thai
language while the foreigners will receive both Thai and English language for facilitating them to obtain the same information.
This meeting invitation letter contains detail on date, time, venue, map of the meeting venue, meeting agenda and regulations,
additional supporting documents that clearly contains all agenda sufficiently. Each agenda clearly states that it's proposed for
acknowledgement, for approval or for determination as well as the Board’s opinion that has sufficient clearness to support the
shareholders’ decision to exercise their voting rights. Invitation letter shall provide details of complete documents that shareholders
need to submit at the meeting and the process to attend a meeting for protecting the right to attend the meeting, including
the Company’s Articles of Association to the shareholders’” meeting and voting.

5. The Company enclosed Proxy Form B, which is the type for shareholders to choose for exercising their
rights to vote independently. The name list of independent directors in case any shareholders are unable to attend the meeting.
They can give proxy to either independent directors or any other persons to attend the meeting on behalf by completing the
enclosed proxy form that was sent out together with the meeting invitation letter.
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¢ On the day of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

1. For 2022, the Company held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on Monday, April 25, 2022,
at 2.00 p.m., at Montien Riverside Bangkok Hotel. The Company set date, time and meeting venue in such a manner
being convenient and not posing problems to the shareholders to attend. The Company has established compliance with
the measures and guidelines of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders under the circumstance of coronavirus 2019
(COVID-19) outbreak strictly.

2. The Board of Directors placed much emphasis on the shareholders’ meeting, by considering their obligations
to always attend the meeting in person unless facing inevitable circumstances or becoming seriously ill. Chairman of all
committees, Accounting and Finance Director and the Executives were also at the meeting, so as to provide shareholders
with the opportunity to ask questions related to the Company. Details of the meeting attendance of the Board of Directors
can be found on the meeting report of the shareholders’ meeting that was published on the company website.

3. At the registration desk, the Company prepared sufficient receptionists and staff to take care of the
meeting registration and continue until the meeting completion. Shareholders can register for the meeting attendance with
a barcode system 2 hours prior to the meeting. Bar code will show details of each shareholder which has been printed
on the registration form for facilitating the prompt and accuracy of shareholders’ information. Voting cards for each agenda
are prepared as well as providing stamp service for proxy appointment forms authorized by the shareholders for anyone or
independent director to attend.

4. Prior to the beginning of each shareholders’ meeting, the Chairman of the meeting will introduce the Board
of Directors, Executive Board, Company Auditor, Company Secretary and legal advisers to participate in the meeting and
will be the witness for voting counts. The Company Secretary will explain all rules, voting process including how to count
the votes clearly as stated on the Articles of Association. Vote tallying was carried out using a barcode system to facilitate
convenience and accuracy. The votes are compiled with the Articles of Association and applicable laws. Counting votes for
each agenda’s item will be displayed openly in the meeting room.

Voting on each agenda, the Company has printed the voting ballots for shareholders to exercise their votes.
The Company will collect the ballots of the shareholders only to the disapproval ballots or abstain from voting in order to
calculate the deduction from all shareholders who have the rights to vote, except on the agenda of electing the Directors
that all ballots will be collected and count the votes by using the barcode system. In counting votes for each item of the
agenda, the Company’s legal advisers, Shareholders’ Right Protection Volunteers of Thai Investors Association who act as the
representative of minor shareholders and the Company’s Auditor will observe the meeting. After the meeting, shareholders
are able to audit such details. One share represents one vote and more numbers of vote will be the resolution except the
case of the resolution that is definite to accept 2/3 (two-third) of total votes belonging to the shareholders who attended
the meeting and have the rights to vote. Or, except the case of resolution that determines to accept 3/4 (third-fourth) of
total votes belonging to the shareholders who attend the meeting and have the rights to vote as complied with Articles of
Association and laws.

5. Important agendas of the 28" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 25, 2022 are as
follows:

* Approval for Financial Statement for the year ended December 31, 2021. The resolution was unanimously

approved.
Significant Summary of Financial Statement and Operation Performance of 2021
Consolidated Financial Statements Separate Financial Statements

- Total Assets 1,222,790,094.00 Baht 1,217,361,906.00 Baht
- Total Liabilities 191,632,069.00 Baht 186,474,624.00 Baht
- Total Revenue 762,831,097.00 Baht 749,649,230.00 Baht
- Profit (Loss) for the Year (2,887,428.00) Baht 1,081,808.00 Baht
- Earings per Share (0.03) Baht 0.02 Baht
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e Approval of annual dividend payment for operating results from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021,
for 60 million ordinary shares with the rate of Baht 0.05 per share (five Satang). Dividend payment was paid
from retained earnings tax by the Company at 25% and individual shareholders can apply for tax credit under
Section 47 bis of the Revenue Code. Resolution of the meeting was approved, unanimously.

e Approval for the re-election of 3 directors who are retired upon completion of their terms to resume their

directorships for an additional term; Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana, Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-Art and Mrs. Teerada
Ambhanwong

e Approval of director remuneration for the amount not exceeding Baht 6 million per year. Resolution of the

meeting was approved, unanimously.

e Approval for the appointment of DIA International Audit Co., Ltd, to be the Company’s Auditor in 2022. Mrs.

Suvimol Chrityakierne: CPA Registration No.2982 is authorized to certify by signing on the Company’s financial
statements from 2022, which it’s the sixth year. Or, Ms. Suphaphorn Mangjit: CPA Registration No.8125 or
Mr. Nopproek Pitsanuwong: CPA Registration No.7764 or Mr Chumpat Prairattanakorn: CPA Registration No.
7645 or Ms. Somjintana Polhiranrat: CPA Registration No. 5599 or Mr. Viroj Sajthamnukul: CPA Registration
No 5128. Determination of the audit fee’s amount for the year 2022, was totally Baht 1,210,000. As well as
proposed to the shareholders’ meeting to acknowledge the audit fees of the subsidiary for the year 2022,
which was the same auditor amounting to Baht 146,000. However, the audit fee of subsidiaries may vary
depending on the numbers of subsidiaries and/or actual numbers of jobs during the year 2022.

6. The Company proceeded with the meeting agenda in such order earlier set forth in the meeting invitation
letter without adding any further agenda or altering information without prior notice to the shareholders. All shareholders were
allowed their equal rights to fully present questions, comment or suggestion for each meeting agenda. At the 2022 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, there was 1 shareholder inquiring at the meeting. The Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer has provided clarification and information in answer to all relevant questions.

7. The Company recorded the meeting on VDO, for further distribution to the shareholders upon request.

e Subsequent to the Shareholders’ General Meeting

1. The Company disclosed the resolutions adopted by the shareholders’ meeting, together with the voting results
for each meeting agenda, in both Thai and English, via the news channel of the SET after finishing the meeting within the same
day or on the following day before 9.00 hours.

2. To coordinate with securities registrar of Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd for dividend payment to all
shareholders at equal rate.

3. The Company has revealed and recorded the meeting minutes subsequent to the shareholders’ meeting both in
Thai and English language, by incorporating all essential details and summarizing voting results for each meeting agenda, classified
as consent, dissent, and abstention votes, together with the record on the discussion and conclusion regarding significant topics.
Said minutes was disseminated on the company website,

4. The meeting minutes were submitted to The Stock Exchange of Thailand within 14 days subsequent to the
meeting, and disseminated on the company website, in both Thai and English, so as to enable the shareholders to review said
minutes content without having to wait until the next shareholders’ meeting.

5. The Company systematically collects the meeting minutes for monitoring and reference. The Company’s Board
of Directors will adopt the suggestion and opinion received from the shareholders to evaluate the quality of the meeting to consider
and seek for solution / improvement to develop the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for the future.

¢ Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company places importance and supervises that all shareholders are entitled to fair and equitable treatment. It is not
favorable to any group, major shareholders, minor shareholders, foreign shareholders or institutional investors. Shareholders can ensure
that their rights are protected and treated fairly, including being facilitated for exercising their rights fully enough as follows:

1 The Rights to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting
e The Company provided the minority shareholders with the opportunity to nominate candidates as directors
prior to holding the shareholders’ meeting in 2022, during the period of December 1 - 30, 2021. For such
purpose, the Company compiled the nomination conditions and disseminated them on the company website,
as well as notifying the shareholders via the news channel of The Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company
will inform the shareholders of the results and reasons for the shareholders’ meeting.
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o At the 28" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, held on April 25, 2022, the Company sent out the
meeting invitation letter with sufficient information to allow the shareholders preparing the correct documents
for supporting them to make a decision to vote on each agenda in advance longer than 21 days. Supporting
documents included the annual report, note to the financial statements, information on eligible candidates
for directors, B Form proxy, proxy procedure, Articles of Association that’s related to the meeting, map of
meeting venue. Delivery date was April 1, 2022, to facilitate the shareholders having their time to learn of
each agenda’s information or proxy in the case they are inconvenient to attend the meeting by themselves.
Foreign shareholders will receive a meeting invitation letter with supporting documents in English language.

¢ Information on the meeting invitation letter for the shareholders is sufficiently cleared with related opinions by
The Board of Directors with no addition or change of important information without prior notice to shareholders.
The rules and procedure for attending the meeting have been informed to shareholders in the invitation letter,
in the case that the shareholders are unable to attend the meeting, they can appoint proxies to the persons
or independent directors according to the list offered by the Company as a proxy from shareholders. B Form
proxy was sent out to the shareholder. Shareholders can also choose to download other proxy forms as
appropriate from the company website.

¢ The Company also posted the announcement notifying said meeting invitation to the shareholders in the daily
newspapers for 3 consecutive days prior to the meeting as complied with the laws. The Company disseminated
the meeting invitation letter and supporting documents in both Thai and English language via the company
website 30 days prior to the shareholders’ meeting.

¢ The allocation of votes in the meeting was based on the number of shares being held by each shareholder, with
1 vote representing 1 share, no shareholding any special privilege in restricting the right of other shareholders.

¢ The shareholders were allowed to register by barcode system not less than 2 hours prior to the meeting, and
continued until the meeting completion. In the case where some shareholders joined the meeting after the
meeting commencement, the Company still allowed said shareholders to cast votes for the remaining agenda
not considered and voted upon by including them as the meeting quorum.

* The Company facilitated the shareholders, who appointed proxies to attend the meeting, by providing stamp
service for proxy appointment forms authorized by the shareholders free of charge.

* The meeting is in accordance with the Articles of Association and related laws. Determination and voting
procedure were in such order earlier set forth. Determination and voting resolution on the election of director
individually proceeded. To determine the remuneration of directors, the appointment of the auditor and approval
of audit fees and other agendas as set forth in the meeting invitation letter. Voting was done openly by having
ballots on each agenda in order that shareholders can vote as they deem appropriate. Each agenda’s ballot
is kept securely at the Company and is able to be audited. Other than the supporting documents which the
shareholders had received, during the meeting, the Company also presented the information in the video
system to facilitate shareholders.

e Subsequent to the general meeting of shareholders, the Company disclosed the resolutions adopted by the
shareholders’ meeting, via the news channel of the SET within 1 day, as well as informing shareholders of the
details of dividend payment and to coordinate with securities registrar of Thailand Securities Depository Co.,
Ltd for dividend payment to all shareholders at equal rate.

2 Supervision and Prevention of Use of Inside Information

¢ The Company established the policy to prevent the use of inside information in written on the Code of Conduct
for the directors, executives and employees and related persons who are spouses and minor children including
the staffs who work in the units related to inside information, are prohibited to use inside information which has
signification towards the change of the Company’s securities. These securities are not disclosed to the public
for the trade of the Company’s securities within 1 month before the disclosure of the financial statements to
the public. This prevents the misuse of inside information that may deprive the rights of shareholders, which
the Company also publishes on Intranet and on the company website. The Company Secretary shall alert the
relevant persons to refrain from trading in the Company’s securities during a specified period of time.

* The Company inspires its employees to instill their values under “Beauty from Within” concept: To Stay Beautiful
Inside Out, by being as an honest person, having responsibility discipline and good conscience towards the
society in general as well as misuse of position to seek out benefit for themselves and the others, as defined
in the Employee Code of Conduct.
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The Company has scheduled an annual Board of Directors’ Meeting and sent out in advance to the directors to
know the period of time to refrain from trading in securities, which in 2022, the directors and executives of the
Company strictly complied with the policy and there were not found securities trading during such prohibited periods.
The Company establishes the guidelines for the retention and prevention of the use of inside information in written
and then announces above guidelines and policies to everyone in the organization to practice. The management

regularly monitors the result of practice performance.

3. Trade of the Company’s Securities

The Company has in place a measure for the monitoring of its security trading transactions by prohibiting the
Company directors, management members, and employees having access to inside information, from engaging
in any act in exploitation of such information, particularly those information not yet disclosed to the general public
for the period of 1 month prior to the disclosure of financial statements to the public and 24 hours after the
financial statements were disclosed.

The Company’s directors and executives have duties to inform the trading in securities of the Company to the
Chairman of the Board at least 1 working day before trading.

The Company has determined and notified the directors and executives to have duties to report the change of
their shareholding status within 3 working days from the date of the change in securities holdings to the Securities
and Exchange Commission according to Article 59 of The Securities and Exchange Act (No.5) BE. 2559. The
Company established the agenda for reporting the holding of the Company’s securities of directors and executives
including spouses as a regular agenda item at the Board of Directors Meeting and Executive Committee Meeting.
In 2022, the directors and executives who had the Company’s securities trading strictly followed the above policy.
No securities trading during the prohibited period and there was no change in the holdings of the Company’s
securities.

4. Supervision over Asset Trading

* The Company supervises over assets trading in accordance with the announcement by the Capital

Market Supervisory Board regarding the acquisition of assets, whereby the Directors with possible
conflict of interests are prohibited to participate, so as to facilitate fairness and transparency.

5. Conflict of Interests

The Company acts on conflicts of interest with prudence and rationality, taking into account the Company’s
interests. There is a transparent process in accordance with the procedures and guidelines of the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission S.E.C. and The Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Company carried out the
connected transactions on a fair business practice basis, based on market prices and normal business terms (Fair
and at arms’ length). Before implementing each connected transaction requiring prior approval from The Board of
Directors, the item was first proposed to The Audit Committee for endorsement prior to submitting to The Board
of Directors for further approval. Afterwards, the company informed said meeting resolution to the shareholders
via the news channel of the SET together with the company website. The information included the disclosure of
names and relationships of connected parties, pricing policy, transaction value, and other related details, as well
as the opinion of The Board of Directors pertaining to such transactions, as well as different opinions. (if any)
The Company has a clear path to prohibit the directors or executives who are stakeholders or are related with
the consideration procedure to approve the transaction between the Company and the said stakeholders or
related parties. At the Board of Directors’ Meeting, the directors who have a stake in the transaction must leave
the conference room and must refrain from voting on this agenda in order to allow the Board of Directors and
executives to have fair consideration for truly being in the highest interests of the shareholders. In 2022, for the
agenda to consider transactions with related parties may represent conflicts of interest/ entering into connected
transactions, the directors or executives who are stakeholders did not attend the meeting and had no rights to
vote on that agenda.

The directors and senior executives are determined to report of their equity and other related persons to the
Company Secretary for copying the report and further present it to the Chairman and Chairman of the Audit
Committee which in comply with the rules as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Act, and to report
every time when changes are made. In 2022, there was Report of Interest of Directors and Senior Executives
and Related Persons according to the criteria as stipulated.



e The Company stipulates for Prevention of Conflict of Interest Policy to be a part of the Company’s business ethics
in accordance with Good Corporate Governance Principles. This is published on the website and communicated
via the in-house PR board of the Company for the directors, executive officers and all employees to acknowledge
and to perform accordingly.

6. Treat of Minority Shareholders
riteria for Minority Shareholders to Pri Agen

e Between 1 December 2021 to 30 December 2021, the Company provided the minority shareholders with the
opportunity to propose the meeting agendas and/or nominate candidates to be elected as directors prior to
holding the 28" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2022.The Company notified news on the website
of The Stock Exchange of Thailand published this information via the company website. Previous year, no
shareholders have exercised such rights, and the Company Secretary has reported it to the Board of Directors

to acknowledgement. Therefore, no additional agendas proposed by the shareholders.

Consideration Needs to be Given to the Roles of Stakeholders

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of rights of all stakeholders, therefore it stipulates relevant
policies and guidelines in business ethics, to ensure that all stakeholders receive fair and equitable treatment by
publishing to the directors, executives and employees via the company website www.occ.co.th and Intranet system of
the company, to adopt it as guidelines to treat with responsibility and respect to the rights of each other.

Treatment of Several Stakeholder Groups of the Compan

Shareholders: The Company has responsibility to respect the rights equally, no matter whether they are major shareholders,
minor shareholders, foreign shareholders and institutional investors. All shareholders are entitled to have basic human rights and
receive equitable treatment. At the same time, the Company has proper mechanisms in place to ensure that the shareholders
shall receive accurate and reliable information, having proper measures safeguarding against conflict of interests, and against the
exploitation of inside information for personal gain. The Company is committed to conducting business with integrity, transparency
and fairness for having a good performance, sustain growth and competitiveness. The Company concentrates on risk conditions
both present and future to add value and appropriate remuneration for the shareholders in the long term.

Employees: In the Company’s recognition, employees are as its valuable human resources and key factors playing
the critical role in leading the organization toward goal achievement. The Board of Directors therefore set the Company’s policy to
devote its best efforts to develop and upgrade the employees’ potentials on a consistent basis to have leadership. The Company is
committed to enhance all employees with training programs and competency improvement for being the foundation for continuous
support for the Company’s business strategy. In addition, the Company attaches importance to strengthening its application for
unity and loyalty to the organization, for solidarity in developing the Company’s potential to have progress and sustainable growth.
This is a good practice for all employees defined in writing in the Company’s Code of Conduct, it includes ensuring employees
to work happily by improving their work environment to be safe, modern and to take care of health welfare as well as appropriate
recreations. Employees from various units of the Company are appointed to take responsibility for the safety namely “Committee of
Occupational Safety, Health and Environment of the Workplace”

The Company attaches importance to supervise the benefits of employees in the long term, therefore the Provident
fund is provided for their future saving. The Company will contribute more in progressive rate for employees whose periods
of employment are more. For the employees completing 10, 20, 30 years of employment, the Company will contribute more
than the rate as defined by laws, which is 3.5% and 4.0% respectively. Furthermore, retirement benefits are provided for the
benefits after the maturity of employee retirement which the Company will provide more than the compensation set out in
labor laws for employees with a period of employment more than 20 years. The Company also has revealed a group accident
insurance policy that covers all deaths for all employees, in order to hedge and mitigate losses for employees and their families. It
is an additional supplement from the usual membership of the Social Security Fund.

In addition, the Company also provides communication channels for the employees, allowing them to offer suggestions,
requirements or offense reports by putting into the Company’s suggestion box. As well as to establish measurement to prevent
damage that may occur to related persons, in order to ensure the confidence of employees and dare to express opinions and
complaints.
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Employees Development: The Company carried out a project for developing all employees’ potential and accelerating
the development of individual performance to those who have capabilities, in order to build a strong organization that leads the
Company to have the ability to achieve its vision. Previous year, training courses for enhancing skill for each level of employees,
had been conducted thoroughly with a system to support each other for being the collective power to create effective change. For
2022, the Company conducted training courses for the development of employees’” knowledge, on average of 8 hours per person.

Additional information of Company Employees is displayed in this annual report under the heading “The Information of
Employees” on pages 228 - 231

Customers: The Company instills all of its employees to create maximum customers’ satisfaction and all service points. In
order to respond to customers’ needs with efficiency and effectiveness, the company is committed to develop products and services
which have good quality and safety, with care to deliver the best things for customers in terms of quality and price. Customers’
trade secrets are also protected.

In this regard, the Company has a customer relations center which serves as a central medium for receiving comments
and suggestions from customers. The center may be called at Tel. n0.02-295-1333 Fax n0.02-295-04 11. The Company provides
staff to serve and complete execution in order to respond to customers’ requirements instantly and meet with their satisfaction.

For 2022, there was no significant complaint from the customers. Whereas the Company duly took into consideration
all the complaints received from the customers, in order to devise proper measures to safeguard against and provide solutions
to the problems on a systematic basis, to ensure that similar problems would not occur again in the future. All this is to provide
customers with the greatest satisfaction in the Company’s products and services because “You are our valued customer”

Business Partners: The Company attaches importance to business partners as its associations that grow up together.

The Company deals with business partners on the basis of fair treatment, equality and mutual respect by strictly following business
agreement terms. To consider reasonable purchase price, standard quality of safety and occupational health under the framework of
trade competition in accordance with the Business Code of Conduct. The Company has clearly established purchasing regulations,
procurement and other operations. Avoid buying products from partners who violate human rights or infringe intellectual property
and do not deal business with partners who behave unlawfully.
For 2022, the Company has joined with its business partners to conduct a training technique of new hair products’
brands for customers to learn and develop them at the same time. There was no case of non-compliance with the trade agreement.
Competitors: The Company operates business with responsibility towards all parties involved. The Company places
importance on fair and honest business competition under the framework specified by law and fair competition rules. The Company
shall not seek confidential information of the competitors by dishonest or inappropriate ways, as well as not to damage reputation
by accusing commercial rivals of mistreating. The Company has established its business ethics as a policy for conducting business
under the framework of fair competition rules, supporting and promoting fair free trade, no monopolizing or requiring customers to
trade with the Company only. Over the years, the Company was never engaged in any trade dispute with other competitors.
Creditors: The Company is committed to undertaking business operations in a principled and disciplined manner in
order to build the trust of creditors by prescribing the following policies and guidelines as follows:
1. Treating all groups of creditors equally and fairly.
Being strictly in accordance with the contract or conditions that have been agreed with creditors.
Managing creditors to ensure financial position and ability to complete debt repayment.
Disclosure of the financial position of the Company is provided accurately and on time.

ISUE I

In case of noncompliance with any conditions, the Company shall inform the creditors in advance to jointly solve
the problem and prevent it from damage.

For 2022, the Company paid to all creditors in accordance with credit terms as agreed and with none of default.

ntribution Activities for i mmuni i nd Environment: Based on its due recognition of the importance

toward the development of society, enhancement of cultural preservation and local traditions. Cooperate with various agencies in
developing community and society as well as promoting those activities contributing to good relationship between the Company
and community as well as overall society. Activities that are supported for the benefit of society with continuity. Such activities are
as follows:-

- To conduct the 2nd “KMA PROFESSIONAL MAKEUP EXCLUSIVE” which it's one of the missions under the
“OCC collaborated in the Pracharath public-private project to develop career path skills” for the general public
to attend free of charge.

210



- Delivery the used plastic bottles to Less Plastic Thailand Group, social network for waste reduction and Less
Plastic.TU under “Separate Bottles to help Doctors”, a project of Thammasat University. These used plastic
bottles have been upcycled to make PPE for medical personnel.

- Delivery of care and health to children by giving IRIS OHYAMA face mask products for young children and
giving air purifier with filters to “Woman of Faith” group and Ban Thep Daycare.

Due to recognition of the responsibilities towards the society, community and environment, in which the Company has
upheld it as an important policy by offering educational opportunities for employees to learn about the environment. They have been
continually instilled with a conscience of responsibility to perform good deeds, giving and sharing, to behave as a good citizen who
has responsibility towards the society, community and environment, as well as to aware of waste reduction both internal and outside
the organization by minimizing the use of materials that may cause pollution and unbalance environment. There was a campaign for
employees to jointly reduce electricity consumption by using stairs instead of elevators and turning off the lights and air conditioning
during lunch break. Encourage the employees to communicate via internet and intranet to reduce paper consumption. Encourage
the Reuse that complies with waste management 3Rs (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle), as well as participation in the conservation
of the environment and Thai traditions and culture to be with the Thai society forever.

Information on CSR is displayed on page 162 -169

Government Agencies: The Company operates its business with integrity. Taxes comprise corporate income tax,
value added tax, specific business taxes, withholding tax, property tax, label tax, tariff, revenue stamp as well as notifications
issued by government agencies pertaining to the Company’s business operations.

The Company has a policy not to support corruption by adhering to the Principles of Good Governance for
administration. Do not ask for bribes or take it. This includes not giving or engaging in bribery to either government agencies
or private agencies for their own benefit or for the others. This includes avoiding participation in any activity that will lead to the
problem of government agencies corruption or private agencies corruption.

Policies and Guidelines Relating to Non - Involvement with Human Rights Infringement: The Board of Directors
attaches importance to fundamental human rights by respecting equality of all. Business operations are in compliance with laws

and human rights principles. There is no discrimination on the basis of gender, race, religion, political rights or other factors. The
Company has established policies and guidelines to be the business ethics, which it’s linked to the work of employees under
labor law and strictly covers the protection of the human rights of employees. The Company gives the right to employees to
file objections and prove one’s innocence in the face of an allegation or corrupt practice. Employment is not terminated unfairly.
Employees are also educated on human rights principles, which would be applied to operations. All employees have equal
rights, freedom and equality in their operations, as well as career progression.

In addition, the Company also supervised and prevented its business for not taking any action and not supporting
any activity that is in violation of human rights, such as combating against the use of child labor by not employing any person
below the age of 18 as a Company employee. No illegal labors. Throughout the Company’s business operations, there has
been no history or court proceedings relating to human rights violations.

Policies for Non - Infringement of Intellectual Property and Copyrights: The Company adheres to its policy on not
engaging in any act in possible infringement upon intellectual property rights, not engaging in any act in possible infringement
upon intellectual property rights, either by means of copying or unauthorized usage of intellectual properties belonging to other
parties. There is also a campaign to raise awareness of employees to resist and refrain from using counterfeit products.

The Company is authorized to distribute its products under the certification mark that is legal International Brand.
The Company strictly complies with the trading terms and conditions, as well as to create House Brand’s trademark of the
Company. The Company aims to innovate products and design products to achieve quality products and meet the demand
of customers, by having joint development with manufacturers continuously. Previous year, the Company did not commit any
infringement of intellectual property or trademark.

Anti - corruption Policy: In 2022, The Company received certification for a second time renewal of its membership
in the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption from the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption
Council (CAC) for the 3rd quarter of 2022. The Company has established a policy that is opposed to all forms of corruption.
The Company’s executives and employees are discouraged from successful achievement by participating in corruption. The
Company adheres to the compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy strictly and to implement an improvement, to set up
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internal control systems and operating procedures as comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy, raising awareness, educating
and understanding about the Anti-Corruption Policy, including disciplinary action to directors, exclusives and employees for
preventing and minimizing risk of corruption. Provide communication, public relations, and training on policies and guidelines
to practice against corruption, including disciplinary actions to the executives, supervisors and all levels of employees. The
Company provides new employees with the orientation regarding this policy.

The Company has continuity to proceed the practice in complying with Anti-Corruption Measurement. There is a
process for verification, monitoring and fraud risk assessment, as well as the establishment of a plan for preventing that risk.
This includes the review of corruption risk assessment that emphasizes on services dealing with government agencies, which
concerns the Company’s core business operations with internal control systems based on its impact primarily. The Internal Audit
Office has the duty to audit and propose to the Audit Committee Meeting for reviewing internal control systems and monitoring
the result of internal audit. If fraud is found, the Internal Audit Office shall report directly to the Audit Committee. And the Audit
Committee will report to the Board of Directors respectively and then the Audit Committee shall report to the Board of Directors
respectively. Previous year no significant issues were found.

Additional Information is displayed on page 240 - 242 of this annual report.

Cyber Threat Protection: Currently, the growth of technology is extremely rapid. Cyber Threat Protection is one
of the top priority issues for the Company. The Company has collected personal information of customers, business partners
or group interactions, therefore, the Company has established a policy to protect personal information. The Company has
adopted it as an appropriate measure for keeping the security of personal information, in line with the confidentiality of personal
information which includes loss prevention, assessment, destruction, implementation and disclosure of personal information
without having rights or is illegal. Training courses have been conducted for employees to be educated and realized of their
duties and responsibilities to collect, keep, use and disclose personal information from the owner of information. The Company’s
employees are obliged to comply with this policy, as well as to comply with the guidelines for protection of personal information
as prescribed by the Company, for accuracy and efficiency in the implementation of legal operations and the policy to protect
personal information of the Company, including not to be a victim of cybercriminals.

Communication Channels with Stakeholders: The Company has established the “Whistleblowing Policy” for providing
information on important issues concerning the accuracy of financial statements, defective internal control or unlawful and
unethical conduct.

Additional Information is displayed under the heading “Whistleblowing” on page 241 - 242 of this annual report.
¢ Disclosure of Information and Transparency

The Company places importance on the disclosure of information by having determined measures of information
disclosure both financial issues and non-financial issues basing on accuracy, transparency, completeness, timely disclosure and
trustworthiness in Thai and English languages. The Company has disclosed such information through various communication
channels such as the communication via SETLink system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, in the Company’s annual report
and the company website www.occ.co.th, which are for all related persons to be able to receive essential features of information
for effective decision-making.

In addition, the Company has issued guidelines for employees, executives and directors on corporate governance
policies, to ensure its business operation having compliance with applicable laws, Articles of Association, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. To increase trustworthiness and shareholders value,
the Company established the policy for the directors and executives to report their interest and the interest of related persons,
which is an interest in the management of the Company’s business. Regulations and procedures are as follows:
* Report upon assuming a directorship position or executives for the first time
* Any change of Information on Interest must be reported
e The directors and executives are required to send a Report on Interest of the Directors and Executives to the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary must send the copy of such a report to Chairman of the Board and Chairman
Audit Committee to examine within 7 (seven) business days after receiving the report.

e To prescribe the directors and executives, including spouses and underage children to provide reports of securities
trading, securities holdings and Report on Interest of the Directors and Executives, including related parties, to the
Board of Directors’ meeting to acknowledge every time when there is a change.
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The Company facilitated significant information disclosure to the public in accordance with the requirements of applicable
laws, Articles of Association, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission as
follows:

1. Disclosure of the Company’s financial statements was deemed accurate and reliable, in accordance with the
standards of certified public accountant. The Company facilitated the submission of financial information and non-financial
information to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission within the timeframe required.
Information was disclosed with accuracy, completeness, timely disclosure and transparency in Thai and English language via
the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the company website.

2. The Company disclosed its corporate governance policies, business ethics, and code of conduct for the employees,
in Thai and English language by disseminating them on the company website.

3. The disclosure of connected transaction and inter-transaction of the Company has complied with the rules of
the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. There are clear, prudent and
reasonable guidelines for the greatest benefit of the Company and shareholders. Details of such transactions are disclosed,
with specifications of contractual parties and details of transaction for carefully eliminating the conflict of interest.

For 2022, the Board of Directors Meeting approved resolution and disclosed an item of connected transaction as follows:

Connected Parties Relationship Transaction Type
|.C.C. International * Major Shareholders: * Rent (paid)
Public Company - 1.C.C. International Public Company Limited Holding » Assets & Services (paid)
Limited 19.78 % shares of O.C.C. Public Company Limited

+ Joint Major Shareholders:
- Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited
Holding 24.81% shares of |.C.C. International Public Company
Limited and holding 14.36% of O.C.C. Public Company Limited
+ Stakeholder Member - None -

Saha Komehyo + Joint Major Shareholders: * Providing financial assistance to
Company Limited - Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited connected persons
Holding 24.81% shares of Saha Komehyo Company
Limited and holding 14.36% of O.C.C. Public Company Limited
+ Stakeholder Member - None -

4. DiscloseperformanceofdutiesoftheBoardofDirectorsandallcommitteessuchasnumbersofmeetings (information under
the heading 2022 Meeting Statistic on page 237)

5. Disclosureoftypeofremuneration,characteristicsandamountofremunerationofthedirectorsindividually,structure  and
ratio of shareholding of the directors and executives, including cross-shareholding structure with major shareholders.

6. Providingchannelstothestakeholdersforsubmissionofwhistleblowingortoprovideinformationonimportantissues
regarding the accuracy of financial statements, defective internal control system or illegal and unethical practice via the
company website www.occ.co.th ©) Investor ) anti-corruption & whistleblowing or complaint about corruption. The Company
established the measurement on complaint management. Whistleblowers’ rights will receive protection and the complaints will
be kept as the Company’s confidential.

7. The Relationship with Investors: The Company has appointed the person to have the duty to communicate with

shareholders, minority investors and institutes, analysts and other concerned parties. Direct contact address is as follows:

Relationships with Investors: The Company has appointed the person to have the duty to communicate with
shareholders, minority investors and institutes investors, analysts and other concerned parties. Direct contact address is as
follows:

Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom

Accounting-Finance Division Director

Tel. No. 02-295-4545 ext 510 Fax No. 02-295-0417

Email : acc@occ.co.th

In this regard, the current significant information of the Company which entirely complete with good corporate
governance principles, shall be published on the website: www.occ.co.th and be able to download.
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6.2 Business Ethics

The Company has established the policies and guidelines for all group of stakeholders by making a manual
of business ethics and ethics of the Company directors, executives and employees, for being a part of “Good Corporate
Governance Principles Edition 2” which are publicized via display board, electronic medias and the company website www.
occ.co.th under the heading “Investor”. The Company has framed its guideline for the directors, executives and employees to
conduct business ethically by having this manual to keep the balancing and fairness for all stakeholder groups. This included
the respect for human rights, anti-corruption, not engaging in acts of pay and accepting bribes, not engaging in any conflict of
interest and to protect the Company’s assets.

The Board of Directors monitors for revision of business ethics to be updated and suitable for the change of
economy and society. The Company announces the implementation of business ethics as well as to provide manual books
to the directors, executives and employees. The Board of Directors monitors the Company to practice in accordance with the
principles of good corporate government for enhancing the Company’s good management system. Those who do not adhere to
such principles may face disciplinary action as appropriate and may also face legal action in cases where any laws are violated.
In cases where an employee is doubtful or unable to follow an instruction or make a decision, he/she may raise the issue with
the supervisor up the chain of command. Should there be any dispute, a directive by the President, Executive Committee and
the Board of Directors should prevail as a final judgment.

In this regard, the complete version of Good Corporate Governance Principles Edition 2 can be viewed on
Attachment 5 of this annual report.

6.3 Significant Changes and Improvements in Reviewing of Policies, Guidelines and
Corporate Government Systems in Previous Years
At the Board of Directors Meeting No.1/2566, held on February 21, 2023, the Board of Directors has jointly
considered sufficient assessment of the Company’s internal control for the year 2022, and agreed that over all of internal
control system, organization control, risk assessment, operational control, information & information communication system
and monitor system. It includes sufficient and appropriate transactions with major shareholders, directors, executives or those
who are connected to the mentioned persons. The only thing that the Company has never practiced is the process to monitor
and evaluate performance results according to the compliance of Code of Conduct, by independent experts from external
organizations. However, the Company already has an internal audit office, which is an independent unit, performing such duty
continuously.
The Practice of Corporate Governance on the Other Cases
Self-Assessment of the Performance of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors conducts its annual assessment once a year by adopting Code of Practice on Assessment
from the Stock Exchange of Thailand to be the guideline, to review the performance, issues and various obstacles during
previous year and to increase the efficiency of the Board of directors even more.

The annual collective evaluation form of the Board of Directors will comply with the principles of association, duty and responsibility
of the Board of Directors consists of 6 aspects as follows:

1. Structure and Qualification of the Board of Directors;
Role, duty and responsibility of the Board of Directors;
The Board of Directors’ Meeting;

Duty fulfilment of the Company Director;

Relationship with management and

S e S

Self-development of the Company Director.

Each company director shall self-evaluate own performance through Self-Assessment Form with independence. The
completed form shall be returned to the Company Secretary for processing and summarizing the report of the assessment
result, for proposing to the Board of Directors Meeting. The result of self-assessment shall be analyzed to determine measures
to further improve the efficiency of the performance of the Company’s Board.

The evaluation of performance’s result of the Board of Directors for 2022, which has been presented at the Board
of Directors Meeting No. 1/2566, held on February 21, 2023 was summarized as follows:
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Self-Assessment of the Performance of the Board on a Collective Basis

Self-assessment of the performance for the Board of Directors as a whole, each director has independently assessed
oneself according to the Assessment Form. Overall results of assessment were summarized that most of the performance were
well properly and appropriately.

Self-Assessment for a Performance Evaluation of the Committees

According to the assessment of the performance of all committees, all members from each committee evaluated
their performances in which they held positions as a whole, which comprised the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee and the Executive
Committee, the result concluded that most of the performance were properly and appropriately.

[f-A Performance Evaluation of the Director | Basi
In terms of individual self-assessment performance, each director conducts an independent assessment of his or her performance
in accordance with the Assessment Form. Overall, the assessment was summarized that the performance of the directors was
properly and appropriately.

ment for n_an Indivi

Self-Assessment for a Performance Evaluation of the Managing Director

The Chairman of the Board of Directors has the duty to evaluate and approve the result of annual performance assessment
of the Managing Director and present an opinion to the Board of Directors to acknowledge. The result of overall performance

was properly and appropriately.

Corporate Governance Principles (CG) that the Company has not yet

racticed

Principles

Reasons

Chairman of the Board is an Independent Director

The Company Board shall appoint a Non-executive Director to be the Company’s
Chairman because of knowledge and expertise in the Company’s business.
Though the Company’s Chairman is not the Independent Director, he or she
could perform duty independently. All Directors have an opportunity to express
opinion and suggestion that shall give benefit to the authority.

The number of Companies that each Director should
be appointed to suit the nature or condition of the
Company should be determined. This should not
exceed 5.

The Company does not limit the number of the Companies where each Director
has the position being held as the Director. The Company is assured that the
business competency and expertise of each Director does not depend on the
number of the working places, but it depends on the competency of that Director
and willingness to perform duty with trustworthiness from the Board of Directors
and the shareholders. Present time, none of the Company’s directors holds the
position in the other Listed Companies not exceeding 5.

The Board should establish the policy that the tenure
of an Independent Director should not exceed a
cumulative term of 9 years from the first day of the
service.

The Company has no policy to limit the term of the Independ-ent Director. The
Company’s Independent Directors are still working with independence without having
personal benefits that may conflict with the interests of the Company and make
decisions by caring for the utmost benefit of the Company. They are independent
from the executives and major shareholders.

The Board consists of none of the Directors who are
Independent Directors for over 9 years.

There is 1 Independent Director who is a member of the Company’s director for
more than 9 years because this Independent Director has qualification that
complies with the definition of the Company’s Independent Director. This
Independent Director has knowledge, competency and experience in the field
that the Company needs and performs the duty as qualified Independent
Director.

The majority of the Nomination Committee, Remuner-
ation Committee and the Chairman should be
Independent Director.

Though the Chairman of Nomination Committee and Chairman of Remuneration
Committee is not the Independent Director, she or he has knowledge and
experience of said duty for a long period. Furthermore, this person has performed
duty with responsibility, honesty and does not vote in the agenda that has equity.
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7. Corporate Governance Structure and The Information of Directors, Committees,
Executives, Employees and the Others
7.1 Corporate Governance Structure
The Management structure of the Company as of December 31, 2022 consists of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Risk Management Committee, Corporate Govermnance and Sustainability Committee
and Executive Committee
Corporate Governance Structure

C Internal Audit )
( )

Busmess Line Support Line

7.2 Composition of the Board of Directors

7.2.1 Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors as of December 31, 2022 consists of nine members as follows:

e 1 Chairman

Must not be an executive, a managing director or a person in the managing director’s family
e 3 Non-Executive Directors
e 2 Executive Directors

e 3 Audit Committee Members
Who are independent directors, two-thirds of them have directly graduated from accounting.
The numbers of independent director equivalent to 33.33% of the Board of Directors
Balance of Non - Executive Directors

Male Numt::eernf::son) Total Proportion (%)
Executive Directors 1 1 2 2222
Non - Executive Directors 2 2 4 44.45
Independent Directors 2 1 3 33.33
Total 5 4 9 100.00

The above counterbalance is in line with the Notification of Capital Market Supervisory Board No. Tor Jor
39/2559 Article: 17 requires that at least one-third of the Board be independent directors.
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7.2.2 Information of the Board of Directors and Individuals with Controlling Power of the Company

Name List of Board of Directors, Position and Meeting Attendance

Board of Directors Meeting
Rank Name Position Number of Number of
Meeting Attending
1. Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn Chairman 7 7
Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee Chairman
Nomination Committee Member
Remuneration Committee Member
2. Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong Managing Director & CEO 7 7
Risk Management Committee Chairman
Nomination Committee Chairman Member
Remuneration Committee Member
& Mr.Manu Leelanuwattana Remuneration Committee Chairman 7 7
Nomination Committee Member
4. Mrs.Tipaporn Chokwatana Director 7 7
5, Mr.Worathep Aussavakasem Director 7 7
6. Mr.Thitipoom Chokwatana* Director 7 6
7. Mrs.Watchanee Wattanathawanwong | Independent Director & Audit Committee 7 7
Chairman Risk Management Committee Member
8. Mr.Wanchai Umpueng-art Independent Director & Audit Committee Member 7 7
9. Mr.Knit Kounavudhi* Independent Director & Audit Committee Member 7 6

*absent from the meeting due to illness

7.2.3 The Information of the Roles and Duties of the Board of Directors

Charter of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors places importance on duty as the directorship with responsibility, carefulness and integrity

as fiduciary that operates such business commencing to good corporate governance principles to achieve utmost benefit for the

Company, shareholders and all parties concerned. The Board of Directors operates business with compliance to the policies, laws,

objectives, regulations, the board of directors’ resolutions and resolutions of the general meeting of shareholders. The Board of

Directors has duties and responsibilities as follows:
Authority

1.

Appoint, remove and assign authority to advisors to The Board of Directors, various committees, and/or other
parties, to carry out the assigned duties.

Approve loan extension to companies having business connection with the Company, either as the shareholder
or the company engaging in business transaction, or other companies, for such a portion exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee.

Approve the entering into guarantee for credit facility, for companies having business connection with the
Company, either as the shareholder or the company engaging in business transaction, or other companies, for
such portion exceeding the authority of the Executive Committee.

Approve engagement in a legal act that is not a financial transaction, of the amount exceeding the authority of
the Executive Committee.

Approve or cancel credit facility, for such portion exceeding the authority of The Executive Committee.

Approve the investment for the purchase or sales of common shares, and/or other securities, for such portion
exceeding the authority of the Executive Committee.

Approve the procurement and investment transactions of fixed assets, for such portions exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

18.
16.

Approve the sales and transfer transactions of fixed assets, for such portions exceeding the authority of the
Executive Committee.

Approve the adjustment, disposal, and write-off for fixed assets, and/or intangible assets no longer in use,
or being subject to damage, loss, destruction, deterioration, out-of-date, or no longer function able, for such
accounting value (historical cost) exceeding the authority of the Executive Committee.

Approve price amendment, destruction of raw materials and/or deteriorated inventories or out of date, which
are of the amount exceeding the authority of the Executive Committee.

Approve the settlement of conflicts by reconciliation or by the resolution through arbitration, petition, lawsuit,
and/o r court proceedings on the company’s behalf, for such a case not considered as normal business
practice, and/or such case considered as normal business practice, for such portion exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee.

Propose a capital increase or capital decrease or change of stock value, amendment of the memorandum of
association, rules and/or objectives of the Company to the shareholders.

Authorize to summon the management, executive or employees concerned to provide comments or clarification,
to take part in the meeting, and to submit documents deemed necessary.

Seek advice from specialists or company consultants (if any), or solicit the services of outside specialists or
consultants at the company’s expenses.

Appoint and remove Company Secretary.

The authority scope for The Board of Directors pertaining to the acquisition and disposal of assets and connected
transactions, shall comply with the Notification of The Capital Market Supervisory Board.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.
2.

Set the direction, target, and business policy for the company.

Approve the annual business plan and annual budget, as well as supervising the operations by the management
to well comply with the laws, policies, and plans in an efficient and effective manner.

Promote the establishment of corporate governance policy, business ethics, and business morality in writing, to
serve as guidelines for company directors, executives, and employees, in carrying out their business practices,
while regularly following up to ensure their strict adherence and compliance accordingly.

Define policy and supervise to ensure that the company has an effective system to support anti-fraud and
corruption practices, and the management recognizes the importance of anti-fraud and corruption and cultivates
them until they become the corporate culture.

Set up adequate and appropriate internal control systems, so as to ensure that all transactions receive proper
approval from the authorized persons, and that proper accounting review and bookkeeping practice are carried
out, while proper checking systems are in place to protect against unauthorized exploitation of company assets.
Ensure that careful consideration is given to the issue of conflict of interests, and that clear practice guidelines
are in place to protect the interests of the shareholders and the company. Also ensure that the persons having
interests at stake do not take part in adopting the decision, and that all concerned parties strictly follow the
procedures and regulations to disclose relevant information in a proper manner.

Grant approval to financial statements already audited and verified by the certified public accountant, and earlier
approved by the Audit Committee.

Being accountable to all shareholders on an equal basis, while ensuring that information is disclosed to the
shareholders and investors in an accurate, reliable, and transparent manner.

Acknowledge the corporate management report prepared by the Executive Committee.

. Set the date, time, venue and agenda for the shareholders’ meeting. Also set the rate for dividend payments (if

any), and provide the opinion of the Board of Directors relating to the meeting agenda to the shareholders. In
that regard, the company may suspend shares transfer registration for the period of 21 days leading up to the
meeting, whereby the company is required to post such an announcement to the shareholders at the company’s
head office and its branch office for the period of no less than 14 days prior to such suspension.



11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

The Company may set the date to finalize the shareholders’ list (Record Date) no longer than 2 months prior
to the meeting to entitle the shareholders to attend the meeting, and to be eligible for dividend payments.
Prepare The Board of Directors’ responsibility report toward financial statements compilation, and disclose said
report in the company’s annual registration statement/ annual report (Form 56-1 One Report).

Supervise the compilation of the documents required to be submitted to concerned regulating agencies, to
ensure that all information contained therein are true and accurate in accordance with the information appearing
in the accounting books, the registration book, and other official documents of the company.

Grant approval to the charter for The Board of Directors, and/or other committees.

Engage in those acts lying beyond The Executive Committee’s authority, or as deemed necessary by the Board
of Directors

Proper Practice Items by the Board of Directors

1.

Carry out own duties in a responsible, careful and honest manner similar to an ordinary person undertaking
the like business under the similar circumstance, without exerting any undue influence under own status as
company director. At the same time, the director is required to follow the policies, laws, objectives, company’s
articles of association, and resolution by the Board of Directors and the shareholders” meeting.

Dedicated one’s self to the company’s business operation on a continuous basis. Fully dedicated one’s time to
attend the meetings, to provide deliberation and opinions on a consistent basis.

Possess leadership, vision, ethics, and independence in decision-making for the best interest of the company
and the shareholders as a whole. Fully exercise own knowledge, competency, and experiences to contribute
to the company’s business operations on a consistent basis.

Supervise and follow-up on various aspects of company operations, to ensure efficient and effective compliance
with company policies.

Supervise all stakeholders to ensure their legitimate rights according to laws. Promote closer collaboration
between the company and the stakeholders, leading to the prosperity, financial stability, and sustainability for
the company’s business operations.

Duly report the status and changes in the holding of company securities by one’s self, spouse, and underage
children, to the Securities and Exchange Commission, as well as the Board of Directors’ meeting.

Report to the company regarding conflict of interests by one’s self or related persons, which may affect the
interests in relation to the management of the company or subsidiary companies, in accordance with the rules,
conditions, and methods set forth by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

In the case where company directors, including the relatives or related person, enter into the transactions with
the company or subsidiary companies which fall into the scope of connected transactions, and/or the acquisition
or disposal of assets, they must follow the rules set forth by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and the
Capital Market Supervisory Board.

In offering company securities for sales, the directors must closely monitor to ensure true and correct disclosure

of the company’s financial position and operating results, without concealing any information the public should
be entitled to.
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Directors with Authority to sign on behalf of the Compan

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the numbers of the Authorized Directors are “two who will

sign on behalf of the Company with the Company’s seal affixed”. The Board of Directors may specify the name of the authorized

directors whose signatures affixed with the Company’s seal.

Appointing and Removing a Company Director

The Company’s Articles of Association has provisions regarding the appointment, removal or the resignation of

thedirectors are summarized as follows:

Appointment of Directors

The directors shall be elected by the shareholders’ meeting under the following rules and procedures:
1. Each shareholder has voting right one share for one vote.

2. Each shareholder must exercise all of the votes to elect one or several persons to be the directors and must
not allot the votes to any person in any number.

3. The person who shall receive the highest number of votes to the lower number of votes in order, will be
elected as the directors equal to the number of the directors to be elected by the shareholders’ meeting in
such election. In cases where the number of votes for the candidates in descending order are equal which
would otherwise cause the number of directors to be elected by the shareholders’ meeting to be exceeded
in such election, the chairman will have a casting vote.

The Board of Directors will elect a director to be the Company’s chairman. The chairman has the right of voting
judge in case the votes of the Board of Directors in the meeting are equivalent. In case the chairman is unable to
conduct the duty temporarily or the position is vacant, the Board of Directors may consider electing or appointing
the other director to be the vice chairman, who will be assigned by the chairman to perform duty to conduct
the Company’s business on behalf.

In case on a vacancy directorship position otherwise than retirement rotation, the Board of Directors may appoint

any person who is qualified and is not forbidden by any provision of the law as a replacement director at the
following meeting with the vote of threefourths (3/4) of the remaining number of directors, with the exception of
the situation in which the remaining tenure the vacant directorship is less than two months.

In case the number of vacant directorships results is inadequate quorum, remaining directors can act on behalf

of the Board of Directors in organizing a meeting of shareholders for the purpose of appointing replacement to
complete that vacancy.

Resignation of Director

At every Annual General Shareholder Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the directors must be retired. The directors who
are retired by rotation, may be re-elected.

Apart from the retirement of directorship upon the termination of tenure, the directors will retire from the directorship
in the case of death, resignation or lack of qualification or becoming forbidden by any provision of the law or the
vote at shareholders’ meeting on resignation or the order by the court of law.

Any director who will resign from the directorship, must submit a letter to the Company. The resignation will take
effect upon the date of resignation letter has arrived at the Company. The directors who resign will notify their
resignation to the Registrar by any note.

The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution to remove any directorship prior to termination by the votes of
not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the number of shareholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote and
representing the total shares of not less than half of the number of shares held by the shareholders present at
the meeting and entitled to vote.

7.3 The Information of Company Committees
Committees
The Board of Directors appoints various committees by segregating duties and responsibilities to each committee

based on suitable knowledge and expertise to take charge of each function and to operate business with caution. Those 6

committees consisted of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk Management

Committee, the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee and the Executive Committee.
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Each committee has the scope of authority as stipulated in their respective Committee Charters as follows:
The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors. They all are independent and have complete qualification

as required by the criteria of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as follows:

Audit Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of No. of
Meeting Attending
1. Mrs.Watchanee Wattanathawanwong = Chairman of Audit Committee | Independent Director 12 12
2. Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art Committee Member Independent Director 12 12
3! Mr. Knit Kounavudhi* Committee Member Independent Director 12 11
Mrs.Choopan Imthong Secretary of the Audit Committee

*absent from the audit committee meeting due to illness

Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong and Mr.Wanchai Umpueng-art have graduated with an associate degree in

Accounting. They both have excellent knowledge of financial accounting. (details of their working experience and educational
background can be viewed under the heading “The Information of Directors” on page 298) The Audit Committee shall convene
a meeting once a month and the meeting minutes shall be reported to the Board of Directors. Mrs. Choopan Imthong, the
Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The office term of the Audit Committee’s members is 1 year or they shall vacate positions upon resignation,

removal or termination as the directors. The members who are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The Audit Committee

has authorities and responsibilities in accordance with its charter as follows:
Authority

1.

To lay down collaborative measures with a view to achieving a harmonized understanding between the auditors,
board of directors and internal audit units.

To have the power to call upon executive officers, the management or relevant employees of the Company to
give statements or opinions as well as to attend meetings or send documents which are deemed as relevant,
and also to have access to data at every organizational level.

To have the power to conduct an examination of relevant persons or relevant matters within the scope of powers
and duties of the Audit Committee.

To consult specialists or advisors of the Company (if any), or to hire external advisors or specialists where
necessary at the expense of the Company.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.

N o oA

Review the Company’s financial statements to ensure that they are accurate and adequate by reviewing the
Company’s major accounting policies, and supervising information disclosure in such manner complying
with the Financial Reporting Standards.

Review the Company’s Internal Control system and Internal Audit Unit system to ensure that it is suitable
and effective.

Determine an independence of the internal audit unit, as well as to agree with consideration to appoint,
transfer and dismiss the chief of the internal audit unit or other units which have responsibilities relevant for
the internal audit. As well as ensuring that the head of the internal audit has education, experience, and
training courses that are appropriate to perform duties.

Grant approves the Internal Audit Charter and reviews the Audit Committee Charter annually.

Grant approval and monitor the progress made in relation to the internal audit plan.

Review the practice of the Company to comply with the policy against fraud and corruption.

Determine, select, nominate and dismiss independent persons to serve as the Company Auditor, and
propose related remuneration. Also take part in joint meetings with the Company Auditor, in the absence of
the management for at least once a year.
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10.

11

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.
17.

Determine connected transactions or transactions with possible conflict of interests, to ensure that they
follow the laws, the regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the notification of the Capital Market
Supervisory Board and that they are justified and are of maximum benefits to the Company.

Supervise the Company to have channels for whistleblowers and complainers to receive the complaints about
transactions within appropriate financial budget, fraud or other matters. Whistle blowers have confidence
that the investigation process is independent, reliable and have an appropriate monitor with the protection
measure for whistleblowers.

Review to ensure that the Company duly follows the laws on securities and stock exchange, the regulations
of The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the laws conceming the Company’s business operations.

Prepare the report by the Audit Committee and disclose it in the Company’s annual report. Said report
that requires the signature of the Audit Committee Chairman, and needs to contain at least the following
information:

(@) Opinion regarding the accuracy, complete coverage and reliability of the Company’s Financial Statements

(b) Opinion regarding the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system

S

Opinion regarding the practices in compliance with the laws on securities and stock exchange, the
regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, or other laws concerning the Company’s business operations

d) Opinion regarding the suitability of the Company Auditor

Opinion regarding the transaction with possible conflict of interests

,\,\,\
\_/E

The number of the Audit Committee’s meeting and the attendance record of each member

(g) Overall opinion or comment provided by the Audit Committee out of its practices in accordance with the
Charter

(h) Other items deemed to benefit the shareholders and general investors, in accordance with the authority
and duty scope assigned by the Board of Directors.

During the course of its duty, should the Audit Committee come across or have any doubt relating to below
transactions that they may significantly affect the company’s financial position or performances, they are then
required to report the matter to the Board of Directors, in order for necessary remedial actions to be taken
within the timeframe decided upon by the Audit Committee.

(@ Transaction incurring conflict of interests.
(b) Significant fraud and corruption, irregularity or deficiency within the internal control system.

(c) Breach of laws concerning securities and stock exchange, the regulations of The Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and other laws concerning the company’s business operations.

Encourage and follow-up to ensure that the company has an effective risk management system.

Supervise to ensure that the company implements an adequate management system in accordance with the
good corporate governance practice.

Review, revise and amend the Audit Committee Charter for further submission to the Board of Directors for
approval.

Implement self-appraisal review at least once a year.

Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors and deemed justified by the Audit Committee in
accordance with company regulations and the laws.



The Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 directors as follows:

Remuneration Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of Meeting | No. of Attending
1. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Chairman of Remuneration | Non-executive Director 2 2
Committee
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Committee Member Non-executive Director 2 2
&k Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong Committee Member Executive Director 2 2

The Remuneration Committee is established to support the Board of Directors’ performance in good corporate
governance for determining remuneration, considering the criteria and type of payment for the company directors and senior
executives, in order to have confidence that the Company has an approval of remuneration with transparency and fairness.

The Remuneration Committee has a term of office for 1 year or shall be ended by resignation or death or the Board
of Directors has resolved to vacate the position. Members of the Remuneration Committee who are retired by rotation, may be
re-appointed. The Remuneration Committee has authorities and responsibilities complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1. Authorize to summon management members or employees concerned to provide explanation or take part in
meetings, and to submit documents deemed as necessary.

2. Seek advice from specialists or the company’s consultants (if any), or solicit the services of outside specialists
or consultants at the company’s expenses.

Duties and Responsibilities

1. Determine the policy and criteria for remuneration of the directors and senior executives based on performance,
authorities and amount of responsibility.

2. Determine the remuneration budget earmarked for the Board of Directors, by taking into account the practices
by other companies in the same business category, the business growth and the Company’s performances,
the remuneration budget approved by the shareholders’ meeting, and the actual remuneration amount for
the previous year, for further presentation to the Board of Directors for consideration, and for final approval
by the shareholders’ meeting.

3. Determine the remuneration budget for the company’s directors and other committees, by taking into account
their duty and responsibility scope and related performances, based on the remuneration budget approved
by the shareholders’ meeting, and propose to the Board of Directors for approval.

4. Adjust and revise the charter for the Remuneration Committee, and present to the Board of Directors for
approval.

5. Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Nomination mmitt

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 directors as follows:

Nomination Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of Meeting ' No. of Attending
1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong | Chairman of Nomination Executive Director 2 2
Committee
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Committee Member Non-executive Director 2 2
3. | Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Committee Member Non-executive Director 2 2
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The Nomination Committee is established to support the Board of Directors’ performance in good corporate

governance for nominating and selecting the persons who have qualification to be served as the directors. This is to ensure

that the Company has transparency in the recruitment process and for talent acquisition of qualified candidates.

The Nomination Committee has a term of office for 1 year or shall be ended by resignation or death or the Board

of Directors has resolved to vacate the position. Members of the Nomination Committee who are retired by rotation, may be

re-appointed. The Committee has authorities and responsibilities complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.

Authorize to summon management members or employees concerned to provide explanation or take part in
meetings, and to submit documents deemed as necessary.

Seek advice from specialists or the company’s consultants (if any), or solicit the services of outside specialists
or consultants at the company’s expenses.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.
2.

7.

Determine the rules and procedures for the nomination of the directors and senior executives.

Examine the biography and other information of persons nominated for appointment as Company Directors,
taking into consideration such persons’ knowledge, skills, experience and diversity of professional expertise, in
order to obtain the most qualified persons in accordance with the nominating rules, Articles of the Company
and relevant laws.

Consider the nomination of candidates having suitable qualifications for company directors for replacing those
who shall retire by rotation for nominating to the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval, except in
the event of the retirement of company directors at the expiration of term where a submission is made to
the meeting of shareholders for approval.

Consider the nomination of candidates having suitable qualifications for senior executive officers for nominating
to the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval

Prepare opinions or suggestions on various matters for consideration.

Revise and amend the Charter of the Nomination Committee and to submit such revisions or amendments
to the Board of Directors for approval.

Carry out any other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

The Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee consists of 6 members who are the executives from all working fields which

comprised of Accounting-Financial Division, Cosmetics Marketing Division, Hair Care Marketing Division and Office Administration

Division as following name list

Risk Management
Committee Meeting
No. Name Position
No. of No. of
Meeting Attending
1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Chairman of Risk Managing Director& CEO 12 12
Management Committee
2. | Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong = Committee Member Independent Director 12 12
3. Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn* Committee Member Accounting-Finance Division 9 9
Director
4. Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Committee Member Managing Director office 12 12
5. | Ms. Patcharee Thumrongkittikul Committee Member Hair Care Marketing 12 12
Division Director
6. Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D Committee Member Managing Director Office 12 12
Director
Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan Secretary of the Risk Management Committee
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The Risk Management Committee is established to support the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee
to evaluate the risk and determine the measurement to prevent and monitor the level of risk to be appropriate and acceptable.
Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan, the Section Manager of the Internal Audit Unit, is the Secretary to the Risk Management Committee.

The Risk Management Committee has a term of office for 1 year or shall be ended by resignation or death or
the Board of Directors has resolved to vacate the position. Members of the Risk Management Committee who are retired by
rotation, may be re-appointed. The Committee has authorities and responsibilities complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.

2.

3.

Authorize to summon management members or employees concerned to provide explanation or take part in
meetings, and to submit documents deemed as necessary.

Seek advice from specialists or the company’s consultants (if any), or solicit the services of outside specialists
or consultants at the company’s expenses.

Authorize to appoint a working group to assess and monitor risks in the entire organization.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.

Set forth the policies and targets, and plans in relation to the implementation of the risk management plans, to
be in line with the strategic direction and business plan of the organization, including changing circumstances
to effectively cope with significant risk factors both internal and external.

2. Supervise to ensure that the company has an adequate and efficient risk management system in place.

3. Promote and encourage mutual cooperation in risk management at all operational levels in the organization.

4. Supervise to ensure that the company has adequate and efficient risk management system in place, which
also cover against such risks resulting from fraudulent practices, while providing attention and priorities to
early warning signals and items showing irregularities.

5. Supervise company operations to ensure that all the departments and the company overall duly follow those
laws and regulations pertaining to company operations.

6. Develop and upgrade the risk management system throughout the organization, so as to remain effective
on a consistent basis.

7. Prepare the report by the Risk Management Committee to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The
report by the Risk Management Committee is disclosed in the Company’s annual report.

8. Review and revise the charter for the Risk Management Committee, and propose to the Board of Directors
for approval.

9. Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Th rporat vernan n tainabilit mmitt

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee consists of 3 members as follows:

Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee
No. Name Position Meeting
No. of No. of
Meeting Attending
1. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn | Chairman of Corporate Non-executive Director 8 8
Governance and
Sustainability Committee

2. Mr. Knit Kounavudhi* Committee Member Independent Director 3 2

3. | Mrs. Rattana Wonglertwit | Committee Member Executive Director 3 3
Mrs. Choopan Imthong Secretary of the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee’s

* absent from corporate governance and sustainability committee meeting due to illness
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The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee is established to support the Board of Directors fulffill their
duties with good corporate governance to determine the regulations and guideline of good operating practice in compliance with
the principles of good corporate governance for the listed companies and to support for determining the policies of economy,
society and environment which are appropriate, adequate, effective and efficient to have systematic corporation or to have overall
social and environmental development processes.

The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee has a term of office for 1 year and shall be ended by
resignation or death or the Board of Directors has resolved to vacate the position. Members of the Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee who are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The Committee has authorities and responsibilities
complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1. Authorize to summon management members or employees concemed to provide explanation or take part in

meetings, and to submit documents deemed as necessary.

2. Seek advice from specialists or the company’s consultants (if any), or solicit the services of outside specialists

or consultants at the company’s expenses.

3. Authorize to appoint a working group to support corporate governance as appropriate.

Duties and Responsibilities

1. Stipulate, review and improve Corporate Governance policy and principles, Business Ethics, Code of Conduct

for Company’s directors, managements and employees, including Anti-Corruption policy and rules and
regulations to conform the changes in business, related rules, announcements, regulations and law.

2. Stipulate policy, strategy and operation plan for sustainable business development, to comply with the

Company’s business operation in terms of economic, social and environmental aspects.

3. Stipulate Corporate Governance guidelines including Anti-Corruption policy as well as follow up, provide

advice and suggestion in order to develop a good corporate governance system of the Company.

4. Supervise and monitor sustainable development performance of the business to have balance, efficiency

and effectiveness for all stakeholders.

5. Promote and support Company directors, managements and employees to comply with Good Corporate

Governance principles and Anti-Corruption policy.

6. Review, improve and amend the Charter of Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee and present

to the Company Board of Directors for approval.

7. Other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of 6 members as follows:

Executive Committee Meeting
ACH AEUIE HERI] No. of Meeting No. of Attending
Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Managing Director& CEO 12 12
2. | Mr. Worathep Assawakasem' Sales 5 Division Director 2 2
Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn 9 9
& Mrs. Pathra ThongChaom® Account - Finance Division Director 3 3
4. | Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Corporate Office Division Director 12 12
Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul* Cosmetic Marketing Division Director 10 10
Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D Managing Director Office Director 12 12
Mrs. Choopan Imthong, the Company Secretary is the Secretary of Executive Committee

1 was appointed on November 9, 2022 2 employment contract was expired on September 30, 2022

3 was appointed on October 1, 2022 to replace Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn’s position

4 was appointed on February 22, 2022

The Executive Committee is appointed to supervise business operation, as assigned by the Board of Directors with
responsibility, caution, integrity as the reasonable diligence of the business operator will conduct under the same situation, with the trading
bargaining power free of influence of the directorship.
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The Executive Committee’s term of office is for 1 year, or shall be ended by resignation or death or being described as
inappropriate or untrustworthy to manage business of which is held by the public complying with the announcement of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand or who retired upon the expiration of term but not be re-appointed in the
same position or retired from the Board of Directors’ resolution. The retired member of the Executive Committee may be re-lected.

The Executive Committee has authorities, duties and responsibilities complying with its charter as follows:
Authority

1.

10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

To appoint, remove, transfer, evaluate as well as to determine the remuneration and welfare benefits of
employees at every level.

To appoint and remove any other working committee to carry out any activity with respect to the management
of the Company.

To issue rules and notifications on the performance of work, and to have the ability to delegate powers to
an Executive Committee member and/or an executive-level employee as the authorized signatory for giving
approval to disposals of the Company’s assets.

To approve the entry of non-financial transactions legal proceedings in an amount not exceeding Baht 10
million each time.

To approve the acceptance or cancellation of the credit lines in an amount not exceeding Baht 50 milion each time.
To approve investments and sales of investments in capital instruments and/or debt instruments in an amount not
exceeding Baht 10 milion each time.

To approve investment, sale of shortterm investment ordinary in an amount not exceeding Baht 50 milion each time.
To approve procurements and investments in fixed assets in an amount not exceeding Baht 50 million each time.

To approve the maodification, demolition and writing off of fixed assets and/or intangible assets which are
decommissioned, out of order, lost, damaged, deteriorated or outdated and no longer usable with book
value not exceeding Baht 20 million per year.

To approve the adjustment of price and destruction of raw materials and/or outstanding stocks that have
deteriorated or become outdated, which could have an effect in reducing the book value as actually occurred.
To approve the write-off of accounting bad debts and/or other assets in an amount not exceeding Baht 2
million each time.

To approve a settlement, dispute settlement by arbitration, filing of complaint, lawsuit and/or to participate
in any legal proceedings on behalf of the Company for the non-normal business of the Company amounting
not exceed Baht 2 million per episode and/or the normal business of the Company with amounting not
exceed Baht 20 million per episode.

To have the power to summon executive officers and relevant employees of the Company for an explanation,
opinion, participation in a meeting, or the submission of documents deemed as relevant and necessary.
To consult experts or advisors of the Company (if any) or to hire consultants or independent experts if
necessary, this must be proposed to the Board of Directors case by case under the Company’s expense.
To authorize the Company’s executive level or other individuals to act on their behalf.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.
2.

To propose the goals, policies, plan and annual budget to the Board of Directors.

To take responsibility for the management of the Company in accordance with the direction, goals and
business policies of the Company.

To take charge in enhancing the competitiveness of the Company and to promote continual innovations.
To supervise the operations of the Company in accordance with the laws, objects, Articles of the Company,
resolutions of the meeting of shareholders, resolutions of the Board of Directors, as well as relevant rules
and regulations.

Supervise to ensure that the Company implements its anti-corruption policy as well as to promote, encourage
the executive members, employees and all related parties to have knowledge and understanding about
anti-corruption policy and related regulations.

Executive Committee members may divide the works and responsibilites amongst themselves, in which
case reports on the activities within each member’s supervision must be submitted to the meeting of the
Executive Committee for acknowledgement.
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7. To supervise the preparation of financial statements, this shall be submitted to the auditor for audit and/or
review prior to submission to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors respectively.

8. To consider matters submitted to the Board of Directors for approval or endorsement.

9. To revise and amend the Charter of the Executive Committee and to submit such revision or amendment
to the Board of Directors for approval.

10. To carry out any other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.
7.4 The Information of Executives

7.4.1 Executives

The Company’s executives as defined by the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission consist of 9 persons. They
are assigned to have authorities to operate business in compliance with the Company’s policy (The Company’s Organizational Chart as
reported in section 7.1 Corporate Governance Structure)

Name List of the Executive officers as at December 31, 2022

Name Position
1. | Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
2. Mr. Worathep Assawakasem Sales 5 Division Director
3. | Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom Account-Finance Division Director
4. | Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Corporate Office Division Director
5. Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul Cosmetic Marketing Division Director
6. | Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D Managing Director Office Division Director
7. | Ms. Patchree Thumrongkitikul Hair care Marketing Division Director
8. | Ms. Jarinee Ritgunto Human Resource Office Division Director
9. | Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D Acting Fashion Lifestyle Marketing Division Director

7.4.2 Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and Executive Officers

The Company has a policy of paying remuneration to executive directors and executive officers fairly in accordance
with the principles and policies of the Remuneration Committee which is connected to the performance, responsible level of the
Company and performance of each executive.

7.4.3 Remuneration for Executive Directors and Executive Officers

(@) Monetary Remuneration

In 2022, the Company paid total remuneration to executive directors and executive officers for 9 persons
including a salary, bonus, traveling expenses, executive meeting allowance, Provident Fund, Social Security
Fund, medical expenses, vehicle repair expenses and Provision with a total of Baht 22,512,036.00

(b) Remuneration from subsidies - None -
(c) Other remunerations - None -

7.5 The Information of Employees

As at December 31, 2022, the total number of the Company’s employees was 733. Thereof, 628 were females
and 145 were males. Details are as follows:

Employees Head Office Branches Total
Female 207 421 628
Male 118 27 145
Total 325 448 773
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Human Resource Management and Development

In 2022, Key Performance Indicators: KPI was implemented to evaluate the success at organizational level, section
level and position level for driving the performance and development of personnel to comply with the goal of section level and
organizational level (Performance Driven). The Human Resources Department has conducted training courses for enhancing
knowledge, understanding and workshop to ensure that personnel can define the indicator at position level and section level,
including the summary of KPI Mid - Year Review and KPI Report in late 2022.

In regard to the training of employees in the necessary skills that are in line with the Company’s policies, and according
to the reduction of training proportion of the Department of Skill Development from 50 percent to 30 percent for all employees
during the year. The average number of training hours per one employee is 8 hours.

Remuneration Management and Empl Retention

The Company has the Remuneration Committee to consider and determine the policy of remuneration and employee
welfare with fairness in the organization. The remuneration structure is clearly designated with abiding by strict rules and the rate
of remuneration has adjusted to be up to date as well as to comply with the law. In terms of annual payroll rate adjustment, the
performance assessment and employee capabilities are adopted as the criteria to ensure fairmess to all employees in the organization.

Employee Welfare

The Company recognizes the need and benefit for its employees. Welfare helps support their working spirit and
encouragement, reduce cost of living, enhancing retirement security and relief troubles as follows:

Saving Cooperative
e Saha Group Employees’ Saving and Cooperative Limited (SGSC); Employees have the rights to choose to pay

monthly from 10 shares to 2,000 shares and are eligible to receive 2022 annual dividend at the rate of 3.7
percent. At the end of 2022, 163 employees were its members.

¢ Provident Fund; Employee’s contribution can be voluntarily selected from 3 percent to 15 percent of their base
salary. Employees will be entitled to receive the Company’s contributions in proportion to their years of service,
ranging from 3 percent to 4 percent of their base salary, proportional to the age of working.

e [If an employee resigns from the fund, he or she will be eligible to accumulate funds on the part of the members in
full amount and will receive benefits from the employer’s contribution proportionally according to the membership
period. At the end of 2022, 480 employees were its members. Summary of number of members and benefits
are as following table:

Year of Membership Beneg'co::rigmﬂzyers’ Number of Members Mﬁumr:g:hgf) Q%?T]EZ:LO/
Less than 3 years 0% 76 16%
Greater than 3 years 50% 27 6%
Greater than 4 years 70% 24 5%
Greater than 5 years 100% S8 74%
Total 480 100%

Cost of Living Allowance

e Uniform

* Employee Dormitory

e Pick - up / Drop - off Facility for Employees

¢ Employee Discount and Purchase Programs to assess the Company’s Products

e Coronavirus (COVID-19) Insurance

e Accident Insurance and Group Life Insurance

e Other Financial Support such as Marriage and Childbirth allowance, Loan Program From Government Saving
Bank, Disaster Recovery Allowance, Employees’” Compensation Death benefits, Funeral Allowance in case of

Death of Family Members or Spouses of Employees.
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Development of employees’ family status and empowering a sustainable future

» Scholarship from Dr. Thiam Chokwatana Foundation for Employees’ Children

e Retirement Fund

e Housing Loans Programs by the Government Housing Bank and Siam Commercial Bank.

Certificate Presentation’s Ceremony for Employees whose working Period are 10,20 and 30 Years
Knowledge Development
¢ Reading Comers for Employees
e Training Course for Improving Knowledge and Skills for Employees
Health Care Welfare
e First Aid Room in the Company
e Health Education
e Promote and Encourage Employees to exercise
¢ Free Annual Healthy Check-up and Extra Healthy Check-up for the Group whose Works have Risk
e Vaccination Against 4 Strains of Seasonal Influenza
e Coordinate with the Social Security Office for Vaccination Against Coronavirus (COVID-19) for Employees
¢ Invite Employees to Donate Blood to Save Lives
Recreation Welfare
* Organize Traditional Activities such as Songkran, Chinese New Year, Father's Day and Mother's Day
¢ Organize merit making activities, aimsgiving, pouring water on the hands of the executives and asking for blessing
e “Birth month Love Sharing”; provide the gifts to employees on birthdays
* Provide certificates and give the gifts to the retired employees
f tional Health and Working Environment
The Company has established the Safety, Occupational Health and Working Environment Policy to be in accordance with
the Safety Act B.e. 2554 that is emphasized on raising awareness of safety at work by adopting it as all employees’ mission.
The Safety and Occupational Health Committee has been appointed to have responsibilities and to enhance occupational safety
and health in the workplace in terms of training, investigation and renovation of buildings and places, environment, as well as
fire prevention preparedness. The Committee is a center for coordinating with the Human Resources Office to communicate
information about coronavirus disease (COVID-19) to concerned employees. In 2022, the number of work accidents was zero.
R nsibili war i nd the Environmen
The Company has noble intention to have its responsibility towards the society and environment, therefore CRS (Corporate
Social Responsibility) Project was established via the start with ethics and morals in business operations. The Company returns good
things to the society by participating in promotion and supporting social and environmental activities that benefit the community
continuously. CRS working group, has been appointed to promote and support the activities that are held.
Educational Activities
The Company provides scholarships to the Saha Group Employee Fund under the management of Ruam Chit Nom Klao
Foundation for Youth under Her Majesty’s Royal Patronage to support the education of youths until they have completed their
education up to the compulsory level. As well as to support the youths to have educational opportunities in order that they shall
grow up to stay in the society as the qualitative new generation and have integrity for the future. The Company collaborates with
the Office of the Vocational Education Commission, Ministry of Education to conduct a training curriculum on professional make-up
for beauty courses, to instruct the students to multidisciplinary beauty salons of Polytechnic College and Industrial and Community
Education College. This education is for preparing people to build up the basic vocational stage and development stage, along with
organizing workshops for vocational teachers in the field of beauty professions.
Employment of Disabled Person
The Company has a policy to employ disabled persons to work in the job titles that are suitable for their working ability by
selecting the one who has been introduced by Disabled Revival Center in order that they can earmn incomes for spending as their
self-dependent and can stay in this society with dignity. To practice along with the Act 35, the merchandise concession is providing
for being the profession of the disabled and this could support them to earn incomes and to get the profession and/or to be the
disabled career as sustained.
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AIDS Defense Project and Management
The Company has a palicy to prevent and manage AIDS in the Company clearly. It starts with refraining from taking blood tests for AIDS
from job applicants, respecting human dignity and fundamental rights of humanity by providing AIDS education to employees and assisting with
social activities with associations on AIDS issues continuously. In this regard, the Company has been certified to the management standards
of AIDS management in financial establishments according to the criteria of the AIDSresponse Standard Organization (ASO Thailand) from
the Department of Labor Protection and Welfare Ministry of Labor and Department of Disease Control, Ministry of Public Health.
Ener nservation
The Company has a policy to conserve energy by emphasizing on employees’ consciousness to be aware and understand
how to conserve the energy consisting of electricity, fuel, running water, and worthy use of resources, and decrease the usage of
papers. The management of transforming the equipment that needed high energy and equipment with modern technology that
it's cost for maintenance are high by replacing them with the ones that could save energy as well as to emphasize on the Reuse
campaign. Bicycles are used between office buildings and warehouse buildings.
ial Contribution
The Company has collaborated with the charity projects and regularly supported activities that concerned to the
commonweal of community, society and environment through many authorities as follows:
e Dr.Thiam Chokwatana Foundation
e SAHA Group Unity Foundation 2540
e Ruam Chit Nom Klao Foundation for Youth under Her Majesty’s Royal Patronage
¢ Department of Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities (Karunyawet Home for Persons with Disabilities Protection
and Development)
e Wat Phra Non Chakkrasi Worawihan
e Wat Dokmai Community Isolation, Yannawa
Apart from the participation in activities for the benefit of the community, society and environment through various organizations
in the form of donations for helping, the Company also participates in various charitable activities by sending a team and professional
staff to participate in the work of contributing support. The Company provides a professional team of Makeup Artists and Hair Stylists
1o take care of facial makeup and hair styling of the actors, actresses and singers as well as to provide the Company’s products
as the gifts or rewards. Good Personality Training Course will be held at required organizations as well as Makeup Training Course
that are held to support the public charitable institutions.
Awards and Certificates Received
e Honorary Outstanding Enterprise Plaque for the year 2019 from the Social Security Office
* Certificate of Standards for The Prevention and Resolution of Drug Problems in the Workplace (from 6" September
2018 to 5" September 2022) Department of Labor Protection and Welfare
e Permission No. Dor Por Phor — Ror 202 to certify Fire Safety training of 2019 from Department of Labor Protection
and Welfare
7.6 Other Important Information
The Person taking highest Responsibility in Financial Accounting and Accounting Supervisor
The Company appointed Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom, Director of Financial Accounting, to take the highest
responsibility in financial accounting and appointed Mrs. Jarunee Jaisue, Financial Accounting Manager, to be the Company’s
Accounting Supervisor under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543 (2000), by having responsibility to prepare the Financial Statements

and disclosing the Company’s information in full and accurate manner.

Additional information on the person taking highest responsibility in financial accounting and accounting supervisor
can view on Attachment 1 of page no 301 - 302

mpan ret

The Board of Directors resolved to appoint Miss Choopan Imthong, Legal Section Manager, as the Company
Secretary effective from May 14, 2008 according to the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 3/255 1. The Company
Secretary has duties and responsibilities as specified on the section 89/15 and 89/16 of the Securities and Exchange Act
(no. 4) BE. 2551, and other applicable laws to be complied by the objective, the Company’s articles of association, resolutions
of the Board of Directors’ meetings and the shareholders’ meetings with responsibility, caution and integrity

Additional information on Company Secretary can be viewed on Attachment 1 page no 302 - 303
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Head of Internal Audit

The Audit Committee has approved the appointment of Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan to be the head of Internal Audit
Unit, by approving on her education and experience in internal audit which is appropriation to perform such duty completely.

The Internal Audit Unit has a line of work to report directly to the Audit Committee and to be in accordance with the
charter of the Audit Committee. Determination and approval of appointment, removal and to migrate the Company’s head internal
audit office must be approved by the Audit Committee.

Additional information on the Head of the Internal Audit Unit can be viewed on Attachment 3 page no 303 - 304

H f rational rvision

The Company has not yet appointed its Head of Operational Supervision, therefore the Legal Department is assigned
to take responsibility and supervise the business operation of the Company to comply with laws, regulations and rules from the
relevant departments.

Investor Relation

The Company has appointed the person to have duty to communicate with shareholders, minority investors and
institutes, analysts and other concerned parties for direct contact as follows:

Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom

Accounting-Finance Division Director

Tel. No. 02-295-4545 ext. 510 Fax No. 02-295-0417

Email : acc@occ.co.th

Auditor's Remuneration

(@) Audit Remuneration
The auditor of the Company and its subsidy is the same office, which is DIA International Auditing Co., Ltd.
Payment of audit remuneration for 2022 was as follows:

Audit Remuneration Year 2022 Year 2021
O.C.C. Public Co,, Ltd 1,210,000 Baht 1,210,000 Baht
Amatissimo Co., Ltd 146,000 Baht 130,000 Baht
Total 1,356,000 Baht 1,340,000 Baht

(b) Other Service Fees - None -
The Company’s current important information with completion in accordance with good corporate governance
principles, shall be displayed for downloading other information in the company website: www.occ.co.th.

8. Key Performance Report of Corporate Governance
8.1 Performance Summary of the Board of Directors over the Past Year
8.1.1 Nomination, Development and Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors
Nominating and Appointment of Directors and Executive Officers
(1) Independent Directors
Criteria for Selection of Independent Directors
The Nomination Committee has the duty to nominate and screen qualified persons who have knowledge, expertise
and diverse professional fields to be proposed at the Board of Directors’ Meeting for consideration and then proposed at the Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders to consider for selection.

With regard to the nomination and selection of qualified persons to be appointed as independent directors other than
guidelines for consideration as mentioned above, the Nomination Committee shall consider on qualifications of independent director
equivalent to the Company’s definition or more concentration.

“The Company’s Independent Directors” are the persons who have qualifications and independence which is in line set
by with the criteria set by the Capital Market Supervisory Board as follows:

1. holding not exceeding 1 percent of the total voting shares of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary,

associate company, major shareholder or controlling person, including shares held by the connected persons
of such independent director;
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2. neither being nor having been an executive director, employee, staff, advisor who receives salary or the
controlling person of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate company, same-level subsidiary,
major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing status has ended not less than two years prior
to the date of appointment. Such prohibited characteristic shall exclude the case where an independent
director used to be a government official or advisor of a governmental agency, which is a major shareholder
or the controlling person of the Company;

3. not being a person who is related by blood or registration under laws, such as father, mother, spouse, sibling
and child, including spouse of child, other directors, executives, major shareholders, controlling person or
person to be nominated as director, executive or controlling person of the Company or its subsidiary;

4. neither having nor used to have a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary,

associate company, major shareholder or controlling person in a manner that may interfere with his/her
independent judgment, and neither being nor having been a significant shareholder or the controlling person
of any person having a business relationship with the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate
company, major shareholder or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationships has ended not less
than two years prior to the date of appointment.
The term of ‘business relationship’ aforementioned under paragraph one includes any normal business
transaction, rental or lease of immovable property, transactions relating to assets or services or grant or receipt
of financial assistance through receiving or extending loan, guarantee, providing assets as collateral, and any
other similar actions, which result in the Company or his/her counterparty being subject to indebtedness
payable to the other party in the amount of three percent or more of the net tangible assets of the Company
or twenty million baht or more, whichever amount is lower. The amount of such indebtedness shall be in
accordance with the method for calculating the value of connected party transactions under the Notification
of the Capital Market Supervisory Board governing rules on connected transactions mutatis mutandis. The
combination of such indebtedness shall include the indebtedness taking place during the course of one
year prior to the date on which the business relationship with the person commences;

5. neither being nor having been an auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate company,
major shareholder, or controlling person, and not being a significant shareholder, controlling person, or
partner of the audit firm which employs the auditor of the Company, its parent company, subsidiary, associate
company, major shareholder, or controlling person, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less
than two years prior to the date of appointment;

6. neither being nor having been any professional advisor including legal advisor or financial advisor being paid
with a service fee of more than two million baht per year by the Company, its parent company, subsidiary,
associated company, majority shareholder, or controlling person, and not being a significant shareholder,
controlling person, or partner of the professional advisor, unless the foregoing relationship has ended for
not less than two years prior to the date of the appointment;

7. not being a director who is appointed as the representative of the Company’s directors, major shareholder,
or shareholder who is a connected person of the Company’s major shareholder;

8. not operate any business which has the same nature as and is in significant competition with the business of
the Company or its subsidiary, or not being a principal partner in any partnership, or not being an executive
director, employee, staff, advisor earning regular monthly salary, or not holding shares exceeding one percent
of the total number of voting rights of any other company operating business which has the same nature
as and is in significant competition with the business of the Company or its subsidiary;

9. do not have any other characteristics which make him/her incapable of expressing independent opinions
with regard to the Company’s business affairs.

(2) Nomination of Director and Senior Management

Rights of Minor Shareholders

Shareholders may propose a list of candidates as deemed appropriate at the shareholders’ meeting for consideration.

In 2022, the Company provided minority shareholders with an opportunity to nominate candidates to be appointed as the
Company’s directors at 29" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held in 2022 during 1 December - 31 December,
2022. This right was notified on the website of the Stock Exchange of Thailand www.set.or.th and invitation for shareholders was
published on company website www.occ.co.th by providing the definition of qualifications, rules and consideration process of
the Board of Directors as well. Previous year, none of shareholders exercised such right and the Company Secretary reported
it to the Board of Directors’ Meeting for acknowledgement.
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Process of Candidate Selection

The Nomination Committee has the duty to nominate and screen qualified candidates in accordance with the
Board Diversity Policy of the Company for proposing to the Board of Directors’ meeting to consider and propose at Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to consider for further election. Exceptional in case they have not resigned according to the
agenda set forth and their agendas remain have at least 2 months left, the Board of Directors’ meeting shall consider to election
as following process:

e To determine the criteria and procedure to nominate person(s) to comply with the charter and other related
rules to replace the directors who are retired by rotation.

e To nominate the persons who have qualifications which comply with the strategy of the Company’s business
operation, and are appropriate to the vacant position that is a necessity for the management of the Company
including vision, morality and clean resume.

e The Board of Directors’ Meeting shall consider to select the persons who are proposed by the nomination
committee with major votes from the existing directors. Every meeting of the Board of Directors as agenda
set forth, the resolution was unanimously approved.

e The persons who shall be the Company’s directors as mentioned, their office term shall be equal to the
remaining period as left of the directors whom they are substituted.

Vote-casting Method for Appointment of Director

According to the Company’s Articles of Association: Chapter 3 “Board of Directors” Article 21 stipulating that the

directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the following rules and procedures:

1. One shareholder shall have one vote per one share.

2. Each shareholder must exercise all of the votes he or she has under the first paragraph to elect one or several
persons to be a director or directors and must not allot his or her votes to any person in any number.

3. The persons receiving the highest number of votes, followed by those with the highest number of votes shall
be elected as the directors fulfilling the number of directorships required to be elected by the shareholder’s
meeting. In case the number of votes for the candidates in descending order are equal and exceed the number
of directors to be elected at said meeting, the Chairman shall cast the deciding vote.

The Selection Method of Senior Management

The Nomination Committee has the duty to nominate and screen candidates who are qualified and in line with the

Company’s business in accordance with skill that’s required to the management in senior management position. This includes
leadership, vision, morality and ethics, transparent working resume, no characteristics prohibited by the laws and articles of association
of the company and having specialization as required by the company to propose at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
for further consideration to appoint.

The other level of management shall be considered to be appointed, removed or transferred in accordance with

knowledge, competence or appropriation with objective and policy as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Board Skill Matrix (as of December 31, 2022)

Skill Matrix of the Board of Directors
€ c o = g %‘ E 5 c > | _ €
Name of Directors g é %;_ § é g *E i g g é %g § (—g % %
a o < < % a X 5 = = S
1. | Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn v v v/ v v v
2. | Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong v v v v v v v v
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwattana v v v
4. Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana v v v v
5. | Mr. Worathep Aussavakasem 4 v v v v v
6. | Mr. Thitpoom Chokwatana v/ v v v
7. | Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong v v v
8.  Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art v v v
9. | Mr. Knit Kounavudhi 4 v v v
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Development of Directors and Executive Officers

All directors and executive officers are encouraged to develop the knowledge and skills by participating in training

courses related to the development of knowledge and ability to perform duties of directors regularly. All company directors have

a history of attending director training courses organized by the Thai Institute of Directors (IOD). In addition, the Company also

encourages them to attend seminars and various training courses of the Thai Institute of Directors Promotion (IOD), the Stock

Exchange of Thailand, Thai Company Registration or other independent institutes to utilize knowledge for the benefit of the Company

to improve and develop its operation as continuously.

e (IOD) Information of Training Courses organized by Thai Institute of Directors Association (I0OD)

Name of Directors DAP Class DCP Class
1. Mrs. Kanchana  Saisiriporn - 32/20083
2. Mrs. Teerada ~ Ambhanwong 3/2003 51/2004
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwattana 3/2003 68/2005
4. Mrs. Tipaporn ~ Chokwatana 3/2003 68/2005
5. Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathanwanwong - 1/2000
6. Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art 35/2003 102/2008

e For 2022, the Directors and Executives participated in training courses for knowledge development in various

fields as follows:

Training Course

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong

Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana
Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit
Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom

Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D

Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul

e CEO Club 2022: Health Tech Investment an opportunities
to create New S-Curve by The Stock Exchange of Thailand

<

- No. 3/2022 PDPA for Accounting and Finance
- No. 5/2022 Restructuring Business for Growth
- No. 6/2022 The Role of the CFO in Sustainability
- No. 7/2022 Introduction to Sustainable Finance

e TLCA CFO CPD Seminar by Thai Listed Companies Association

* Sustainable Business Development by The Stock Exchange
of Thailand

* Digital Asset by Chorborsor

e Value Added Tax by Chorborsor

* TFRS For PAEs by NYC Management Co., Ltd.

SN XX

Accountants by Dharmniti Seminar and Training Co., Ltd.

* Preparation and Accurate Cost Accounting Records for

Management Co., Ltd.

e To know all of the new 2022 Laws and Future Trend by NYC

Tax and Business Law Consultant

* To know how to prevent, to get how to resolve tax disputes by

- - v

In addition, the Company also supported and encouraged the employees and

related persons who are involved

with corporate governance of the Company to participate in the seminars and various training courses organized by the Institute
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of Directors Association (IOD), the Stock Exchange of Thailand, Thai Company Registration or any independent institutes. It
also encouraged the obtaining of additional knowledge about the law and related regulations for the benefit of the Company’s
operation and to apply the knowledge for the improvement and development of performance continuity.

¢ Orientation of New Directors

The Company arranges an orientation course for the newly-appointed directors to prepare themselves with the
performance of duties as directors. The Company Secretary is assigned to provide key information with explanation in order
that all new directors will acknowledge the business policy of the Company and other related information. They will have an
opportunity to gain a more in-depth appreciation of the nature and scope of the authority’s operations by visiting individual
sites to view the facilities. They shall be provided a “Handbook for Directors of the Listed Companies” which comprise of the
Company’s Code of Conduct, the Securities and Exchange Act, the Public Limited Companies Act, the Principles of Good
Corporate Governance, and the Charter of each Committee for acknowledgement of their roles, duties and responsibilities
including legal binding explanation, anti-corruption policy, rules and regulations as the status of the Listed Company Directors.

Succession Plan

e Senior Management

The Company prepares a succession plan for the position of managing director, senior management and in the
primary line of each working section for those who are going to retire including of the executives who fail to continue their duties.
The Nomination Committee and the Board of Directors will monitor and evaluate working performance of the employees who are
promoted to be the executives and have qualifications to be regularly considered. This succession plan must be reported to the
Board of Directors to acknowledge at least once a year, according to the criteria as following conditions:

1. To determine job titles for the persons who are considered to be encouraged to replace the vacant positions
with criteria to consider.

2. Nominating of executive officers who possess competence and abilities for replacing the vacant positions.

3. Analysis of individual qualifications in order to identify strengths and areas in need of further development
that need improvement to be complied with each job title.

4. Constructing an individual development plan to promote development of competence and potentials of
the persons who deserve to be nominated for replacing the vacant positions.
e Employees
Guidelines to prepare readiness of the persons inside the organization, begins with the nomination of smart
with kind heart persons and are new generation, who have knowledge and capabilities. They are encouraged to participate
in the training courses that help develop them to grow up with an opportunity to be the executives in the future. Individual
Development Plan (IDP) is arranged to encourage and develop the ability of the employees who have potential to be the leader
under succession plan.

8.1.2 Attendance and Remuneration of Individual Board Member

The Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Board of Directors Meeting’s schedule has been set in advance each year and all directors will be informed to
acknowledge at the early of the year. The regular schedule will be 7 meetings a year. The Board of Directors shall convene the
meetings among non-executive directors without the management to attend the meeting once a year. In this regard, additional
meetings may be held as appropriate. The Board of Directors attaches importance to attendance at meetings and considers
it a duty for Board members to attend every meeting in order to acknowledge what transpires in the meetings, participate in
policy formulation and decision-making on the Company’s business direction. All directors shall attend the Board of Directors
Meeting regularly, except in cases of incident or illness or having important missions that are unable to be avoided. In this case,
their suggestions or opinions will be conveyed by the Company Secretary to inform in the meeting for acknowledgement and
to monitor the result of that meeting.

Invitation letter to the shareholders’ meeting, meeting agenda, minutes of the previous meeting with annexes are
sent by the Company Secretary to all directors at least 7 days before the meeting for acknowledgement and prior consideration
as legally stipulated, except in cases of emergency. In order for the Board of Directors to have sufficient time to study the
information.

Chairman of the Board of Director and CEO jointly consult to consider the matters which should be included on
the meeting agenda. In addition, members of the Board of Directors may raise any issue as an additional agenda by submitting
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their proposal to the Company’s Secretary, and have it discussed and debated openly. Senior management shall be invited to
attend the meeting from time to time in order to acknowledge the policy directly for effective practice.

The Company fixes no minimum number of meeting forums at the time of making resolutions for the existing
directors that is not less than 2 or 3 of total numbers. Overview of previous Board of Directors’ Meeting, all directors participated
except if there is any important mission. As for the resolution, the meeting is cast by major vote basis. One director has one
vote. The directors with the most vested interest shall not participate in the meeting and/or vote for that issue. In case of
equal vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall vote for justice. The Company Secretary has the duty to record the minutes of
meeting in writing covering entire significant information and to complete it in a certain time and propose to the meeting for
acknowledgement to be the 1st agenda at the next meeting. According to all numbers of the Board of Directors’ Meetings on
the agendas that have to determine the approval, the Board of Directors has unanimously voted.

Minutes of meetings that are certified by the Board of Directors shall be classified in a systematic manner and be
ready for the Board and related persons to audit, as well as to facilitate easy references. During 2022, the Board of Directors
held 7 meetings altogether and non-executive directors held 1 meeting without the management in attendance.

2022 Meeting Statistic
Summary of Meeting Attendance of the Board of Directors and Committees in 2022

Corporate
Committee Sustainabilit Committee 25/04/22

Committee
1. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 7]7 - 2/2 2/2 - &)//8) - - 1/1
2. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 7]7 - 2/2 2/2 12/12 - 12/12 - 1/1
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwattana /7 - 2/2 2/2 - - - 1/1 1/1
4. Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana 7/7 - - - - - - 1/1 1/1
5. Mr. Worathep Aussavakasem' 7/7 - - - - - 2/2 1/1 1/1
6. Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana* 6/7 - - - - - . 1/1 1/1
7. Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong  7/7 12/12 = = 12/12 = - 1/1 1/1
8. Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art 77 12/12 = = = = - 1/1 1/1
9. | Mr. Knit Kounavudhi* 6/7 11/12 - - - 2/3 - 1/1 1/1
10. Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn? - - - - 9/9 - 9/9 - 1/1
11. Mrs. Phatra Thongchaom?® - - - - - - 3/3 - 1/1
12. Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit - - - - 12/12 B8 12/12 - 1/1
13. Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul® - - - - - - 10/10 - 1/1
14. | Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D - - - - 12/12 - 12/12 - 1/1
15. | Ms. Patchree Thumrongkitikul - - - - 12/12 - - - 1/1

*absent from the meeting due to sickness

1 was appointment to be executive director on November 9, 2022
2 employment contract was expired on September 30, 2022

3 was appointment to be executive director on October 1, 2022

4 was appointment to be executive director on February 22, 2022

Remuneration of Directors and Executives

The Board of Directors has determined the policy of remuneration for the Company’s directors which is based on
fairness and reasonability. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering the reasonable amount of remuneration of
directors. Criteria for consideration are based on the experiences, duties, scope of work, roles, participation, and responsibilities
of each individual director and executive by comparing with the other companies which are in the same business group, same
business expansion, growth and performance of the company. The Company’s directors who are assigned to be the members of
the committees, their remuneration will be paid more to cover their additional responsibilities by determining this remuneration as
the meeting allowance and annual remuneration. The Remunerations Committee would consider the appropriate remunerations
limit and make a proposal to the Board of Directors for consideration before submission to the meeting of shareholders for
approval of the remunerations limit.
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Remuneration of Directors are in accordance with the following criteria:

1. Meeting Allowance

In case there is more than 1 meeting of each committee in that month, remuneration shall be paid just for 1

meeting.

The Board of Directors- paid to attending directors Baht 6,000/meeting

Audit Committee

- Chairman of Audit Committee Baht 20,000/meeting

- Committee Member Baht 15,000/meeting

Executive Committee - paid to attending directors Baht 5,000/meeting

Other Committees - Nomination Committee — Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee paid to attending directors who are non — executives

Baht 5,000 /meeting

2. Annual Remuneration - paid to all Company’s directors

Total remuneration payment of the Company’s directors shall not exceed the amount which was approved by the

shareholders’ meeting.

Remuneration of Executives are in accordance with the criteria and policy set by the Remuneration Committee,

based on the Company’s operation and performance of each individual executive.

Remuneration of Directors

- 2022 Monetary Remuneration

(@)

Monetary remuneration of 9 directors comprises meeting allowance and director fees as follows:

Name Amount (Baht)
1. | Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 714,000.00
2. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 678,000.00
3. Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong 693,000.00
4. Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art 465,000.00
5. Mr. Knit Kounavudhi 469,000.00
6. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana 458,000.00
7. Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana 285,000.00
8. Mr. Worathep Aussavakasem 232,000.00
9. Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana 198,000.00

Total 4,192,000.00

Total remuneration of all 9 executive directors and the managements as follows:

Items Amount (Baht)
Salary 19,830,330.00
Bonus 1,167,824.00
Traveling Expenses 41,667.00
Executive Meeting Allowance 225,000.00
Provident Fund 618,248.00
Social Security Expenses 48,900.00
Social Security Expenses 27,947.00
Vehicle Maintenance Expenses 17,000.00
Provision 535,120.00

Total

22,512,036.00

(c) Remuneration of directors received by subsidiaries - None -

(d) Other remuneration - None -
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8.1.3 Supervising the Operations of Subsidiaries and Associate Companies

The Company has its subsidiaries, but no associate companies. To supervise the operations of subsidiaries the
designated Company Directors will meet together to select a person which the Company would nominate and vote to appoint
as a director of a subsidiary company. The number of persons voted by the Company for appointment would be in proportion
to the Company’s shareholding. According to the policy and guidelines for holding the directorship of a subsidiary company,
the Executive Director shall determine the directors or executives by their knowledge, competency and business experts to be
the Company’s representatives as joint venture. They have duties to operate for the utmost benefit of that subsidiary company.
However, the Company does not have the authority to regulate, and the administrative authority depends on the Board of
Directors of that company.

In addition, the shall supervise the subsidiaries to practice and disclose significant information pursuant to the
same regulations as the Company, such as connected transactions, acquisition or disposal of assets or other significant
transactions, including supervision of data collection and financial accounting of the subsidiaries in order to facilitate inspections
and consolidation of financial statements in a timely manner.

8.1.4 Monitoring Corporate Governance to ensure Compliance with Policies and Guidelines

The Company has established good corporate governance principles in writing, and communicates with the
Company’s directors, executives and employees to acknowledge as guidelines for everyone to perform duties with integrity
and to avoid conflicts of interests with the Company’s benefit. This includes not committing corruption that causes damage to
the organization. The Company has a process for monitoring and processing operations in accordance with good corporate
governance principles. There are practical protocols for doing such work. If non-compliance is found, the Company has procedures
that can punish or deal with violations appropriately within a reasonable time and in accordance with working regulations and
relevant law.

The charter of each committee has been revealed by addressing the segregation of duties and responsibilities
between the Board of Directors and the Management for efficient operation with regular review. The Board of Directors’
Meeting No. 1/2565 held on 22 February, 2022 resolved to approve Charter of the Board of Directors and Charter of
Committees (2022 revision) and the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 7/2565 held on 20 December, 2022 resolved to
approve Charter of the Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee.

The Company’s monitoring compliance with good corporate governance principles is as follows:

1) Prevention of Conflict of Interest

Transaction with Possible of Conflict of Interest

The Company has determined guidelines for processing transactions with or may have Conflict of Interests
between shareholders, directors, executives and other persons who may have other conflict of interests with prudence, logic and
care for the utmost benefits of the Company. Pricing is subject to fair trading conditions as arm’s length third party. Information
is accurately and fully disclosed in accordance with the procedures prescribed with prudence within the principles of reason
and independence to each other. There is a transparent process for approving transactions and care for the utmost benefits
of the Company by adhering to the instructions and guidelines of the Office of the Board of Directors SE.C. and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand as priority.

Judgment of transactions that may have a conflicts of interests each time, the Company sets up the procedures
regarding connected transactions, informs and discloses to the meeting by specifying the name and relationship of the connected
parties, pricing policy, transaction values, counterparties, reasons for the necessity of such transactions, opinions of the Audit
Committee, as well as opinions that differ from the resolutions of the meeting. The directors who are stakeholders must
leave the meeting room without being present and abstain from voting on that agenda, to allow other committee members to
express their opinions independently. The Audit Committee carefully joins for considering the suitability and expresses opinions
independently.

For 2022, the Board of Directors has approved related transactions as displayed on page 213 .of this annual
report.

The Company has none related transactions that break the rules or contravene the regulations of the Office
of Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

56-1 ONE REPORT 2022 239



2) Use of Internal Information for Exploitation

Regulated the Use of Internal Information

The Company supervises and prevents the use of inside information in accordance with the principles of corporate
governance by establishing it in writing on business ethics and the Company’s Code of Conduct for the directors, executives and
employees to adopt it for practice with honesty, responsibility, discipline and good faith toward the majority. Do not unlawfully
use positions of exploitation for themselves or other persons. The significant policies can be summarized as follows:

* Directors, executives, employees and related persons such as spouses and minor children including staffs
who work in the units that concern to information, are prohibited to use inside information that has significant
issue for the change in the price of the Company’s securities and are still not disclosed to the public for
securities’ trade of the Company within 1 month prior to the disclosure of the financial statements to the
public and after the financial statements are disclosed 24 hours later. Failure to comply will be considered
a disciplinary offense in accordance with the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Company has notified the
directors and executives of the period for which the Company’s securities should be retained in 2022, the
company directors and executives strictly comply with the policy and did not appear to have traded securities
of the Company during the prohibited period.

* The Company’s directors and executives have duties to report the change of the Company’s securities
holdings to the Office of Securities Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 59 of the Securities and
Exchange Act within 3 days counting on the day of changing of assets holding. The Company has set an
agenda to report on the Company’s securities holdings of directors and executives, including spouses, as a
regular agenda item at the Board of Directors Meeting and Executive Committee Meetings. In addition, there
is an establishment of a policy for the directors and senior executives to notify the trade of the Company’s
securities to the Company Secretary at least 1 business day prior to trading.

3) Anti-Corruption
Anti - Corruption Policy :

In 2022, The Company received certification for a second time renewal of its membership in the Thai Private Sector
Collective Action Against Corruption from the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Against Corruption Council (CAC) for the 3"
quarter of 2022. The Company has established a policy that is opposed to all forms of corruption, including continuously monitoring
and evaluating the implementation of the anti-corruption policy.

The Company has a policy opposing all forms of corruption. The Company’s executives and employees are discouraged
from successful achievement by means of fraud, to give or take bribes for obtaining the benefits of the company, oneself or the
others. This includes not giving or engaging in bribery to other entities, both government and private sectors whether for their
own sake or for others’ sake. The Company adheres to the compliance with the Anti-Corruption Policy strictly and to implement
an improvement, to set up internal control systems and operating procedures as comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy, raising
awareness, educating and understanding about the Anti-Corruption Policy, including disciplinary action to the directors, exclusives
and employees for preventing and minimizing risk of corruption. The Company has provided commmunications, public relations, and
training on policies and guidelines to practice against corruption, including disciplinary actions to the executives, supervisors and all
levels of employees. The Company provides new employees with the orientation regarding this policy as well.

The Company has continuity to proceed the practice in complying with Anti-Corruption Measurement. There is a
process for verification, monitoring and fraud risk assessment, as well as the establishment of a plan for preventing that risk. This
includes the review of corruption risk assessment that emphasizes on services dealing with government agencies, which concerns
the Company’s core business operations with internal control systems based on its impact primarily. The Internal Audit Office has
the duty to audit and propose to the Audit Committee Meeting for reviewing internal control systems and monitoring the result of
internal audit. If fraud is found, the Internal Audit Office shall report directly to the Audit Committee. And the Audit Committee will
report to the Board of Directors respectively and then the Audit Committee shall report to the Board of Directors respectively.
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The Company proceeds its operation to ensure the practice of anti-corruption to comply with the policy continuously

as follows:

The Board of Directors: express commitment to anti-corruption

Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee: review of anti-corruption policies, practice and related
regulations

The Risk Management Committee: supervise and assess risks throughout the organization, assess the risks of
corruption and support anti-corruption activities

The Audit Committee: consider reviewing the internal control system and risk management system; especially at
risks of corruption as well as supervising and reviewing risks management and anti-corruption measures

Internal Audit Office: proceed improvement of internal control system and operational procedures in accordance
with anti-corruption policy, review anti-corruption policy compliance, audit, monitor, assess and report to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors

Review the implementation of anti-corruption policy according to the “Anti-Corruption” handbook

Continuous communication and public relations regarding anti-corruption policy and related protocols to third
parties and the Company’s staff via various channels such as company website, intranet and circular letter

PR the trade partners to acknowledge and comply with No Gift Policy and no receptions during the New Year
festival. It also requires the Company’s personnel who accept gifts and receptions to comply with such policy, in
order to establish good norms for conducting business fairly to all relevant parties

Communicate anti-corruption practices to business partners and encourage them to become anti-corruption
networks

Establish communication channels to receive complaints or to inform clues about corruption with measurements to
protect whistleblowers. Whistleblowers or complainers shall be protected and kept as confidential. Whistleblowing
cases shall be taken to the investigation process with cautions and faimess.

For 2022, there were no significant issues that had relation with anti-corruption and operations that were not
complied with the law and related regulations as well as violation against business ethics.
4)  Whistleblowing
The Company has established a Whistleblowing Policy or provision of information on important issues regarding

the accuracy of financial statements, defective internal control system or illegal and unethical conduct, in order to ensure that

the Company’s whistleblowers are properly and fairly protected. As well as being protected from bullying as a result of such

complaints. The Company provides the channels for all stakeholders to report or complain on those matters likely to cause

damage to the Company, or any act likely to violate the laws and business ethics, or the matters that the stakeholders’ rights

are violated or fraud. They can directly inform clues or comments to the managing director or CEO, the Audit Committee, and

Company’s director or either way as follows:

1.
2.

Via Post Office addressing to O.C.C. PLC 729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpong, Yannawa, Bangkok 10120
Via E-Malil to

- The Audit Committee E-mail : auditcommittee@occ.co.th

- Company Secretary Email : law@occ.co.th

- Internal Audit Office Manager E-mail : audit@occ.co.th

- Human Resource Office Manager E-mail : hrd@occ.co.th

Verbal complaints or written notes sending directly to the following receivers:

- Internal Audit Office Manager Tel. 02-295-4545 ext 429

- Human Resource Office Manager Tel. 02-295-4545 ext 118

- Company Secretary Tel. 02-295-4545 ext 433

For 2022, the Company did not receive complaints of fraud or the breaking of morality or the negative reputation

of the Company.
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Whistleblowers or Complaints Management

¢ The recipient of the complaint shall conduct an investigation and gather the facts, or may assign anyone or
reliable units to investigate such facts and collect documents obtained from such channels for summarizing
all suggestions and issues. In case of cause, then proposes it to the Managing Director to determine and
set up an Investigation Committee to investigate such complaints, for the judicial process to investigate and
determine to punish offenders. In case an evidence is obviously shown that whistleblowers or complainers
mean to complain with dishonesty, they may be punished in accordance with each case as follows:

- General cases to have a period of proceeding to complete within 30 days

- In case of urgent matters or matters expected to have damage value above Baht 1 million, or loss of business
opportunities, or related to the reputation of the Company’s image and the completion period is within 15
days

- In th mpany directors /executives are th mplainants, this complain case must be proposing to the
Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Chairman of the Audit Committee for determining an establishment
of the Investigation Committee (IC) to consider the complaints and summarize suggestions and other issues,
which an operation period is expected to be completed within 30 days and then propose to the Chairman
of the Board of Directors or Chairman of the Audit Committee to report the result of the consideration to the
Board of Directors

e However, in cases where there is sufficient evidence that a whistleblower or complainant reports dishonestly,
they may be punished in each case as follows:

1. In terms of employees, they shall be entered in the process of investigation for considering punishment, in
accordance with the Company Code of Conduct.

2. In case they are outside persons and cause damage to the Company, it may consider legal proceedings
against whistleblowers or complainants.

The Company has established measures for protecting whistleblowers or complainants as follows:

1. The Company shall keep information on whistleblowers or complainants confidential and discloses as necessary to
take into account safety and prevent possible damage to whistleblowers or complainants (in case of whistleblowers
or complainants do not disclose names and surnames, they must provide sufficient details of facts or evidence
that shows of fraud, corruption or misconduct as complained.)

2. Whistleblowers or complainants can request protection as necessary and appropriate.

3. The Company shall not demote, do not punish or give negative consequences to complaint employees or those
who deny corruption, even if that action causes the Company to lose business opportunities.

4. Those who have suffered damage shall receive mitigation in a fair and appropriate way or process.

The Company will not accept incident/action complaints as follows:

1. Cases of complaint which the Company has accepted for consideration or has been completely investigated,
and has no addition of significant evidence.

2. Cases of those who complain with termination of employment are over 5 years.

3. Cases of complaint which have insufficient or unclear evidence for identity the practice of corruption for investigation
to find out the truth.

Confidentiality

Information obtained from whistleblowers or complainers, the Company shall keep it confidential and disclose

nothing to those who are uninvolved. Unless, it is necessary at the stage of investigation, prosecution, testifier, verbal statement or
cooperation with the court or government agencies with legal authorities.
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8.2 Report on the Performance of the Audit Committee over the Past Year

8.2.1 Meetings and Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings by Individuals

Details can be viewed on page 221, 237

8.2.2 Performance of the Audit Committee

Apart from the disclosure of the Audit Committee Report, as per details on page 324 - 325 , the Audit Committee
has duties to perform various tasks as follows:

1. Monitor the operations of the Internal Audit Office and provide advice on various matters.

2. Consider related matters to the risk management such as monitor inventory levels, proportion of inventory
age at distribution centers, legal litigation, suitability of different types of insurance.

3. Consultations and Recommendations to the Risk Management Committee to determine the risk of the
Company to cover the entire organization.

4. Review the compliance of Anti-Corruption Policy.

8.3 Summary of the Performance of the Committees

8.3.1 Meetings and Attendance at the Committee Meetings by Individuals

e The Nomination Committee; details can be viewed on page 223, 237
e The Remuneration Committee; details can be viewed on page 223, 237
* The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee; details can be viewed on page 225, 237
e The Risk Management Committee; details can be viewed on page 224, 237
e The Executive Committee; details can be viewed on page 226, 237

8.3.2 Report on the Performance of the Committees

e The Nomination Committee; details can be viewed on page 175
e The Remuneration Committee; details can be viewed on page 174
* The Corporate Governance and Sustainability Committee; details can be viewed on page 176
e The Risk Management Committee; details can be viewed on page 173
e The Executive Committee; details can be viewed on page 172

9. Internal Control and Related Party Transactions

9.1 Internal Control

9.1.1 Opinion of the Board of Directors on the internal control system

The Board of Directors has established an internal control and risk management system. including analysis

and assess both external and internal risk factors which may have an impact on business operations by assigning Audit

Committee and Risk Management Committee are responsible along with preparing a charter that specifies clear scope,

duties and responsibilities. In order to have reasonable assurance that The company has a system internal control that is

sufficient and appropriate to support the Company’s operations to achieve the objectives and goals set out are as follows:

Policy and goals of the company

Information systems and financial reports are accurate and reliable.

There is compliance with rules, policies, work processes of the company and related laws.

The Company’s assets are real and are well controlled, taken care of, stored and maintained, as well as
having assets protected from misuse or unauthorized use by directors or executives.

The Company’s operations and efficient use of resources

Acknowledge abnormal items which may be an early warning signal to help reduce the risk to an acceptable
level
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At the Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 1/2023 on February 21, 2023, All 3 Audit Committee members
attended the meeting. The sufficiency and suitability of the internal control system is assessed in accordance with the
guidelines of the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) by summarizing the
opinions on various aspects of internal control system, the Company has sufficient internal control system and suitable
for the company’s business operations. There is an acceptable level of risk management. The Company’s internal
control system has 5 parts as follows:

Control Environment

The company has an organizational structure. A clear chain of command suitable for the changing
environment. Including delegating authority Responsibilities and job descriptions are assigned to employees in each
position appropriately. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are set as guidelines for work and evaluation of employees at
all levels to meet the organization’s goals. There is continuous training to improve the skills and abilities of employees
(Competency) in various career fields. Covering all work groups including preparing/improving work flow charts and
operating manuals used in operations to always be up-to-date.

Risk Assessment

The company follows the process of risk management process of COSO ERM (COSO Enterprise Risk
Management) by assessing risks from both internal and external factors that affect the achievement of organizational
objectives adequately and appropriately and determines control activities to manage. To keep the risk at an acceptable
level along with clearly specifying the responsible person and the duration of the action. There is also a risk management
and internal control committee to supervise the company’s risk management and internal control to meet the standards.
Principles and guidelines for good corporate governance. Define policies and strategies for effective risk management
that are suitable for the business environment.

Control Activities

The company has clearly separated the duties and responsibilities of each position. Authorities manuals
and operational manuals/procedures are reviewed to suit the organizational structure and current operations. The
performance is reviewed to ensure compliance with rules, regulations, manuals on authority and operational manuals
on a regular basis. To ensure that the operation has an adequate and appropriate internal control system and efficient
operation.

Information an mmunication

The company provides modern technology and information systems efficient to support operations
within the organization to achieve its objectives. The information system has been continuously developed make the
communication system fast. Able to manage work flexibly and clearly communication through information technology
systems. There is a unit to collect, analyze, store in the company’s data warehouse system. It increases the effectiveness
and efficiency of management throughout the organization. This allows the company to control and prevent problems
from mistakes and make information fast, accurate, consistent and reliable. Make the management know the information
on time. And can be used to make decisions in a timely manner.

Monitoring Activities

The Board of Directors has established an internal control system that covers all aspects such as accounting
and finance performance, compliance with laws, regulations, personnel management and asset stewardship. The
company has a system to monitor performance regularly compare performance against set targets. If it is found that
there are environmental factors that will affect the performance. Appropriate strategic adjustments have been made
in accordance with the evaluation results in order to achieve the targeted performance. There is a meeting of the
Board of Directors and has a hierarchical performance tracking system from the Board of Directors and the Executive
Committee to track goals and supervise the implementation of strategic plans. The operating plan is in the annual
business plan that is regularly approved by the Board of Directors. And there is a report for the board to know.

244



In addition, the Company has regularly audited the compliance with the internal control system by having
the Internal Audit Department to inspect its operations and report results independently to the Audit Committee. In
2022, the Audit Committee there were 12 meetings in total.

9.1.2 Opinion of the Audit Committee on Internal Control System

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that Company’s internal control system and the supervision
and management system of the subsidiary is appropriate and sufficient. Consistent with the opinion of the Board
of Directors and the auditor has commented that there are no significant flaws in the internal control system.

9.1.3 Head of Internal Audit

The Audit Committee agreed to appoint Ms. Natchanok Ueasiriphan served as Head of Internal Audit
Office which considered it appropriate to perform duties fully with responsibility for inspection Evaluate the internal
control system, monitor the system. To make sure The Company has such a system that is sufficient and efficient
in accordance with its intended purpose by reporting directly to the Audit Committee and the Managing Director.
The Company’s internal audit department is independent. Perform both operational audits and compliance audits
with various laws and regulations. according to the annual audit plan Prepared by considering together with various
risk factors related and has been approved by the Audit Committee

The Internal Audit Office has a direct reporting line to the Audit Committee and according to the Audit
Committee Charter of the Company Consideration of the appointment, removal, and transfer of the person holding
the position of Head of the Internal Audit Office of the Company Must be approved by the Audit Committee.

9.2 Related Transaction

As at December 31, 2022 the Company had transactions with related persons or parties following to
the Note to the Financial Statement 5. Pages 268 - 271
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SECTION 3 Financial Report Attachment

Report of the Board of Directors’ Responsibility for

the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors duly recognized the obligations and responsibilities as the listed company’s Board of Directors,
to have responsibility towards the financial statements of O.C.C. Public Company Limited. The said financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS), with appropriate accounting policies applied on
a consistent basis. Where judgment and estimates were required, these were made with careful and reasonable consideration,
and adequate disclosures have been made in the notes to the financial statements including of the explanation, financial situation
analysis and the Company performance result for the benefit of shareholders and investors. These financial statements have

been audited by independent certified auditors who have given their unqualified opinion.

In addition, the Board of Directors encouraged the Company to perform in compliance with good corporate gover-
nance principles, as well as established a risk management system and effective internal control system with efficiency to ensure
that the financial records are accurate, complete and sufficient to safeguard the Company’s assets. This includes prevention of

fraud or significant unusual transactions.

In this regard, the Company’s Audit Committee, which consists of independent directors, has reviewed the quality of
the financial statements and internal control system. The Audit Committee has expressed its opinion with regard to the stated
matters in the Report of the Audit Committee which is presented in this annual report and and the annual registration statements
(Form 56-1).

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Company’s good corporate governance, risk management system
and internal control system is adequate and appropriate and can reasonably assure the credibility of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022, has been prepared and disclosed

correctly, as it should in significant.

He= Toverds /)

Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong
Chairman Managing Director and CEO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of O.C.C. Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements of O.C.C. Public Company Limited AND
SUBSIDIARIES (the Group) and of O.C.C. Public Company Limited (the Company), which comprise the consolidated and separate
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the consolidated and separate statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and consolidated and separate statements of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of O.C.C. Public Company Limited AND SUBSIDIARIES and of O.C.C. Public Company Limited as at December
31, 2022, and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of
my report. | am independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants including
Independence Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions (Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants)
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters included auditing procedures are as follows:
Provision for devaluation of inventories.

As stated in Note to financial statements No. 8, the Company has material amount of inventories amount of Baht 140 million
as at December 31, 2022 valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value in the financial statements. The Management
Jtherefore, has made judgment to consider the suitable amount of provision for devaluation of inventories against obsolete
inventories by making analytical in almost expired and outdated of each inventory. The net realizable value is considered from
expected discount sales plan.

| have ensured relating to the suitable assumption used by the Management for calculation provision for devaluation of inventories
by included.
¢ Obtain an understanding of operation procedure and internal control related to consideration of provision for
devaluation of inventories
* Review the design and implementation of internal control procedure.
e Perform the operating effectiveness testing over the internal control procedure of provision for devaluation of
inventories process.
¢ Perform substantive testing as follows
- Observing in physical count of inventories.
- Comparing cost of goods with net realizable value calculated by the selling price after reporting period.
- Making analytical in turnover of inventories in order to indentify the slow-movement, almost expired and
outdated inventories.
- Test calculation in provision for devaluation of inventories.
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Revenue recognition from consignment

The company is cosmetic and clothes distributor by having main channel in Department Store (Customer). Ownership of
consignment goods is not transferred to customer when delivered and customer has the rights to return goods in various
ways in some cases. Revenue from consignment will not be recognized until ownership is transferred from customer to third
person. The consignee will not hold ownership or make payment until goods is sold from consignee to third person according
to condition in the consignment agreement.

| have assessed and tested the effectiveness of internal control in order to ensure the accuracy and completeness of recording
revenue recognition from consignment by.

¢ Obtain an understanding of operation procedure and internal control related to consignment.

¢ Check by random supporting document of recording revenue recognition incurred during the year and at the end
of the year for considering the possibility of unusual sale transaction.

* Check by random inventories physical count monthly report and comparing with detail of inventories in the computer
system and at the end of period.

¢ Check by random by making reconcile monthly revenue in computer system with summary of sales from Department
Store.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information in the annual report of the
Group, but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual
report of the Group is expected to be made available to me after the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not and wiill
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report of the Group, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance for correction of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities

within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. | am responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with the Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably

be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were of most significance

in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

| describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,

in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

D | A International Audit Co., Ltd.

(Mrs. Suvimol Chrityakierne)
C.P.A. (Thailand)
Registration No. 2982

February 21, 2023
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O.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial statements

statements
Assets Notes December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 125,839 149,974 125,460 149,609
Trade and other current receivables 7 121,348 125,544 120,308 124,794
Inventories 8 141,043 198,453 140,219 197,978
Other current financial assets 9 190,669 80,002 190,669 80,002
Other current assets 34,424 31,659 34,254 31,615
Total current assets 613,323 585,632 610,910 583,998

Non-current assets
Other non-current financial assets 10 212,550 212,969 212,550 212,969
Investments in subsidiaries 11 - - 11,510 14,481
Loans to related company 12 - 3,081 9,701 3,081
Investment property 13 311,804 313,501 311,804 313,501
Building and equipment 14 16,419 13,239 9,518 10,339
Right-of-use assets 15 35,196 39,411 29,625 35,092
Other intangible assets 16 23,821 27,049 14,304 16,277
Deferred tax assets 17 20,184 21,277 20,221 21,342
Other non-current assets 18 4,038 6,631 3,742 6,281
Total non-current assets 624,012 637,158 622,975 633,363
Total assets 1,237,335 1,222,790 1,233,885 1,217,361

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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O.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity Notes

Current liabilities

Shortterm loans from related persons 19
Trade and other current payables 20
Current portion of lease liabilities 21

Provision for other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 21
Non-Current provisions for employee benefits 22
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
80,000,000 common shares of Baht 1 each
Issued and paid share capital
60,000,000 common shares of Baht 1 each

Premium on share capital
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve
Other reserves
Unappropriated

Other components of Shareholders’ equity

Total owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Consolidated financial

statements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

56-1 ONE REPORT 2022

2022 2021 2022 2021

1,000 - - -
121,152 98,610 119,410 97,966
4,595 3,166 2,843 2,331
2,911 2,027 2,911 2,027
129,658 103,803 125,164 102,324
16,891 18,766 12,842 15,147
65,316 69,063 65,211 69,003
82,207 87,829 78,053 84,150
211,865 191,632 203,217 186,474
80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000
60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
36,500 36,500 36,500 36,500
8,260 8,260 8,260 8,260
49,000 49,000 49,000 49,000
768,056 778,412 775,150 781,984
102,173 95,558 101,758 95,143
1,023,989 1,027,730 1,030,668 1,030,887
1,481 3,428 - -
1,237,335 1,222,790 1,233,885 1,217,361
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Notes
Revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Gain on disposal of investment property
Gain on measuring fair value of other current finacial aseets
Profit (loss) from operating activities
Finance income
Finance costs
Profit (loss) before income tax expense
Income (expenses) tax revenues 24
Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive gain (loss)

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Gain (Loss) on investments in equity designated at
fair value throughother comprehensive income

other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income that will be reclassified

to profit or loss
Gain (Loss) on remeasuring of defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income that will be reclassified

to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income (expense) forthe year

252

statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
860,108 718,680 850,123 705,730
(494,443) (409,660) (487,405) (401,546)
365,665 309,020 362,718 304,184
15,490 8,420 15,554 8,188
(269,279) (221,030) (262,446) (216,171)
(140,795) (132,801) (139,554) (128,894)
- 35,401 - 35,401
667 2 667 2
(28,252) (988) (23,061) 2,710
376 327 375 327
(1,315) (1,743) (1,008) (1,449)
(29,191) (2,404) (23,694) 1,588
4,426 (484) 4,398 (507)
(24,765) (2,888) (19,296) 1,081
28,625 (4,143) 28,625 (4.662)
(5.725) 828 (5,725) 932
(1,029) 827 (1,029) 827
206 (165) 206 (165)
22,077 (2,653) 22,077 (3,068)
(2.688) (5.541) 2,781 (1,987)




0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial statements

statements
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021
Profit (loss) attributable to
Owners of parent (22,818) (1,972) (19,296) 1,081
Non-controlling interests (1,947) (916)
(24,765) (2,888)
Total comprehensive income expense attributable to
Owners of parent (741) (4.625) 2,781 (1,987)
Non-controlling interests (1,947) (916)
(2,688) (5,541)
Profit per share (Baht)
Basic eamnings per share (0.38) (0.03) (0.32) 0.02
The number of common share issued 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial statements

statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year (24,765) (2,888) (19,296) 1,081
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) to cash receipt (paid)
Income tax expense (4,426) 484 (4,398) 507
Finance costs 1,315 1,743 1,008 1,449
Depreciation and amortization 18,857 19,763 15,215 16,880
Bad debt and expected credit loss (Reversal) (790) (1,968) (790) (1,968)
Loss on cost adjustment for inventories 3,220 3,961 3,220 3,961
(Profit ) loss on devaluation of inventories (1,200) 331 (1,200) 331
Inventory donation and welfare expense 326 583 326 584
Write off ruined goods 4,454 (16) 4,454 (16)
Unrealized Gain from other current financial asset (667) (2) (667) (2)
Allowance for expected credit loss of deposit (Reversal) - (93) - (93)
Unrealized Gain from other non-current financial asset - (2,384) - (2,384)
Provision for impairment of investment in subsidiary - - 2,971 -
Gain on disposal of investment property - (35,401) - (35,401)
Loss on disposal and written-off of building and equipment 502 - 502 -
Provisions for employee benefits 4,298 6,559 4,253 6,514
Profit (loss) before changes operating assets and liabilities 1,124 (9,328) 5,598 (8,557)
(Increase) Decrease operating assets
Trade and other current receivables 4,986 20,076 5,276 19,435
Inventories 50,610 (7,622) 50,959 (7,641)
Other current assets (2,764) (628) (2,638) (734)
Other non-current assets 2,592 (2,736) 2,538 (2,571)
Increase (Decrease ) operating liabilities
Trade and other current payables 21,508 (14,038) 20,410 (13,325)
Provision for other current liabilities 884 (437) 884 (437)
Cash received from operations 78,940 (14,713) 83,027 (13,830)

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial statements

statements
Notes 2022 2021 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities (Continued)

Employee benefits paid (9,074) (13,800) (9,074) (13,800)

Interest paid (1,315) (1,743) (1,008) (1,449)
Net cash provided by (Used in) operating activities 68,551 (30,256) 72,945 (29,079)
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received (paid) from short-term loans from

financial institutions - (80,000) - (80,000)

Cash paid for purchasing other current financial assets (110,000) (80,000) (110,000) (80,000)

Cash received from disposal other current financial assets - 40,000 - 40,000

Cash paid for purchasing other non-current financial assets (2,261) (18,000) (2,261) (18,000)

Cashreceived from disposal other non-current financial assets 31,305 613 31,305 613

Cash received from shortterm loans from related persons 1,000 - - -

Cash received from loans to related company 3,081 2,014 3,380 2,014

Cash paid to loans to related company - - (10,000) -

Cash received from disposal investment property - 256,505 - 256,505

Cash paid for purchasing investment property - (457) - (457)

Cash paid for purchasing of building and equipment (9,631) (1,961) (4,266) (1,116)

Cash received from disposal of building and equipment 671 - 487 -

Cash paid for purchasing of other intangible assets (289) (121) (289) (107)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (86,124) 118,593 (91,644) 119,452
Cash flows from financing activity

Cash paid for Lease liabilities (3,562) (2,935) (2,450) (2,148)

Divident paid (3,000) (9,000) (3,000) (9,000)
Net cash used in financing activity (6,562) (11,935) (5,450) (11,148)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (24,135) 76,402 (24,149) 79,225
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 6 149,974 73,572 149,609 70,384
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 6 125,839 149,974 125,460 149,609

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

General information

Registration : The Company was incorporated in Thailand on August 14, 1973 and registered and transformed

as a public company limited on May 9, 1994 registration No. 0107537001323

Location at : No. 729/4-7 Rachadapisek Road, Kwang Bang Phong Phang, Khet Yannawa district,

Bangkok 10120

Type business: Distributing cosmetics, clothes, beauty accessories and rendering of beauty services.

Major shareholder :  Major shareholder are I.C.C. International Public Company Limited (19.73% shareholding), and

Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited ( 14.36% shareholding) both were
incorporated in Thailand, and Mr. Sumroeng Manoonphol ( 15.40% shareholding ).

Subsidiaries: Production distribution bakery service and beverage.

Basis for the preparation of financial statements

2.1

2.2

23

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under
the Accounting Profession Act BE. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations
of the Notification of the Department of Business Development, issued under the Accounting Act BE. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in regarding
accounting policy.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Baht currency used in operation of the Company.

New financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group has adopted the revised and new financial reporting standards and interpretations which
are effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These financial reporting standards were aimed

at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed
towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for users of the standards.

The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the company’s financial
statements.
Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2023

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of revised financial reporting standards, which are effective
for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with
the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes directed towards clarifying
accounting treatment and, for some standards, providing temporary reliefs or temporary exemptions for users.

The management of the company is currently in process of evaluating the plan to be executed and considering the
impact of these standards on the financial statements in the year when they are adopted.

3. Consolidated financial statements preparation basis

3.1

These financial statements have been consolidated by including the financial statements of O.C.C Public Company
Limited and its subsidiaries of which is controlled by O.C.C Public Company Limited as follows:
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

shareholding or  total assets total revenues
equity

Company's name Type of Business Establishment in 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Direct subsidiaries
Amatissimo Co., Ltd. Production distribution bakery Thailand 7692 76.92 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.02
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3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The financial statements of subsidiary has been included in the consolidated financial statements since July 30, 2020
as stated in note 11 by starting to have control power in subsidiary until control power is ceased

The financial statements of subsidiary have been prepared by using same accounting period and policy of the
Company

Significant intra-group balance and transactions have been eliminated. Investment in subsidiary is eliminated from
equity of subsidiary

Non controlling interest is the amount of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiary not belonging to the Company
and separately presented in consolidated statement of comprehensive income and shareholder's equity in

consolidated statement of financial position.

Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue is recognized in profit or loss when control of goods is already transferred to customer. No revenue is
recognized if there is continuing management involvement with the goods or there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods. In case of sales of goods and
services (Multiple element arrangements) , the component of revenues is allocated in proportion to the delivered
products and the obligations to be performed in providing services that are included in the contract using the basis

of standalone selling prices of different products or services as obligated in the contract.

Revenue from service is recognized when service is completely rendered.

Revenue excludes value added taxes and is presented net by trade discounts and special discount.

Revenue from investments comprises dividend and interest income from investments and bank deposit.
Dividend income is recognized profit or loss on the date the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised on an accrual basis. The effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, unless the financial assets subsequently
become creditimpaired when it is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (net of the expected credit

loss allowance) multiplied by effective interest rate
Lease income is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Other revenues and expenses are recognized on accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits period not exceeding

three months and highly liquid short-term investments.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost principle, and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete
and to make the sale.

Invesrment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries is accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method net of allowance
for impairment loss (if any).

Financial instruments

The Group initially measures financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets that are not measured at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. However, trade receivables, that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in the accounting policy relating to revenue recognition.
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4.5.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification of financial assets
at initial recognition is driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flows characteristics of the financial assets.

- Financial assets at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if the financial asset is held in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

- Financial instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group and the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity

investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination.
- Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

Are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and ccumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is not be classified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
instead, it is transferred to retained earnings.

4.5.2 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and classified as liabilities to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. In determining amortised cost, the Group
takes into account any fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs
in profit or loss.

- Derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or have
been transferred and either the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

4.5.3 Impairment of financial assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. It is based on its historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.



4.5.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or for both, but not
for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative

puUrposes.
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and loss from impairment (If any).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labor, and other costs directly attributable
to bringing the investment property to a working condition for its intended use and capitalized borrowing costs.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of
an item of plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Investment property - land Not amortized
Investment property - extensions 5 Years
4.7 Plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Owned assets

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. (if any).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and capitalized borrowing costs. Cost also may include transfers from other comprehensive income of
any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of plant and equipment. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company, and its cost can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted
for cost, less its residual value.
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4.8

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of
an item of plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and other constructions 20 years
Office equipment 3and 5 years
Beautifying accessories 5 vyears
Vehicles 5 vyears
Furnishing of office 10 vyears
Furnishing of selling areas 5 years

No depreciation is provided on assets under construction.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
Leases

At inception of contact, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

The Group assesses the lease term for the non-cancellable period as stipulated in lease contract or the remaining
period of active leases together with any period covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to
be exercised or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain not to be exercise
by considering the effect of changes in technology and/or the other circumstance relating to the extension of the lease
term

The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. At the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is available for
use), the Group recognises right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets and lease liabilities
based on lease liabilities based on lease payments.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, any accumulated impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities initially recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date of the lease less any lease incentives received.

The cost of right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantiing and
removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets are calculated by reference to their costs ona  straight-line basis over the shorter
of their estimated useful lives and the lease term, as follows:

Land 7-27 year
building 5-26 year
Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expected to be payable under
residual value guarantees. Moreover, the lease payments include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising an option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.



In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate, which is determined
by referring to the government bond yield adjusted with risk premium depending on the lease term, at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
A lease that has a lease term less than or equal to 12 months from commencement date or a lease of low-value
assets is recognised as expenses on a straightline basis over the lease term.
4.9 Intangible assets
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets acquired have indefinite useful lives as follows. Software licenses are measured at cost less

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the subsidiaries and have infinite useful lives i.e. trademark are measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss by straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the component of each
item of assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows,
Computer software 10 Years
Trademark No amortization
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortization
Amortization is based on the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets,
from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
years of Software licenses are 10 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the group Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether

there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is
charged to equity.

4.11 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss.
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Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided.

Defined benefit plans
The group Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting

that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in
profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs, or when the entity

recognizes related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefit is immediately recognized as employee benefit in which the employee render the
related service. Liabilities are recognized at the undiscounted amount of the benefit expected to be paid in exchange
for the related service when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payment as a
result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Income tax
Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity

or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the impact of uncertain tax
positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities
are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about
future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to change its judgement regarding
the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such
a determination is made.



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities

will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

4.14 Accounting estimates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Financial Reporting Standards required the management
to make several estimation and assumption which affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and notes
related thereto. Consequent actual results may differ from these estimate and may be adjusted in the next accounting
period. Significant accounting estimate are Allowance for expected credit losses and provision for impairment of

assets.

4.15 Provision
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to liability. The unwinding of the discount

is recognized as finance cost.

4.16 Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests mean the book value of the net assets of the subsidiaries in according to the shareholding
ratio of the non-controlling interests or the participating portion which does not belong to the shareholders of the parent.
The non-controlling interests are presented in a separate caption under the shareholders’ equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position and profit (loss) of the non-controlling interests are presented in a separate caption of
the consolidated statement of income.

4.17 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic earnings per share z(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

4.18 Segment reporting
Segment results that are reported to the Company’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise
mainly interest or dividend earning assets and revenue, and corporate assets and expenses.

4.19 Measurement of fair values
The Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation
team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values,
and reports directly to the CFO.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information,
such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the
evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of
TFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.
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4.20

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can  access

at the measurement date.
* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorized in different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy
as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management
to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments and
estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments and estimates
are as follow
Revenue from contracts with customers
Identification of performance obligations

In identifying performance obligations, the management is required to use judgement regarding whether each promise
to deliver goods or services is considered distinct, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
In other words, if a good or service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract and if the customer
can benefit from it, it is accounted for separately.

Determination of timing of revenue recognition
In determining the timing of revenue recognition, the management is required to use judgement regarding whether
performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time, taking into consideration terms and conditions

of the arrangement. The Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue over time in the following circumstances:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the company’s performance as
the entity performs

- the company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced; or

- the company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

Where the above criteria are not met, revenue is recognized at a point in time. Where revenue is recognized at a point
in time, the management is required to determine when the performance obligation under the contract is satisfied

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

In determining an allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets, the management
needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of
outstanding debts and the forecast economic condition for groupings of various customer segments with similar credit
risks. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast economic conditions may also not be representative
of whether a customer will actually default in the future.



Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position that are not
actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily available, the management exercise judgement,
using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to these models is taken from observable markets,
and includes consideration of credit risk, liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatility of financial instruments. Change
in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised in the statement of financial position and
disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Provision for devaluation of inventories.

In determining provision for devaluation of inventories, the management is required to make estimates of the expected
loss incurred of inventories. The provision for devaluation of inventories is considered by normal expected selling price
less selling expenses and provision for devaluation of inventories slow movement or obsolete by the age of each

inventories.

Plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful
lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when
there are any changes. In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for
impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses
relating to the assets subject to the review.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences and losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans
The obligation under the defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefit plans are determined based

on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future
salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

Leases

Determining the lease term with extension and termination options - The Group as a lessee

In determining the lease term, the management is required to exercise judgment in assessing whether the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option to extend or terminate the lease, considering all relevant factors and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise either the extension or termination option.
After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to extend or to

terminate.
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Related Parties Transaction

5.1 Relationship and pricing policy

Related parties
Amatissimo Co., Ltd.
.C.C. International Plc.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.
International Laboratories Co., Ltd
Thanulux Plc.
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

International Commercial Coordination
(Hong Kong) Ltd.

American food Co., Ltd

Tiger Distribution and Logjistics Co., Ltd.
Bangkok Tokyo Socks Co., Ltd.
Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd.
Boutique New City Plc.

Thai Gunze Co., Ltd.

Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
S&J International Enterprises Plc.
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

EP.F. Co,, Ltd.

Shop Global (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Saha KomeHyo Co., Ltd.

Saha Capital Tower Co., Ltd.

Key executive

Homchui Company Limited

Pricing with related parties

Sales of goods

Rendering of services or other income
Dividend income

Loan Interest income

Purchase of goods

Purchase investment

Sales promotion expenses

Consulting fee

Other expenses

Purchasing assets for business operation

of subsidiary

Nature of relationships

Subsidiary
Major shareholder, 19.73% and some common shareholder/directors

Major shareholder, 14.36% and some common shareholder/directors
Shareholders, 1.20%, and some common shareholder/directors
Shareholders, 0.13%, and some common shareholders

16% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors
(As at December 31,2022, it is Non-related company)

6.60% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors
Some common shareholders

4.08% shareholding and some common shareholders

5.21% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors
4% shareholding and some common shareholders / directors
0.01% shareholding and some common shareholders
Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders

Common directors

3.73% shareholding and some common shareholders

5% shareholding and some common shareholders

1% shareholding and some common shareholders / directors

Persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including
any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company.

Common shareholders/directors of subsidiary

Pricing policies
Market price/cost plus margin
Mutually agreed prices
Right to receive dividends
Interest rate 2.5% and 3.5 % per annum
Market price/Mutually agreed prices
Market price /Mutually agreed prices
Market price/Mutually agreed prices
Mutually agreed prices
Market price/Mutually agreed prices

Market price/Mutually agreed prices



5.2 The outstanding balance with related parties

The outstanding balance with related persons and parties as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Trade receivables
I.C.C. International Plc
EP.F. Co, Ltd.
Total
Other current receivables
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Total
Deposit
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.
.C.C. International Plc.
Total
Other non-current financial assets
Investment in equity securities of listed company
.C.C. International Plc.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.
Boutique New City Plc.
Total

Investment in equity securities of non-isted company
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Bangkok Tokyo Socks Co., Ltd.

Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd.

International Commercial Coordination (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd
American food Co., Ltd
Shop Global (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Saha KomeHyo Co., Ltd.
Saha Capital Tower Co., Ltd.
Total
Add : Gain on remeasuring investments
Less : Loss on remeasuring investment
Net

Loans to related company
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Amatissimo Co., Ltd.

Total

Trade payables

Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
International Laboratories Co., Ltd
Thai Gunze Co., Ltd.
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
/ Separate financial statements

2022 2021
859 144
1,996 1,614
2,855 1,758
- 10,534

324 213
324 10,747
70 49
408 408
478 457
52,523 47,748
24,585 22,922
13 10
77,121 70,680
- 11,200
7,806 7,806
5,070 2,809
1,406 1,406
2,000 1,750
4,200 4,200
9,000 9,000
8,250 8,250
27,500 27,500
65,232 73,921
19,802 21,697
(16,806) (16,128)
68,228 79,490
- 3,081
9,701 -
9,701 3,081
- 11,360
9,779 7,471
10,512 7,073
1,758 845
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5.3

S&J International Enterprises Plc.
Thanulux Plc.
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Saha Capital Tower Co., Ltd.
Total
Other current payables
Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd
International Laboratories Co., Ltd
.C.C. International Plc.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Total

Increase (Decrease) of loan to related company are as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
/ Separate financial statements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2022 2021
1,133 753
1,443 371
9,551 4,008

8 -
34,184 31,881
124 65

55 41
752 296

4 15
2,969 -
3,904 417

Consolidated financial statements

Balance as Balance as at
Loan to related company atsli?cz%rgﬁ)er durilrz]grte;;ey car durﬁgﬁ:s}e/ ear Deceggt;gr 31,
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 3,081 - (3,081) -
Total 3,081 - (3,381) -
Increase (Decrease) of loan to related company are as follows
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Balance as

Balance as at

Loan to related company at3|3<:3c2%n£l1oer durilggrtef?:?/ear dur%egciﬁzsiear Deceznaggr 31,
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 3,081 - (3,081) -
Amatissimo Co., Ltd. - 10,000 (299) 9,701
Total 3,081 10,000 (3,380) 9,701

Related parties transaction during the year.

Transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

For the year ended December 31,

Consolidated financial

Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021

Business transaction with subsidiary

Purchase of goods - - 189 46
Purchase assets - - 280 -
Related party transactions

Sales of goods and rendering of service 23,939 7,004 23,939 7,004
Dividend income 3,509 1,739 3,509 1,739
Other income 3,932 2,088 3,932 2,088
Purchase of assets 499 - 499 -
Purchase of goods 233,482 195,401 233,482 195,401



Sales promotion expenses
Consulting fee
Other expenses
Director remuneration
Executive remuneration
Short-term benefits
Long-term benefits
Total executive remuneration

6. Additional information of cash flows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

For the year ended December 31,

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
3,531 349 3,631 349
5,690 5,026 5,690 5,026
6,443 3,967 6,443 3,967
4,192 4,469 4,192 4,469
23,590 22,129 21,310 19,849
1,202 2,372 1,202 2,372
24,792 24,501 22,5612 22,221

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and cash at banks. Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash

flows consists of transaction in statement of financial position as follows:

6.1 Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Cash

Current accounts

Savings accounts
Total

6.2 Non cash transactions

For the year ended December 31,

Payable from purchasing building and equipment

Payable from purchasing other intangible asset

Acquire equity instrument of non-listed company

(Gain) Loss from fair value of other non-current
financial assets

(Gain) Loss from revaluation of employee benefit
Total

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
104 84 74 64
1,164 747 1,122 718

124,571 149,143 124,264 148,827

125,839 149,974 125,460 149,609

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
878 449 878 449
156 8 156 8
190 - 190 -
7,599 2,454 7,599 2,454
1,029 (827) 1,029 (827)
9,852 2,084 9,852 2,084

Changes in financial liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follow.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Beginning Cash flow from Ending
Balance as financing activities Non-cash  bBalance as at
at Jezlrg)%%ry 1, Cash . . changes DeceQrBBSr 31,

received ash paid

Short-term loans from related persons - 1,000 - - 1,000
Trade and other current payables 98,610 - - 22,542 121,152
Lease liabilities 21,932 - (3,562) 3,116 21,486
Total 120,542 1,000 (3,562) 25,658 143,638
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

E;Baelg:]rlrgngs ﬁr%iscr;ngo;vctfm?es Non-cash Balfr?g;ngs at
at Jgr(])%%ry 1, Cash Cash paid changes Decezrgggr 31,

received
Short-term loans from related persons - - - - -
Trade and other current payables 97,966 - - 21,444 119,410
Lease liabilities 17,478 - (2,450) 657 15,685
Total 115,444 - (2,450) 22,101 135,095
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements
gaeigi]r;rgnags fir%isct?nﬂogvcgiﬁ?es Balzlaz:c?einags at
at Jezlrg)l;ry 1, S 9 : h(l:?mg-ncgaessh Dece2r82$r 31,
recgi?/%d Cash paid
Trade and other current payables 112,191 - - (13,581) 98,610
Lease liabilities 24,867 - (2,935) - 21,932
Total 137,058 - (2,935) (13,581) 120,542
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements

I??aelgilr::rgngs ﬁr%e:]scri]ngo;vcfir\zmas Non-cash Balellzr?geinags at
" J%ﬁry " Cash Cash paid  °nanges Deceznagir o

received
Trade and other current payables 110,834 - - (12,868) 97,966
Lease liabilities 19,626 - (2,148) - 17,478
Total 130,460 - (2,148) (12,868) 115,444

7. Trade and other current receivables

Trade and other current receivables as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Trade receivables
Related company
Other company
Total

Less Allowance for expected credit losses

Net
Other current receivables
Related company
Others
Total

Total trade and other current receivables
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial

statements statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
2,855 1,758 2,855 1,758
117,905 116,887 117,102 116,443
120,760 118,645 119,957 118,201
(3,612) (4,402) (3,612) (4,402)
117,148 114,243 116,345 113,799
324 10,747 324 10,747
3,876 554 3,639 248
4,200 11,301 3,963 10,995
121,348 125,544 120,308 124,794




Allowance for expected credit losses
Beginning of the year
decrease during the year
Written off bad debt during the year
End of the year

Aging of trade receivable
Trade receivable-Related company
Within credit terms
Overdue:
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
Over 12 months
Total trade receivable-Related company

Trade receivable-Other company

Within credit terms

Overdue:
Less than 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
Over 12 months

Total trade receivable-other company

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements

2022 2021
4,402 6,370

(8) (1,968)

(782) -
3,612 4,402

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements

2022 2021
136 628
2,183 1,130
536 -
2,855 1,758
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
76,954 70,774 76,505 70,497
39,155 43,976 38,869 43,821
734 62 729 50
87 111 24 111
975 1,964 975 1,964

117,905 116,887 117,102 116,443

8. Inventories
Inventories as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Raw materials 540 426 - -
Finished goods 81,082 134,246 80,798 134,197
Consignment goods 62,215 67,776 62,215 67,776
Total 143,837 202,448 143,013 201,973
Less Provision for devaluation of inventories (2,794) (3,995) (2,794) (3,995)
Total inventories 141,043 198,453 140,219 197,978
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Inventories recognized as expense in cost of sales;

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements
2022 2021
488,605 401,214
(1,200) 332

statements
2022 2021
Cost 495,643 409,328
Write-off to net realizable value (1,200) 332
Total 494,443 409,660

487,405 401,546

9. Other current financial assets

Other current financial assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Investments in unit trust at fair value through
income statement
Investments in short-term unit trust

Total other current financial assets

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

2022 2021
190,669 80,002
190,669 80,002

Movements during the year ended December 31 of other current financial assets were as follows:

At January 1

Purchases during the year
Disposal during the year
Allowance for expected credit loss
Changes in fair value

At December 31

10. Other non-current financial assets

Other non-current financial assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows

Investment in equity securities at fair value through
comprehensive income
Investment in equity securities of listed company
Related company
Other company
Total
Investment in equity securities of non-listed company
Related company
Add : Gain on remeasuring investments
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

2022 2021
80,002 39,907
110,000 80,000
- (40,000)

- 93

667 2
190,669 80,002

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

2022 2021
77,121 70,680
3,760 2,602
80,881 73,282
65,232 73,921
19,802 21,697



(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

2022 2021

Less : Loss on remeasuring investments (16,806) (16,128)
Net 68,228 79,490

Other company 7,125 7,125

Add : Gain on remeasuring investments 60,693 57,430

Less : Loss on remeasuring investments (4,377) (4,358)

Net 63,441 60,197

Total 131,669 139,687

Total other non-current financial assets 212,550 212,969

Investment in equity securities at fair value through comprehensive income movement during the year ended December
31, 2022 and 2021 as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

2022 2021
At January 1 212,969 197,341
Purchases during the year 2,511 18,000
Disposal during the year (11,200) (3,200)
Changes in fair value 8,270 828
At December 31 212,550 212,969

The fair values of financial assets and the carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements /
Separate financial statements

Carrying amount Fair Value Level 1 Fair Value Level 3

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Investment in equity securities at fair value through
comprehensive income
- Investment in equity securities of listed company 80,881 73,282 80,881 73,282 - -
- Investment in equity securities of norHisted company 131,669 139,687 - - 131,669 139,687

212,650 212,969 80,881 73,282 131,669 139,686

The table above analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets. These fair value measurements are categorized
into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used. The level applicable to
the Company’s equity securities available-for-sale is defined as follows.

e Level 1:quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Stock Exchange) for identical assets that the Company
can access at the measurement date.

e Level 3 : unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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11. Investment in subsidiary

11.1 Investment in subsidiary presented in separate financial statements has detail as follows.

Paid-up capital

2022 2021

Amatissimo Co., Ltd. 19,500 19,500

Less Provision for impairment
Investment in subsidiary-Net

12. Loans to related company

Subsidiary

Related company
Total

Loan to related company

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Investment Cost Dividend received
proportion for year
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(%)
76.92 76.92 15,000 15,000 - -
3,490 (519)

11,610 14,481

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial
statements

Consolidated financial
statements

December December December December
31, 2022 31, 2021 31, 2022 31, 2021

- - 9,701 -

- 3,081 - 3,081
- 3,081 9,701 3,081

The Company entered into loan to a related company bearing interest rate 3.5% per annum, respectively. The term of

principal and interest repayment is Baht 300,000 per month. The first repayment commenced on May 31, 2019 and will

be ended on December 31, 2021. Later, according to the resolution of the Board of Director meeting no.4/2021 dated

on August 11, 2021, the Company requested to temporarily stop making principal repayment from August 2021 until

January 2022 but still making interest payment in normal and extend debt repayment to be completely paid within January

31,2028. (Making debt repayment in full amount before maturity)

Loan to subsidiary

During 2022, the Company entered into 2 loan agreements to subsidiary bearing interest rate 2.50% per annum. The term

of monthly principal repayment is commenced in December 2022 Baht 166,667 and interest and the last installment

in May 2025 Baht 166,657 and interest.

13. Investment property

Cost

At January 1, 2021

Additions

Disposal

At December 31, 2021 and January 1, 2022
At December 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

At December 31, 2021 and January 1, 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial
statements / Separate
financial statements

538,054
457
(221,104)
317,407
317,407

2,209
1,697
3,906
1,697




(Unit : Thousand Baht)

At December 31, 2022 5,603
Net book value

At December 31, 2021 313,501
At December 31, 2022 311,804

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, investment property cost Baht 308.92 Million (net book value Baht 308.92 million)
was appraised by an independent appraiser approved by SEC, by considering comparative market price approach having
appraisal value Baht 387.61 million.

On December 21, 2021, the Company transferred ownership of land at Land Department and had gain from disposal of
land Baht 35.40 million net by selling expenses.

14. Building and equipment
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Buildi Furnishing Assets
uticing Office Beautifying of office under

cgggtﬁjtgt?c;n equipment accessories Vehicles angrzzlgng construction 1ot

Cost
At January 1, 2021 51,068 31,923 5,902 21,487 57,058 - 167,438
Additions - 998 670 - 742 - 2,410
Disposals - (149) - - - - (149)
At December 31, 2021
and At January 1, 2022 51,068 32,772 6,572 21,487 57,800 - 169,699
Additions - 2,966 2,658 - 3,968 1,012 10,604
Disposals - (537) (19) (2,489) (1,185) - (4,230)
At December 31, 2022 51,068 35,201 9,211 18,998 60,583 1,012 176,073
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2021 51,068 28,052 3,680 15,510 50,854 - 149,164
Depreciation charge for

the year - 1,889 630 2,301 2,625 - 7,445
Disposals - (149) - - - - (149)
At December 31, 2021
and At January 1, 2022 51,068 29,792 4,310 17,811 53,479 - 156,460
Depreciation charge for

the year = 1,783 815 1,596 1,962 - 6,156
Disposals - (474) (11) (1,501) (976) - (2,962)
At December 31, 2022 51,068 31,101 5,114 17,906 54,465 - 159,654
Net book value
At December 31, 2021 - 2,980 2,262 3,676 4,321 - 13,239
At December 31, 2022 - 4,100 4,097 1,092 6,118 1,012 16,419

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, building and equipment that fully depreciated but still in use has gross carrying
amount Baht 142.13 million and baht 136.58 million, respectively.
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Buildi Furnishing Assets
yiaing Office Beautifying of office under

cgggtr?}gt?c;n equipment accessories  vehicles an(;rzgléing construction  Total

Cost
At January 1, 2021 51,068 31,5625 3,882 21,242 56,778 - 164,495
Additions - 880 8 - 677 - 1,565
Disposals - (149) - - - - (149)
At December 31, 2021
and At January 1, 2022 51,068 32,256 3,890 21,242 57,455 - 165,911
Additions - 2,796 171 - 1,165 1,012 5,144
Disposals - (411) (7) (2,489) (840) - (3,747)
At December 31, 2022 51,068 34,641 4,054 18,753 57,780 1,012 167,308
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2021 51,068 28,018 3,569 15,490 50,850 - 148,995
Depreciation charge for

the year - 1,772 141 2,252 2,561 - 6,726
Disposals - (149) - - - - (149)
At December 31, 2021
and At January 1, 2022 51,068 29,641 3,710 17,742 53,411 - 155,572
Depreciation charge for

the year - 1,636 97 1,547 1,696 - 4,976
Disposals - (410) (7) (1,501) (840) - (2,758)
At December 31, 2022 51,068 30,867 3,800 17,788 54,267 - 157,790
Net book value
At December 31, 2021 - 2,615 180 3,500 4,044 - 10,339
At December 31, 2022 - 3,774 254 965 3,513 1,012 9,518

As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, building and equipment that fully depreciated but still in use has gross carrying
amount Baht 142.13 million and baht 136.58 million, respectively.

15. Right-of- use assets
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold
Rights-Building  rights-Land  Rights-Building Total

and area and premises
Cost
At January 1, 2021 26,365 34,200 19,991 80,556
At December 31, 2021 26,365 34,200 19,991 80,556
Increase during the year 3,116 - - 3,116
At December 31, 2022 29,481 34,200 19,991 83,672
Accumulated amortization
At January 1, 2021 2,045 12,2083 19,991 34,239
Amortization for the year 3,606 3,300 - 6,906
At December 31, 2021 5,651 15,603 19,991 41,145
Amortization for the year 4,031 3,300 - 7,331
At December 31, 2022 9,682 18,803 19,991 48,476
Net book value
At December 31, 2021 20,714 18,697 - 39,411
At December 31, 2022 19,799 15,397 - 35,196
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The Company has leasehold rights agreements on land and buildings and premises. In this regards, the Company still pays
monthly rental fee according to rates as stipulated in agreements for period of 10 - 27 years, expiring in 2021 - 2030
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold
Rights-Building  rights-Land  Rights-Building Total

and area and premises
Cost
At January 1, 2021 21,061 34,200 19,991 75,252
At December 31, 2021 21,061 34,200 19,991 75,252
Increase during the year 657 - - 657
At December 31, 2022 21,718 34,200 19,991 75,909
Accumulated amortization
At January 1, 2021 1,969 12,2083 19,991 34,163
Amortization for the year 2,697 3,300 - 5,997
At December 31, 2021 4,666 15,503 19,991 40,160
Amortization for the year 2,824 3,300 - 6,124
At December 31, 2022 7,490 18,803 19,991 46,284
Net book value
At December 31, 2021 16,395 18,697 - 35,092
At December 31, 2022 14,228 15,397 - 29,625

The Company has leasehold rights agreements on land and buildings and premises. In this regards, the Company still pays
monthly rental fee according to rates as stipulated in agreements for period of 10 - 27 years, expiring in 2021 - 2030.
Expenses related to rental contract recognised in profit and loss

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial

statements Separate financial statements

For the year ended December 31, For the year ended December 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7,331 6,906 6,124 5,997
Interest expense of lease liabilities 1,263 1,412 1,008 1,119
Variable rental-related expenses
not included in financial liabilities measurement. 15,139 11,874 15,139 11,874
Total 23,733 20,192 22,271 18,990

16. Other intangible assets
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Trade mark C;g?;v?/:trzr Total

Cost

At January 1, 2021 13,037 49,389 62,426
Increase during the year - 129 129
At December 31, 2021 13,037 49,518 62,555
Increase during the year - 445 445
At December 31, 2022 13,037 49,963 63,000
Accumulated amortization

At January 1, 2021 515 31,276 31,791
Amortization for the year 1,229 2,486 3,715
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

At December 31, 2021
Amortization for the year

At December 31, 2022

Net book value
At December 31, 2021

At December 31, 2022

Trade mark 22;?3::? Total
1,744 33,762 35,506
1,229 2,444 3,673
2,973 36,206 39,179

11,293 15,756 27,049
10,064 18,757 23,821

Remaining amortization period Year
2021 1-9
2022 1-9
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements
Trade mark C;(;:‘Tt]vr\)/:trzr Total
Cost
At January 1, 2021 747 49,142 49,889
Increase during the year - 1156 115
At December 31, 2021 747 49,257 50,004
Increase during the year - 445 445
At December 31, 2022 747 49,702 50,449
Accumulated amortization
At January 1, 2021 - 31,267 31,267
Amortization for the year - 2,460 2,460
At December 31, 2021 - 33,727 33,727
Amortization for the year - 2,418 2,418
At December 31, 2022 - 36,145 36,145
Net book value
At December 31, 2021 747 15,530 16,277
At December 31, 2022 747 13,657 14,304

Remaining amortization period Year
2021 1-9
2022 1-9

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
45,728 45,167 45,661 45,128
(25,544) (23,890) (25,440) (23,786)
20,184 21,277 20,221 21,342




Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements

(Expenses) Revenue recorded in

At Profit or Other Direct At
January loss Comprehensive sharehqlder's December
1, 2022 Income equity 31, 2022
(Note 24)
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivable 880 (158) - - 722
Inventories 799 (240) - - 559
Gross profit consignment goods 15,819 (1,166) - - 14,653
Non-current financial assets 2,315 594 - - 2,909
Right-of-use assets 243 94 - - 337
Non-Current provisions for employee benefit 13,813 (956) 206 13,063
Tax loss carried forward 10,892 2,009 - 12,901
Others 406 178 - - 584
Total 45,167 355 206 - 45,728
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current financial assets 23,890 - (5,725) 7,379 25,544
Total 23,890 - (5,725) 7,379 25,544

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

(Expenses) Revenue recorded in

At Profit or Other Direct At
January loss Comprehensive  shareholder’s December
1, 2022 income equity 31, 2022
(Note 24)
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivable 880 (158) - - 722
Inventories 799 (240) - - 559
Gross profit consignment goods 15,819 (1,166) - - 14,653
Non-current financial assets 2,315 594 - - 2,909
Right-of-use assets 216 75 - - 291
Non-Current provisions foremployee benefit 13,801 (965) 206 13,042
Tax loss carried forward 10,892 2,009 - - 12,901
Others 406 178 - - 584
Total 45,128 327 206 - 45,661
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current financial assets 23,786 - (5,725) 7,379 25,440
Total 23,786 - (5,725) 7,379 25,440
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Deferred tax assets

Trade receivable

Inventories

Gross profit consignment goods
Other current financial assets
Non-current financial assets
Right-of-use assets

Non-Current provisions for employee benefit
Tax loss carried forward

Others

Total

Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current financial assets
Total

Deferred tax assets

Trade receivable

Inventories

Gross profit consignment goods
Other current financial assets
Non-current financial assets
Right-of-use assets

Non-Current provisions for employee benefit
Tax loss carried forward

Others

Total

Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current financial assets
Total

282

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

(Expenses) Revenue recorded in

At Profit or Other Direct At
January loss Comprehensive  shareholder’s December
1, 2021 income equity 31, 2021

(Note 24)
1,274 (394) - - 880
732 67 - - 799
18,739 (2,920) - - 15,819
19 (19) - - -
2,791 (476) - - 2,315
119 124 - - 243
15,426 (1,448) (165) - 13,813
5,706 5,186 - 10,892
493 (87) - - 406

45,299 33 (165) - 45,167

24,201 - 828 (1,139) 23,890

24,201 - 828 (1,139) 23,890

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements
(Expenses) Revenue recorded in

At Profit or Other Direct At
January loss Comprehensive  shareholder’s December
1, 2021 income equity 31, 2021

(Note 24)
1,274 (394) - - 880
732 67 - - 799
18,739 (2,920) - - 15,819
19 (19) - - -
2,791 (476) - - 2,315
107 109 - - 216
15,423 (1,457) (165) - 13,801
5,706 5,186 - - 10,892
493 (87) - - 406

45,284 9 (165) - 45,128

24,201 - 932 (1,347) 23,786

24,201 - 932 (1,347) 23,786




18.

19.

20.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Deposit - Related company 478 457 478 457
Deposit - Other company 3,560 6,174 3,264 5,824
Total 4,038 6,631 3,742 6,281

Short-term loans from related persons

As at December 31, 2022, the Company had short-term loan from a Director bearing no interest using 2 promissory notes

as evidence maturity on April 26, 2023 and May 9, 2023.

Trade and other current payables
Trade and other current payables as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Trade payables
Related companies 34,184 31,881 34,184 31,881
Other companies 47,748 27,325 47,161 27,026
Total 81,932 59,206 81,345 58,907
Other current payables
Related companies 3,904 417 3,904 417
Accrued expenses 12,595 14,479 12,285 14,381
Other 22,721 24,508 21,876 24,261
Total 39,220 39,404 38,065 39,059
Total trade and other current payables 121,152 98,610 119,410 97,966

21. Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows

Lease liabilities
Less Current portion of lease liabilities
Lease liabilities due over 1 year

Movements of lease liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows :

Net book value as at December 31,

Increase during the year
Decrease during the year

Net book value as at December 31,
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Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
21,486 21,932 15,685 17,478
(4,595) (3,166) (2,843) (2,331)
16,891 18,766 12,842 15,147

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
21,932 24,867 17,478 19,626
3,116 - 657 -
(3,562) (2,935) (2,450) (2,148)
21,486 21,932 15,685 17,478
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Minimum amount to be paid for lease liabilities

Within 1 year
Over 1 year but less than 5 years
Over 5 years

Total
Less Future interest of leases
Present value of leases liabilities

Minimum amount to be paid for lease liabilities

Within 1 year
Over 1 year but less than 5 years
Over 5 years

Total
Less Future interest of leases
Present value of leases liabilities

Non-Current provisions for employee benefits

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Minimum amount

Separate financial

to be paid statements

2022 2021 2022 2021

5,759 4,397 4,595 3,166
17,330 17,840 15,361 15,074

1,577 3,897 1,630 3,692
24,666 26,134 21,486 21,932
(3,180) (4,202) - -
21,486 21,932 21,486 21,932

Separate financial statements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Minimum amount

Separate financial

to be paid statements

2022 2021 2022 2021

3,707 3,317 2,843 2,331
12,983 13,790 11,312 11,455

1,676 3,897 1,630 3,692
18,266 21,004 15,685 17,478
(2,581) (3,526) - -
15,685 17,478 15,685 17,478

The Company operate a defined benefit pension plan based on the requirement of Thai Labour Protection Act B.E 2541

(1998) to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable remuneration and length of service.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and

market (investment) risk.

Statement of financial position

Non-current provisions in statement of financial position

Post-employment benefits
Other long-term employee benefits
Total

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations.

Defined benefit obligations at January 1,
Include in profit:

Current service cost

Interest on obligation

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
55,5617 58,713 55,412 58,653
9,799 10,350 9,799 10,350
65,316 69,063 65,211 69,003

Consolidated financial

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial

statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
69,063 77,131 69,003 77,116
3,493 5,994 3,448 5,949
805 565 805 565
4,298 6,559 4,253 6,514




(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain) loss 1,029 (827) 1,029 (827)
1,029 (827) 1,029 (827)
Other:
Benefit paid (9,074) (13,800) (9,074) (13,800)
(9,074) (13,800) (9,074) (13,800)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31, 65,316 69,063 65,211 69,003

Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income as of the end of the reporting period arising from:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial

statements
2022 2021
Year ended December 31,
Demographic assumptions (4,134) (1,409)
Financial assumptions 1,067 2,226
Experience adjustment 2,038 10
Total (1,029) 827

Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (presented by weighted average method).
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Discount rate 186-3.15 1.17-160 1.86 1.17
Future salary growth 255-374 240-370 255-374 240-3.70
Turnover rate 2.7 -35 2-28 3-25 2-28

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

2022 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Defined benefit obligation at December 31,
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (1,460) 1,520 (1,703) 1,777
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 1,638 (1,588) 1,885 (1,823)
Turnover rate (10% movement) (1,857) 1,914 (2,145) 2,323
Future mortality (0.5% movement) (4) 4 () 5
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

2022 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Defined benefit obligation at December 31,
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (1,460) 1,520 (1,703) 1,777
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 1,638 (1,588) 1,885 (1,823)
Turnover rate (10% movement) (1,848) 1,903 (2,138) 2,315
Future mortality (0.5% movement) (4) 4 (5) 5

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide
an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Provident Fund
The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the Company for its employees. Membership to
the funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at the rate of 3% - 15% of their basic
salaries and by the company at rates ranging from 3% - 4% of the employees’ basic salaries. The provident funds are
registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities and are managed by a licensed Fund Manager, During 2022, the
Company recognized such contribution as expenses Baht 4.45 million ( 2021: 4.88 million)
Income tax
24.1  Calculation of income tax for the current period
In 2022, the Company calculated income tax by using tax rate at 20% from profit before income tax after adjusted
by allowance and any expenses which shall not be allowed as expenses in tax calculation (if any).
24.2 Expense of the income tax recognized in profit or loss
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current income tax
For the current period (4,781) 517 (4,725) 516
Deferred tax
Changing in temporary difference 355 (33) 327 (9)
Total (4,426) 484 (4,398) 507
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Non-current financial assets (5,725) 828 (5,725) 932
Actuarial loss from defined benefit plan 206 (165) 206 (165)
Total (5,519) 663 (5,519) 767

As at December 31, 2022, subsidiary has unused tax loss Baht 8.37 milion (2021: Baht 3.87 million), Deferred tax
assets is not recognized since subsidiary has considered that there will no adequate future taxable profit for taking benefit
from the above unused tax loss.



25.

26.

27.

The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Profit (loss) before income tax expense (29,191) (2,404) (23,694) 1,588
Income tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Income tax using the corporate income tax rate (5,838) (481) (4,739) 317
Income not subject to tax (1,547) (460) (952) (470)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,325 670 1,293 660
Tax loss carried forward 1,634 755 - -
Total (4,426) 484 (4,398) 507
Reserves
Reserves comprise:
Legal reserve
Section 116 of the Public Companies Act BE. 2535 Section 116 requires that a public company shall allocate not less
than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal reserve”), until
this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. The legal reserve is not available
for dividend distribution
Other reserves
The Company had appropriated some of net profit for reserve a general investment reserve which is not mentioned for
any specific purpose.
Dividend
According to the ordinary shareholder meeting No.28 held on April 25, 2022, The company approved to pay dividend Baht
0.05 per share amount of 60 million share from retained earnings total amount of dividend Baht 3 million. Such dividend
was paid to shareholders on May 25, 2022.
According to the ordinary shareholder meeting No.27 held on April 26, 2021, The company approved to pay dividend
Baht 0.15 per share amount of 60 million share from net profit of the year 2020 total amount of dividend Baht 9 million.
Such dividend was paid to shareholders on May 25, 2021.
Expenses by nature
The statements of income include an analysis of expenses by function. Expenses by nature disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Changes in inventories 59,310 (3,132) 58,960 (3,113)
Purchase of finished goods 431,055 408,062 428,161 404,413
Personnel expenses 249,476 226,522 244,011 221,633
Sale promotion expenses 7,634 6,221 7,495 6,202
Sample products expenses 16,343 14,617 16,230 14,584
Advertisement expenses 11,800 5,859 11,556 5,760
Depreciation and amortization expenses 18,857 19,763 15,215 16,879
Consulting fee 5,690 5,026 5,690 5,026
Director remuneration 4,192 4,469 4,192 4,469
Executive remuneration 24,792 22,221 22,512 22,221
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28. Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic divisions. The primary
format, business segments, is based on the Company’s management and internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on mutually agreed terms.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest or dividend-earning assets and revenue, and corporate
assets and expenses.

Business segments

The Company comprises the following main business segments:
Segment 1 Cosmetics distributing and beauty services
Segment 2 Clothes
Segment 3 Others: Revenue from sales bakery and beverage of subsidiary does not reach t010% , it is, therefore,
included in segment 3
Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment
profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company’s CODM. Segment

profit before tax is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in

evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these same industries.

Information about reportable segments

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Cosmetics Clothes Others Eliminated Total

distribution and inter company

beauty services transaction
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenue from external customer 751,800 649,953 98,323 55,349 10,174 13,423 (189 (45) 860,108 718,680
Segment profit (loss) before

income tax (8,331) (14,359) (6,216) (13,972) (3,886) 22 - - (18,433) (28,309)

Total assets for reportable
segments
As at December 31, 207,268 268,234 59,307 47,632 23,615 19,117 - - 290,190 334,983

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Cosmetics Clothes Others

distribution and Total

beauty services
For the year ended December 31, 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenue from external customer 751,800 649,953 98,323 55,349 428 850,123 705,730
Segment profit (loss) before
income tax (8,331)  (14.359) (6,216)  (18.972) 46 _ (14,547) _ (28,285
Total assets for reportable
segments
As at December 31, 207,268 268,234 59,307 47,632 207 266,575 316,073

288



Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss and assets for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as
follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Profit or loss
Total profit(loss) for reportable segments (18,433) (28,309) (14,547) (28,285)
Unallocated amounts
Other income 5,903 60,077 5,965 59,844
Other operating expenses (16,661) (34,172) (15,112) (29,971)
Total profit(loss) before income tax (29,191) (2,404) (23,694) 1,588
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets
Assets for reportable segments
Trade receivables 117,148 114,243 116,345 113,799
Inventories 141,043 198,453 140,219 197,978
Building and equipment 16,223 6,786 9,322 3,886
Right-of-use assets 5,670 4,319 - -
Other intangible assets 10,206 11,182 689 410
Total 290,190 334,983 266,575 316,073
Non-segment assets
Cash and cash equivalents 125,839 149,974 125,460 149,609
Other current receivables 4,200 11,301 3,962 10,995
Other current financial assets 190,669 80,002 190,669 80,002
Other current assets 34,424 31,659 34,254 31,615
Other non-current financial assets 212,550 212,969 212,550 212,969
Investments in subsidiaries - - 11,510 14,481
Loans to related company - 3,081 9,701 3,081
Investment property 311,804 313,501 311,804 313,501
Deferred tax assets 20,184 21,277 20,221 21,342
Right-of- use assets 14,228 16,395 14,228 16,395
Other non-current assets 4,038 6,631 3,742 6,281
Total 917,936 846,790 938,101 860,271
Unallocated assets
Building and equipment 196 6,453 196 6,453
Right-of- leasehold assets 15,398 18,697 15,398 18,697
Other intangible assets 13,615 15,867 13,615 15,867
Total 29,209 41,017 29,209 41,017
Total assets 1,237,335 1,222,790 1,233,885 1,217,361

Geographical segments

The Company is managed and operates principally in Thailand. There is no material revenues derived from, or assets
located in, overseas.

Major Customer The Company has no major external customer.
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29. Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other current receivables,
other current financial assets, other non-current financial assets, loans to related company, short-term loans from financial
institutions, trade and other current payables, and lease liabilities. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments
and how they are managed is described below.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its financial and
contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the reporting date there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the statement of financial position. However, due to the large number of parties comprising the Company’s customer
base, Management does not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.
Market risk
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Company’s operations
and its cash flows. The Company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from long-term investments. The management
has considered that the interest rate risk is low as the interest rates are mainly fixed.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2022

Note Floating Fixed Zero Total Interest rate
ltems interest interest  interest rate
rate rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 124,571 - 1,268 125,839 0.25% - 0.40%
Trade and other current receivables 7 - - 121,348 121,348 -
Other current financial assets 9 - - 190,669 190,669 -
Other non-current financial assets 10 - - 212,550 212,550
Loans to related company 12 - - - - -
Financial Liabilities
Shortterm loans from related persons 19 - - 1,000 1,000 -
Trade and other current payables 20 - 121,152 121,162 -

Lease liabilities 21 - 21,486 - 21,486 6%
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Note Floating Fixed Zero Total Interest rate
ltems interest interest  interest rate
rate rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 124,264 - 1,196 125,460 0.25% - 0.40%
Trade and other current receivables 7 - - 120,308 120,308
Other current financial assets 9 - - 190,669 190,669 -
Other non-current financial assets 10 - - 212,550 212,550
Loans to related company 12 - 9,701 - 9,701 2.5%
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loans from related persons 19 - - - - -
Trade and other current payables 20 - - 119,410 119,410 -
Lease liabilities 21 - 15,685 - 15,685 6%
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2021

Note Floating Fixed Zero Total Interest rate
ltems interest interest  interest rate

rate rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 73,572 - 76,402 149,974 0.10% - 0.40 %
Trade and other current receivables 7 - - 125,644 125,544 -
Other current financial assets 9 80,002 - - 80,002 -
Other non-current financial assets 10 - - 212,969 212,969 -
Loans to related company 12 - 3,081 - 3,081 3.50%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other current payables 20 - - 98,610 98,610 -
Lease liabilities 21 - 21,932 - 21,932 6.00%

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2021
Note Floating Fixed Zero Total Interest rate
ltems interest interest  interest rate

rate rate
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 70,384 - 79,225 149,609 0.10% - 0.40 %
Trade and other current receivables 7 - - 124,794 124,794 -
Other current financial assets 9 80,002 - - 80,002 -
Other non-current financial assets 10 - - 212,969 212,969 -
Loans to related company 12 - 3,081 - 3,081 3.50%
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other current payables 20 - - 97,966 97,966 -
Lease liabilities 21 - 17,478 - 17,478 6.00%

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group’s profit before tax does not significantly impacted by change in interest rates.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management

to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Detail of due payment of financial assets of the Group which is not derivative as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 calculated

from non-discounted cash flows to present value are presented as follows.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Note  On demand Les?;gfn 1 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Shortterm loans from related persons 19 - 1,000 - - 1,000
Trade and other current payables 20 - 121,152 - - 121,152
Lease liabilities 21 - 4,595 15,361 1,630 21,486
Total non-derivatives - 126,747 15,361 1,530 143,638
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Note On demand Lessyggfn T 1+to5years Over 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Shortterm loans from related persons 19 - - - - -
Trade and other current payables 20 - 119,410 - - 119,410
Lease liabilities 21 - 2,843 11,312 1,530 15,685
Total non-derivatives - 122,253 11,312 1,530 135,095

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021

Note  On demand Lesietgfn T 1105 years Over 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Short-term loans from related persons 20 - 98,610 - - 98,610
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities 21 - 3,166 15,074 3,692 21,932
Total non-derivatives - 101,776 15,074 3,692 120,542

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2021

Note  On demand Lesilég;an 1 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Non-derivatives
Shortterm loans from related persons 20 - 97,966 - - 97,966
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities 21 - 2,331 11,455 3,692 17,478
Total non-derivatives - 100,297 11,455 3,692 115,444

Fair value of financial instruments

Given that part of financial assets and financial liabilities are shortterm or bearing interest rate closely to market rate, the
Company’s management believes that the fair value of those financial assets and financial liabilities does not materially differ
from their carrying value.

The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are presented
below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Carrying value Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost
through through other
profit and loss comprehensive Total
income

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 125,839 125,839 125,839
Trade and other current receivables - - 121,348 121,348 121,348
Other current financial assets 190,669 - - 190,669 190,669
Other non-current financial assets - 212,550 - 212,550 212,550
Loans to related company - - - - -
Total financial assets 190,669 212,550 247,187 650,406 650,406
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Financial Liabilities

Short-term loans from related persons
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities

Total financial Liabilities

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other current receivables
Other current financial assets

Other non-current financial assets
Loans to related company

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities

Short-term loans from related persons
Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities

Total financial Liabilities

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other current receivables
Other current financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Loans to related company

Total financial assets

Financial Liabiliti

Trade and other current payables
Lease liabilities

Total financial Liabilities
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Carrying value Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost
through through other
profit and loss comprehensive Total
income
- - 1,000 1,000 1,000
- - 121,152 121,162 121,152
- - 21,486 21,486 21,486
- - 143,638 143,638 143,638

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Carrying value Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost
through through other Total
profit and loss comprehensive
income
- - 125,460 125,460 125,460
- - 120,308 120,308 120,308
190,669 - - 190,669 190,669
- 212,550 - 212,550 212,550
- - 9,701 9,701 9,701
190,669 212,550 255,469 658,688 658,688
- - 119,410 119,410 119,410
- - 15,685 15,685 15,685
- - 135,095 135,095 135,095

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021

Carrying value Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost
through through other Total
profit and loss comprehensive
income
- - 149,974 149,974 149,974
- - 125,644 125,544 125,644
80,002 - - 80,002 80,002
- 212,969 - 212,969 212,969
- - 3,081 3,081 3,081
80,002 212,969 278,599 571,570 571,570
- - 98,610 98,610 98,610
- - 21,932 21,932 21,932
- - 120,542 120,542 120,542
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 2021

Carrying value Fair value
Fair value Fair value Amortised cost
oroty ol oss coroueh Sher,
Income

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - 149,609 149,609 149,609
Trade and other current receivables - - 124,794 124,794 124,794
Other current financial assets 80,002 - - 80,002 80,002
Other non-current financial assets - 212,969 - 212,969 212,969
Loans to related company - - 3,081 3,081 3,081
Total financial assets 80,002 212,969 277,484 570,455 570,455
Financial Liabilities

Trade and other current payables - - 97,966 97,966 97,966
Lease liabilities - - 17,478 17,478 17,478

Total financial Liabilities -

115,444 115,444 115,444

The fair value of financial instruments is estimated on the following criteria.
The fair value of investment in equity instruments of non-listed companies has been determined by analysis and considering
change in the invested companies’ financial position and operating performance, including other several factors, and
concluded that the cost of those investments has appropriately represented the fair value of the investments. And estimated
by discounting expected future cash flow and other methods used in fair value measurement.
During the current year, there was no transfer within the fair value hierarchy.
Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had the assets that were measured at fair value and liabilities for which
fair value were disclosed using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements / Separate
financial statements as at 31 December 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Investment in equity securities of listed company 80,881 - - 80,881
Investment in equity securities of non-listed company 131,669 131,669

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements / Separate
financial statements as at 31 December 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
financial assets
Other non-current financial assets
Investment in equity securities of listed company 73,282 - - 73,282
Investment in equity securities of non-listed company 139,687 139,687



30. Commitments and contingent liabilities
30.1 As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had deposit at a financial institution guaranteed contingent
labilities from letter of guarantee to Thailand Post Co., Ltd. Metropolitan Electricity Authority and Office of the Consumer
Protection Board Baht 0.62 million.
30.2 Other commitments
The company has unused credit facilities with 3 banks as follows.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2022 2021 2022 2021
Bank overdrafts 112,000 112,000 110,000 110,000
Promissory note 65,000 65,000 65,000 65,000
Letter of credit for purchasing goods and material 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Letter of guarantee from bank 1,376 1,376 1,376 1,376
Total 198,376 198,376 196,376 196,376

31. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements have been approved to be issued by the Company’s Board of Directors On February 21, 2023.
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ATTACHMENT

Attachment 1

Details of directors, executives, controlling persons, persons assigned to take the highest responsibility in
accounting and finance, the person assigned to take direct responsibility for accounting supervision, and the

company’s secretary.

Personal Information of Company Directors and Executive Members (as at December 31, 2022)

m Company Directors

Family . .
Name Surname / Position | Age Education and Shag:t?lcc)jmg rel:rt.rl%;sgmp ot Bpetenes
Appointment date (Year)  Training Gourse (%)  Director and Period Position Company Business Type
Executive
Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 76 | Bachelor Degree 0.33% - None - Others Listed Company - None -
- Chairman - Political Science, (Ownership)
- Corporate Governance and Ramkhamhaeng thers Non - List mpan
Sustainability Chairman University - None -
- Nomination Committee
- Remuneration Committee Director Training
12 November 1976 Program
- DCP 32/2003
&> Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 3 places

o Holding any position in the

past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 52 | Master Degree 3.05% Sister of Others Listed Company
- i i - i i) | Mr.Thitipoom
MiEizglng) Bliesier ¢ B0 Business (Ownership) | '~ watana | 2021 - Present | Director Sun Vending Food & Drink
- Risk Management Administration ) Technology PLC. | Vending
Committee Chairman Marketing, Niece of Mrs. Machine
- Nomination Committee Sasin Graduate Tipaporn
Chairman Institute of Chokwatana’s| 1999 - Present | Director People’s Garment | Garment
- Remuneration Committee Business Spouse PLG. Manufacturer/
1 July 2008 Administration DIsiilBuiar
Chulalongkorn 1999 - Present | Director S&J International | Cosmetic
University Enterprises PLC. Manufacturer
. - thers Non - List mpan:
Director Training
Program 2020 - Present | Chairman Amatissimo Co., Bread & Bakery
-DCP 51/2004 Ltd Distributor
- DAP 3/2003 2009 - Present | Managing BSTD 109 Co.,, Ltd. Investment
Director
2003 - Present | Director Hlanpu Co., Ltd Investment
© Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 8 places
> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana 77 | Bachelor Degree - - None - thers List mpan
- Remuneration Committee - Bachelor of -
@haimman Mechanical 2019 - 2022 | Chairman Thanulux PLC. Apparels
- Nomination Committee Engineering, Chiba
6 May 1987 University, Japan 2007 - 2019 Director Saha Pathana Inter Investment
- Holding PLC.
Director Trainin 2004 - 2021 Director 1.C.C. International Easgion
Program PLC. lro .UCtS
Distributor
- DOP 68/2005 1976 - P t | Chai TPCS PLC Textil
- DAP 3/2003 - Presen airman . extile
Manufacturer
1973 - Present | Chairman Thai Wacoal PLC. \Underwear
Others Non - Listed Company
2015 - Present | Chairman Erawan Textile Co., Spinning
Ltd Weaving Thread
1995 - Present | Chairman SSDC (Tigertex)  Fabric & Thread
Co., Ltd Dyeing
Manufacturer

(>3 Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 12 places
© Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
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Family
f f i Working Experience
Name Surname / Position | Age Education and Sha;:t?gimg relg:%%r:]?m
Appointment date Year, Training Course .
o (Year) < (%)  Director and Period Position Company Business Type
Executive
Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana 76 | Bachelor Degree 4.97%  Spouse of Mrs. — TR
- Director - Political Science, (Ownership ~ Teerada - : : -
27 April 2010 Ramkhamhaeng 0.039% Ambhanwong’s 1995 - Present Vice Chairman |S&J Intgrnanonal Cosmetic
o Uncle Enterprises PLC  Manufacturer
University Spouse "
o) an i
4.74%) M Thitipoom thers Non - List mpan:
Secretary Chokwatana’s 2015 - Present Director Ruamissara Hotel - Resort
- Pitman London Uncle Development
Co., Ltd
Director Training 2015 - Present |Director United Asset Gardening
Program Development Landscape
Co., Ltd
- DCP 68/2005
- DAP 3/2003 2013 - Present Director Torfun Estate Real Estate
Co., Ltd Business
2011 - Present |Vice Chairman | Torfun Property Real Estate
Co., Ltd Business
2011 - Present |Director Ruamissara Real Estate
Development Business
Co., Ltd
2009 - Present |Vice Chairman | S&J International  |Sourcing RM PK
(UK) OEM
2004 - Present Director B.K.C. International Goods
Marketing Co., Ltd Distributor
2001 - Present |Vice Chairman | Makeup Technic  Cosmetic
International Distributor
Co., Ltd
2000 - Present (Chairman EPF. Co., Ltd Cosmetic
Distributor
1997 - Present |Chairman T-WAY Co., Ltd Sales & Services
1991 - Present |Director Better Way Cosmetic
(Thailand) Co., Ltd Distributor
1990 - Present Director Better Leasing Car Rental
Co., Ltd
1990 - Present |Director Cake & Bakery Cake & Bakery
Co., Ltd Maker
1987 - Present Vice Chairman | H&B Intertex Co., Textile Goods
Ltd
1986 - Present Chairman Vitayasithi Co., Ltd [Investment
1974 - Present |Chairman International Cosmetic
Laboratories Manufacturer
Corp. Ltd
1972 - Present Director Hoover Industrial ~ Packaging
(Thailand) Co., Ltd Manufacturer
[ Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 5 places
© Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
Mr. Worathep Assavakasem 55 | Bachelor Degree - - None - thers List mpan:
- Director in Science and 2014-2019 | Executive Thai Wacoal PLC.  Garment
23 April 2018 Engineering, .
o . Director Manufacturer
Hosei University (Japan)
Others Non - Listed Company
Director Training 2017 - Present | Managing ML (Thailand) Hair Products
Program Director Co., Ltd Distributor
- None -
> Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 8 places
o Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana 45 | Bachelor Degree 0.58% | Brother of Mrs. Others Listed Company - None -
- Director - Computer Science, Teerada
22 April 2019 Seattle University US.A. Ambhanwong& thers Non - List mpan:
Nephew of Mrs. - None -
Director Training Tipaporn
Program Chokwatana’s
- None - Spouse
2 Holding director position in ventures that are non-isted companies as per core working experience for 7 places
(53 Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
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Family

- Business
Administration,
Chulalongkorn
University
Bachelor Degree
- Accounting,
Chulalongkorn
University

Watanathawanwong

- Audit Committee

- Risk Management Committee
26 April 1999

Certified Public
Accountant
Director Training

Program
- DCP 1/2000

; i ; Working Experience
Name Surname / Position | Age Education and Shaga:t?ghng relgacz)r:]sgmp
Appointment date (Yean)  Training Gourse (%)  Director and Period Position Company Business Type
Executive
Mrs. Watchanee 69 | Master Degree - - None - Others Listed Company - None -

thers Non - List

mpan

- None -

&> Holding director position in
[ Holding any position in the

ventures that are non-listed companies as

per core working experience for 1 places
past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art 75
- Audit Committee

23 April 2013

Master Degree -
- Business
Administration,

Sasin Graduate Institute
Bachelor Degree

- Commerce and
Accountancy,
Chulalongkorn
University

Director Training
Program

- DCP 102/2008
- DAP 35/2005

- None -

thers List mpan:
2005 - Present | Chairman & Lohakit Metal PLC. | Metal
Chairman of Manufacturer
Audit
Committee
2002 - Present | Audit Muramoto Manufacturer of
Committee Electron (Thailand) | Car Parts
Others Non - | isted Company
2006 - Present | Director KPN International | Tea Distributor
Co.,Ltd
1998 - Present | Director Lucky Transport Land
Co.,Ltd Transportation
1991 - Present | Director Jetcharoenchai Wholesaler/
Co.,Ltd Retailer
1990 - Present | Director Bann Suan Nok Accommodation
Resort Co.,Ltd
1990 - Present | Director Issarapab Land
Enterprise Co.,Ltd | Transportation

&> Holding director position in
o Holding any position in the

ventures that are non-listed companies as

per core working experience for 2 places
past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Mr. Knit Kounavudhi 73 | Master Degree -
- Audit Committee - Educational

- Corporate Governance and Management,

Sustainability Committee Lynchburg

27 April 2015 College,Virginia, USA

Bachelor Degree

- Educational
Management

- Visual Arts

- Performing Arts and
Design, Lynchburg
College,Virginia, USA

- None -

Others Listed Company

1996 - 2022 | Domestic True Visions PLC | T.V. Productions
Manufacturing
Consultant
Others Non - | isted Company

- None -

o Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience - None -
& Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Total number of shares held by the Board of Directors is 8.93%
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m Executive Members

) Famil i i
Name Surname / Position | Age | Education and Training Shalr::t?l’dmg relationghip Working Experience
Appointment date (Year) Course (%) among Dire(;tor . ‘ N ‘ .
and Executive Period Position Company  Business Type
Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong | 52 | Master Degree 3.05% Sist'e:r of O e CammpeT
- Managing Director & CEO - Marketing (Ownership)|  Mr.Thitipoom
10 May 2022 Business Administration, Chok\évatana 2021 - Present | Director Sun Vending Food & Drink
Sasin Graduate Institute of Niece of Mrs. Technology Vending
Business Administration Tipaporn PLC. Machine
Chulalongkorn University CAPLTEEIERS 1999 - Present  Director People’s Garment
2D Garment PLC. | Manufacturer/
Director Training Program Distributor
- DCP 51/2004 1999 - Present| Director S&J Cosmetic
- DAP 3/2003 International Manufacturer
Enterprises
PLC.
0 T o
2020 - Present| Chairman Amatissimo Bread &
Co., Ltd. Bakery
Distributor
2552 - Present Managing ~ \BSTD 109 Co., Investment
Director Ltd.
20083 - Present | Director Hlanpu Co., Ltd Investment
£ Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 8 places
©> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
Mr. Worathep Assavakasem 55 | Bachelor Degree 5 - None - thers List mpan
- Director of in Science and Engineering,
Sales Division 5 Hosei University (Japan) 2014 - 2019 | Executive Thai Wacoal Garment
9 November 2022 Director PLC. Manufacturer
Director Training Program 0 Non - Li C
- None -
2017 - Present| Managing M.IL. (Thailand) | Hair Products
Director Co., Ltd Distributor

© Holding director position in ventures that are non-isted companies as per core working experience - None -
2> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom
- Director of Accounting
Finance Division

1 October 2022

57

Bachelor Degree
- Accounting,

Dhurakij Pundit University
CFO Training Program
- Federation of Accounting
Di Training P

- None -

- None -

Others |isted Company - None -

thers Non - List mpan
2020 - Present| Director Amatissimo Bread &Bakery
Co,, Ltd Distributor

© Holding director position in ventures that are non-isted companies as per core working experience - None -

T Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit

- Director of

Office Administration Division
10 May 2022

69

Bachelor Degree
Education,
Chulalongkorn University
Director Training Program
- DCP 73/2006

- FN 28/2006

0.33%
(Ownership)

- None -

Others Listed Company - None -

Others Non - Listed Company

2005 - Present

Director M.LL. (Thailand)

Co., Ltd

Hair Products
Distributor

T> Holding director position in ventures that are non-listed companies as per core working experience - None -
2 Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -
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Shareholding Family Working Experience

Name Surname / Position | Age |  Education and Training Ratio relationship
Appointment date (Year) Course % among Director . » .
(%) and Executive Period Position Company | Business Type
Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D | 52 | Doctorate Degree = - None - Others Listed Company - None -
- Director of - Doctor of Philosophy,
Managing Director office Oregon State University, ers Non - Listed
Others Non - Listed Company

10 May 2022 USA. ers Non - Listed Compan

Master Degree - None -

- Master of Arts, Oregon
State University, US.A.

Bachelor Degree

- Science Program in
Chemistry,
Mahidol University

© Holding director position in ventures that are non-isted companies as per core working experience - None -
T Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul 51 | Secretary & Commerce = - None - thers List mpany - None -
- Director of - Convent of the Holy Infant
Jesus

Cosmetic Marketing Division  Strategic Management Others Non - Listed Company
1 February 2022 MUX Program - None -

- Marketing Analytics:
Certification Program
by University of Virginia

- Design Thinking:
Implementation the Process
by PMI and NASBA

- Coaching Skills for Leader
and Manager by PMI
and NASBA

- Fundamentals of
Branding MUX Program

- Mini MBA Program

© Holding director position in ventures that are non-isted companies as per core working experience - None -
> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Total number of shares held by executive members is 3.38%

Report on Securities Holding of Directors and Executives in 2021 and 2022

Company Directors

Name Total Number of Shares Held (Shares) Incrﬁ:ass;/lD?;:;ase 0.cC. Shareholding

31 December 2021 31 December 2022 (Shares) Ratio

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 200,000 200,000 - 0.33%

Spouse and Minor Children = 5 - ;

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 1,831,325 1,831,325 - 3.05%

Spouse and Minor Children = - - _

Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana - = . _

Spouse and Minor Children = - - _

Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana 135,000 135,000 - 0.23%

Spouse and Minor Children 2,844,335 2,844,335 - 4.74%

Mr. Worathep Assavakasem - - - -

Spouse and Minor Children - - : -
Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana 349,450 349,450 - 0.58%
Spouse and Minor Children = = - -

Mrs. Watchanee Watanathawanwong - = - -

Spouse and Minor Children - - - -

Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art - = - -

Spouse and Minor Children - = - -
Mr. Knit Kounavudhi = = - -

Spouse and Minor Children - = . -
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Executives

Name

Total Number of Shares Held (Shares)

31 December 2021 31 December 2022

Increase/
Decrease
Fiscal (Shares)

O.C.C.
Shareholding Ratio

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong

1,831,325 1,831,325

3.05%

Spouse and Minor Children

Mr. Worathep Assavakasem

Spouse and Minor Children

Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom

Spouse and Minor Children

Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit

196,790 196,790

Spouse and Minor Children

Pattara Pathumarak, Ph.D

Spouse and Minor Children

Ms. Naiyana Penvutikul

Spouse and Minor Children

Position of Directors in Subsidiary or Associated Company

Company

Position of Directors

Mr. Manu
Leelanuwattana

Mrs.Teerada
Ambhanwong

Mrs.Kanchana
Saisiriporn

Mr.Worathep
Assavakasem

Mrs.Tipaporn
Chokwatana

Mr.Thitipoom
Chokwatana

Subsidiary: Amatissimo Co., Ltd.

A

Associated Company:

Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd

Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co.,Ltd

ML (Thailand) Co., Ltd

EPF. Co, Ltd.

International Commercial Coordination
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.

|.C.C. International PLC

Thanulux PLC.

Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd

International Laboratories Co., Ltd

S&J International Enterprises PLC.

Bangkok Tokyo Sock Co., Ltd

Thai Gunze Co., Ltd

Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co. Ltd

Saha Capital Tower Co., Ltd.

D

Notes: A = Chairman

B = Vice Chairman

C = Managing Director

D = Director

Qualifications of the person taking the highest responsibility in finance and accounting

The Company has appointed Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom, Director of Accounting-Finance Division, to be the person taking
the highest responsibility in finance and accounting (CFO). Mrs. Jarunee Jaisue, Manager of Accounting-Finance Division, was
appointed to be the Company’s Chief Accountant under the Accounting Act BE. 2543 by having duty to prepare the financial
statements and disclose complete and accurate information of the Company.
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Name Education Shareholding Company Secretary Training Course

Ratio
Chief Financial Officer Bachelor Degree - * TLCA CFO CPD Seminar by Thai Listed Companies Association
Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom | - Accounting, - No. 3/2022 PDPA for Accounting and Finance
Age 57 Years Faculty of Accounting, - No. 5/2022 Restructuring Business for Growth
Dhurakij Pundit University - No. 6/2022 The Role of the CFO in Sustainability

- No. 7/2022 Introduction to Sustainable Finance

« Digital asset by Chorborsor

« Value Added Tax by Chorborsor

* TFRS for PAEs by NYC Management Co., Ltd.

* Preparation and Accurate Cost Accounting Records for
Accountants by Dharmniti Seminar and Training Co., Ltd.

= To know all of new 2022 Laws and Future Trend by NYC
Management Co., Ltd.

» To know how to prevent, to get how to resolve tax disputes
by Tax and Business Law Consultant

> Family relationship between directors and executives - None -
= Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Chief Accountant Bachelor Degree - + Reading Financial Statement and Financial Statement

Mrs. Jarunee Jaisue - Accounting, « Analysis with Financial Ratio by DBMT Co., Ltd.

Age 40 Years Faculty of Social Sciences + Value Added Tax by Chorborsor
Srinakharinwirot University « Ethics and Non-Publicly Accountable Entities by Department of
(Prasarnmit) Business Development Ministry of Commerce

* Update 2021 Tax Year by Chorborsor

> Family relationship between directors and executives - None -
> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

mpan ret.

The Board of Directors’ Meeting No. 3/2551 held on May 14, 2008 resolved to approve the appointment
of Mrs. Choopan Imthong, the Legal Section Manager, to be the Company Secretary. She has roles, duties and
responsibilities as defined in Section 89/15 and 89/16 of the Securities and Exchange Act (Issued 4) B.E. 2551
and other applicable law to be complied by the objective, the Company’s Articles of Association, resolutions of the
Board of Directors’ meetings and the shareholders’ meetings with responsibilities, caution and integrity. In performing
this legal duty, the Company Secretary has the following responsibilities:

1. Preparing and keeping the following documents:

a. register of directors;
b. a notice calling a director meeting, minute of the meeting of the board of directors and an annual report
of the company; and
c. anotice calling a shareholder meeting and minutes of the shareholders’ meeting
2. Keeping a report on interest filed by a director or an executive and submit a copy of report of interest under Section
89/14 to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chairman of the Audit Committee to acknowledge within
seven business days from the date on which the Company receives such reports;
3. Performing any other acts as specified in the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

In addition, Company Secretary has duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and to support the good governance

practice as follows:

1. To provide preliminary advice to the directors and executives relating to relevant law, rules and regulations required
by the directors and executives to practice for the Company’s benefit by monitoring the practice consistently with
accuracy, including the report of significant change of law’s definition.

2. To convene the meetings for the shareholders and the Board of Directors stipulated in accordance with the laws,
the Company’s Articles of Association and other related practices.

3. To record the minutes of the meetings of shareholders and the Board of Directors, including to follow up the
coordination to practice in compliance with the resolutions of the meetings of shareholders and the Board of Directors
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4. To supervise the disclosure of inside information and IT report with the part that has responsibility to the units that
supervise the registered companies which are in compliance with the rules and regulations of the authorities, as
well as other relevant laws.

5. To conduct the orientation for providing advice to the newly appointed directors.

To supervise the performance of the Board of Directors and the executives.

7. To communicate with the general shareholders to receive information of the Company and relevant rights of the

shareholders.

8. To perform any other duties as assigned by the Company.

Company Secretary Information
Name Education Shareholding Company Secretary Training Course
Ratio
Mrs. Choopan Imthong Master Degree - - Company Secretary Program No. 1/2002
Age 53 Years - Corporate Governance, by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
Faculty of Commerce and - Company Secretary Development Program
Accountancy, No.12/2005 by Thai Listed Companies Association

Chulalongkorn University Basic Law Enforcement Training and rules related to Thai Listed

Bachelor Degree
- Faculty of Law,

Companies Association 4/2010

Anti-Corruption: The Practical Guide ACPG 8/2014

by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

- Role of Company Secretary in enhancing CG Anti - Corruption
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Ensure readiness with confidence prior to the effectiveness of
PDPA by SEC

Company Secretary Forum 2022 “Company Secretary

Ramkhamhaeng University

Challenges in Building Trust in the Boardroom”
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

= Family relationship between directors and executives - None -
> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company - None -

Attachment 2

Details of the Directors of Subsidiaries

Details of the Directors of idiari
O.C.C. Public Company Limited has 1 subsidiary namely; Amatissimo Company Limited

0.C.C. Public Company Limited has 1 subsidiary namely;
Amatissimo Company Limited

1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Position Chairman
2. Mr. Phiriyarat Jirasinkitti Position Managing Director
8, Mrs. Pathra Thongchaom Position Director

Attachment 3

Details of the Directors of Subsidiaries

Detial of H f Internal Audit Offi

The Audit Committee agreed to appoint Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan to be the Head of Internal Audit Office,
based on her academic qualification and experience related to internal audit operations, as deemed appropriate to
perform such duties extremely.
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The Internal Audit Office has a direct reporting line to the Audit Committee and in accordance with the Charter of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Consideration and approval of appointment, removal and transfer of the Head of
Internal Audit Office must be approved by the Audit Committee.

Details of the Head of the Internal Audit Office

Name Education Shareholding Internal Audit Training Course
Ratio
Mrs. Natchanok Bachelor Degree - - Role, Duty, Responsibility and Internal Audit Process
Ueasiriphan - Accounting - Internal Audit Report Writing
Age 46 Years Faculty of Business - Operational Audit
Administration - Assessing Business Risk : The Gateway to Value-Added
Kasetsart University Results
- COSO Internal Control Framework
- Auditor-in-charge Tools and Techniques

Head of Compliance

The Company does not appoint the Head of the Compliance of the Company in direct, but it has assigned
the legal department to take responsibility and supervise the operations of the Company to comply with relevant law,
regulations, criteria and requirements from relevant authorities.

Attachment 4

Assets for business undertaking and details of asset appraisal

Assets used in Business Operations

Type/Characteristic of Assets Forms of Ownership Values Obligation
1. 1 land plot in Nakon Pathom province , with total ,
) Ownership 1,908,150 None
areas of 2 rais
2. 9 land plots with concrete fence in Bangkok, with ,
Ownership 309,895,881 None

total areas of 3 rais 2 ngans 53 square wah

Lease period is 8 years

3. 1 land plot located in Bangpongpang sub-district | Termination period is 6 years 9 15,396,986 None
months
4. Other Assets Ownership 60,038,034 None

Details of Asset Appraisal
In 2021, the Company conducted its land appraisal as follows:
1. 9 land plots with total areas of 3 rais 2 ngans 53 square wah (or 1,453.0 square wah) , book value is Baht 298.86
million, market value is Baht 385.05 million
Asset Location: next to Rama 3 Road (near Rama 9 Bridge) in Bangpongpang sub-district, Yannawa district, Bangkok
2. 1 land plot with total areas of 2 rais (or 800 square wah), book value is Baht 1.91 million, market value is Baht 2.56
million
Asset Location: next to the Soi (without a name), Leab Khlong Yong Road, approx. 530 Meter away from Khlong Yong,
Tumbon Khlong Yong, Amphor Phutthamonthon, Nakon Pathom Province
Appraiser: Modern Property Consultants Co., Ltd.
Objective of Appraisal: to record the book value.
Date on Asset Appraisal Report: 3 and 4 November, 202 1
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Attachment 5

Good Corporate Governance Code

The Board of Directors has created the handbook of "Good Corporate Governance Code Revised Code CG No.2" to be
complied with Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies 2017, for the Company’s directors, executives and employees
to acknowledge and implement them as guild lines to perform their works as comprised of:

e The Good Corporate Governance Policy

* The 8 Good Corporate Governance Principles

* The Business Ethics

e The Code of Conduct for Directors, Executive Officers, and Employees
rporat vernance Poli

The Board of Directors is confident that a proper, transparent, and accountable governance system has been put in place,
along with checks and balances and an adequate and appropriate internal control. Alongside these mechanisms is due respect for
shareholders’ rights and equality, as well as accountability for all stakeholders. These key factors contribute to the enhancement
of the Company’s immunity and to the promotion of balanced and sustainable long-term growth.

The Board of Directors thereby prescribes the following Good Corporate Governance Policy as practical guidelines for all
directors, executive officers, and employees.

1. All directors, executive officers, and employees shall be fully committed to the application of the Corporate Governance

Code, Business Ethics, and Code of Conduct for Company Directors, Executive Officers, and Employees.

2. All directors, executive officers, and employees shall perform their duties responsibly, prudently, earnestly, and honestly

in accordance with relevant laws, Articles of Association, and notifications.

3. Action shall be taken to ensure that the Company’s management structure contains clear prescriptions of powers,

duties, and responsibilities of each committee and executive officer.

4. There shall be a suitable internal control system and an appropriate risk management system, as well as an accurate

and reliable accounting system and financial statements.

5. Information shall be disclosed in a sufficient, reliable, and timely manner to the extent that legitimate interests of the

Company are not prejudiced.

o

Shareholders’ ownership rights shall be appreciated and respected. Shareholders shall be treated equitably.
7. Undertakings shall have regard to the Company’s responsibilities towards its shareholders, stakeholders, communities,
society, and the environment.

8. All shall strive towards business excellence with commitment to customer satisfaction created by being attentive and
conducting self-assessment to enhance management capabilities and continually promote productive creativity.
9. Virtue, ethics, and good values shall be instilled. Employees shall be treated fairly with a commitment to develop and
enhance their capabilities.
10. Dishonest conduct, corruption, and intellectual property violation shall be suppressed. Laws and human rights shall
be respected.
11. Conflicts of interest shall be dealt with prudently and reasonably with due regard to the Company’s interests.
rporat vernance Principl
Principle 1 The Board of Directors shall be aware of its leadership roles and responsibilities in the creation of the Company’s
sustainable prosperity.

The Board shall place a great deal of importance on its awareness of its roles and responsibilities as leaders of the Company
and as caretakers of shareholders’ and stakeholders’ interests. To this end, the Board shall establish both present and long-term
business strategies and directions. The Board shall also ensure the transparency of the Company’s operations as added value
on the road towards sustainability.

Principle 1.1
The Board shall determine the Company’s vision and mission statements, which steer directors, executive officers, and employees
towards the same goals. The vision and mission statements shall be annually reviewed.
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Guidelines

1.

The Board shall determine the Company’s vision and mission statements, objectives, targets, strategies,
operationalpolicies, and budgets. Board members shall freely express their opinions while conducting an annual
workshop with senior management to establish directions for the Company.

2. The Board shall review company objectives and targets annually to ensure that executive officers are able to execute
their plans according to the Company’s directions and strategies.
3. The Board shall grant executive officers the freedom to express their opinions and hold discussions to establish the
framework of the Company’s directions and prepare for events of economic significance.
4. The Board shall offer management-related advice, suggestions, and guidelines, which will be used to establish clear
plans and in the allocation of major resources to ensure the achievement of objectives.
5. The Board shall communicate company policies, goals, and directions to everyone in the Company in the following
manners:
- To executive officers via meetings; and
- To employees via meetings and internal communication.
6. The Board shall monitor and assess the Company’s performance. In this regard, management shall be tasked with
preparing and presenting a performance report to the Board at least once every quarter.
Principle 1.2
The Board plays an important role in driving forward all aspects of the Company’s organizational culture by supporting and

encouraging good corporate governance, competitiveness, and desirable profitability. To this end, the Board shall consider long-

term effects, ethical business practices, respect for and responsibility towards shareholders and stakeholders, benefits to society,

ecofriendly developments, the minimization of environmental impact, and the ability to cope with change, all of which creates

long-term value for the Company.

Guidelines
1.

While evaluating the Company’s performance, the Board shall consider not only its financial results but also other
factors, such as the Company’s ethical conduct and environmental impact, by reviewing and approving the proposed
environmental management and corporate social responsibility policies.

The Board shall play a leading role in creating and driving forward a steadfast organizational culture of ethical conduct.
As leaders, board members shall serve as role models and set an example of compliance with good corporate
governance principles.

The Board shall provide in writing policies and guidelines of good corporate governance, business ethics, and code
of conduct, applicable to all directors, executive officers, and employees.

The Board shall oversee communication to all directors, executive officers, and employees to ensure their understanding
of good corporate governance. The Board shall also make certain that adequate mechanisms have been put in place
for regular monitoring, reviewing, and reporting of their compliance with the Company’s policies and guidelines.
Due to constantly changing factors, the Board shall always monitor current news and events, especially economic
conditions and other crises that may affect the Company’s performance. Strategies and revenue targets shall be
established in accordance with the Company’s risk appetites and tolerances. The Board shall promote risk management
as an integral aspect of the Company’s organizational culture and supports the adequate management of risks that
may hinder the achievement of the Company’s objectives and strategies. The Risk Management Committee shall
oversee matters of risk management.

Principle 1.3

The Board shall oversee that all directors, executive officers, and employees perform their fiduciary duties responsibly and prudently,

and that the Company operates in accordance with applicable laws, Articles of Association, related notifications, and resolutions

passed at general meetings of shareholders.

Guidelines
1.
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The Board shall ensure that all directors and executive officers perform their fiduciary duties responsibly and prudently,
pursuant to applicable laws, rules, and regulations.



2. The Board shall provide adequate systems and mechanisms to ensure that the Company complies with applicable
laws, Articles of Association, related naotifications, and resolutions passed at general meetings of shareholders, as well
as established policies and guidelines. In addition, any major transaction shall be approved through a due process
pursuant to the rules of law.

Principle 1.4
The Board shall demonstrate a thorough understanding of the scope of its powers, duties, and responsibilities. The Board shall
clearly define the roles and responsibilities of the President and management, as well as ensure that the President and manage-
ment properly perform their duties.

idelin

1. The Board shall appoint committees to oversee specific matters and report back to the Board.

2. The Board shall provide charters for itself and for each of the committees, by which the roles and responsibilities
of directors are defined. These charters shall serve as points of reference for every director. Each charter shall be
reviewed at least annually.

3. The Board shall assign duties and responsibilities to management, as well as monitor its performance, including

1) reports on operating results and assigned tasks;
2) the scope of powers, duties, and responsibilities of the President; and
3) annual review of the executive authority or approval process handbook.
Principle 2: The Board of Directors shall define the Company’s objectives to ensure sustainability.
Principle 2.1
The Board shall define or oversee that the Company’s long-term objectives promote sustainability by creating value for the Com-
pany itself, in extension to its customers, stakeholders, and society at large.
idelin

1. The Board shall oversee that the Company has clearly defined and suitable long-term objectives that support its
business model. The Board shall ensure company-wide communication of these objectives to drive everyone in the
same direction by establishing the vision and mission statements, as well as organizational values, that reflect good
corporate governance.

2. The Board shall develop a business model for sustainable value creation for the Company itself, its stakeholders, and
society, taking into consideration the following factors:

1) the Company’s ecosystem, including changes to business conditions and opportunities, and the Company’s
effective use of innovation and technology;

2) the needs of its customers and stakeholders; and

3) its available competitiveness, skillfulness and opportunity/risk of business.

3. The Board shall oversee that the Company’s long-term objectives are communicated to and instilled in the mind of

all levels of personnel, engraining them as part of the organizational culture.
Principle 2.2
The Board shall ensure that the Company’s annual and/or medium-term objectives, targets, and strategies are consistent with its
long-term objectives, and that the Company uses innovation and technology safely and effectively.
Guidelines

1. The Board shall ensure that the Company’s annual objectives and plans are aligned with its long-term objectives with
due regard to its business environment, opportunities, and risk appetite. The Board shall arrange the Company’s
objectives and strategies to be annually reviewed.

2. The Board shall make certain that the Company’s strategies and plans take into account the business environment
and risk factors that may affect its stakeholders throughout the supply chain, including factors that may affect the
achievement of the Company’s long-term objectives. To this end, the Board shall

1) clearly define the method, process, and channel by which stakeholders may engage or communicate with the
Company, enabling the Company to identify the interests of each stakeholder group accurately or as close as
possible;
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2) identify internal and external stakeholders; and

3) identify stakeholders’ expectations in order to analyze potential impacts on the Company and on the stakeholders
themselves. These shall be ranked in order of importance and dealt with accordingly.

The Board shall encourage innovation and promote the use of innovation and technology to enhance competitiveness

and to respond to stakeholders’ expectations without compromising its social and environmental responsibilities.

While in the process of approving financial and non-financial targets, the Board shall take into account the Company’s

business environment and potential while ensuring compliance with good corporate governance.

The Board shall make certain that the Company’s annual objectives, targets, and plans are thoroughly communicated

to everyone throughout the organization.

The Board shall ensure the proper allocation of resources and see to the effective control of operations, as well as
monitor the progress of operations according to the annual plan.

Principle 3 The Board of Directors shall strengthen its effectiveness.

Principle 3.1
The Board of Directors shall be responsible for determining and reviewing its own structure, in terms of the size, composition, and

number of independent directors that is suitable and needed to bring about the achieverment of the Company's long-term objectives.

Guidelines

1.

The Board of Directors shall be diverse in terms of qualifications, such as skills, professional experiences, and specialized
traits that will benefit the Company. Directors may be of any gender as long as they possess all the legally required
qualifications. In addition, there shall be at least one non-executive director with experience and competence in the
Company’s main business or industry.

The appropriate number of directors shall be determined by the Board itself, provided that the Board is able to
function effectively. It shall comprise at least five (5) directors, depending on the Company’s size, type, and business
complexity.

The ratio between executive and non-executive directors shall support proper checks and balances. The majority of
the Board shall be non-executive directors, who shall exercise objective and independent judgement on the work of
management. The number and qualifications of independent directors shall meet the requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board shall afford independent directors the
ability to work efficiently with the rest of the directors and to exercise objective and independent judgement.

The Board shall explicitly disclose its board diversity policy and details of its members, including directors’ age,
gender, education, experiences, shareholding percentage, years of service as directors, and directorships at other
listed companies in annual reports and on the Company’s website.

Principle 3.2
The Board shall select a suitable member as its Chairman, as well as oversee that its composition and exercise of power allow

the Board to objectively and independently exercise judgement on corporate affairs.

Guidelines
1.
2.
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The Board shall not require that the Chairman be an independent director.
The Chairman’s roles and responsibilities shall be distinct and separate from those of the President to establish effective
checks and balances of power:
1) The Chairman shall be responsible for leading the Board of Directors. The Chairman’s duties shall at least include
the following matters:
(1) Chairing any general meeting of shareholders;
(2) Chairing any board meeting;
(3) Casting the deciding vote to break a tie;
(4) Calling board meetings and establishing meeting agenda in tandem with the President, in which important
matters shall be included;
(5) Overseeing, monitoring, and ensuring that the Board efficiently carries out its duties;
(6) Ensuring that all directors contribute to the Company’s ethical culture and good corporate governance;



(7) Allocating sufficient time for management to propose topics and for directors to debate important matters
thoroughly; Encouraging directors to exercise prudence and express their opinions freely; and
(8) Promoting constructive relations between executive and non-executive directors, and between the Board
and management.
2) The President’s roles and responsibilities shall be determined by the Board.

3. Should the Chairman and the President be the same person, the following measures shall apply:

1) In the event of a conflict of interest, the Chairman or President shall be barred from the meeting and have no
right to vote on that particular agenda item.

2) The Vice Chairman shall chair the meeting in his or her stead. If the post is vacant or the Vice Chairman is unable
to serve in this capacity, the Board shall elect a director to chair the meeting for the time being.

4. There shall be no term limit for independent directors; however, if an independent director has already served nine
(9) consecutive years since his or her first appointment to the post, the Board shall reasonably evaluate the necessity
of his or her continued directorship.

5. The Board shall appoint committees to oversee specific matters, to filter information, and to recommend action for
board approval.

6. The Board shall disclose the roles and responsibilities of the Board itself and of its committees, the number of meetings,
and the number of directors in attendance over the course of the year. The Board shall also report the performance
of each committee.

Principle 3.3
The Board of Directors shall ensure that the selection and nomination of directors be transparent, resulting in the desired board
composition.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall establish a Nomination Committee.
2. The Nomination Committee shall meet to determine the nomination criteria and process to ensure that elected board
members possess the appropriate qualifications, knowledge, and expertise.
3. The Board shall afford shareholders the opportunity to nominate directorial candidates.
Principle 3.4
When proposing directors’ remuneration to a shareholder meeting for approval, the Board shall consider whether the remuneration
structure is appropriate for the directors’ respective roles and responsibilities, reflects their individual and company performance,
and provide incentives for the Board to lead the Company to achieve its short- and long-term objectives.
idelin
1. The Board shall appoint a Remuneration Committee.
2. The remuneration of the Board shall reflect each member’s accountability and responsibilities, in addition to being
comparable to the practice of other companies in the industry.
3. The structure and rate of the Board’s remuneration, as well as other benefits, shall require shareholders’ approval.
4. The Board shall disclose its remuneration policy and criteria that reflect the duties and responsibilities of each individual.
Principle 3.5
The Board shall ensure that all directors serve responsibly and that they allocate sufficient time for their role as board members.
idelin
1. The Board shall provide a director handbook to empower its members with an understanding of their roles and
responsibilities.
The Board shall publicly disclose its members’ posts at other companies.
In the event that a director of the Company serves as a director or executive officer at or have a direct or indirect
stake in another entity that creates a conflict of interest with the Company, or is able to use insider information or
take advantage of the Company’s opportunity for his or her own benefit, it shall be reported to the Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of Audit Committee for acknowledgement.
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4. Each director shall attend no less than 75 percent of all board meetings in any given fiscal year, unless necessity
demands otherwise.

5. Believing that each director’s business expertise and capabilities are not restricted by the number of companies in
which he or she currently serves, the Company shall not establish any regulation on board members' directorships
at other listed companies.

Principle 3.6

The Board shall ensure that the Company’s governance framework and policies appropriately extend to and are accepted by
subsidiaries and other businesses in which it has a significant investment.

Guidelines

1. The Board shall consider and establish a subsidiary’s governance policies, including:

1) The appointment of a director, executive officer, or another authoritative post to a subsidiary. The senior executive
team of the investing Company shall consider a director or an executive officer from within the group who possess
the knowledge, ability, and expertise in the subsidiary’s business to represent the Company as an investor or in
compliance with the jointventure agreement.

2) The scope of duties and responsibilities of the position in 1). The Board shall also have the representative to
oversee that the subsidiary’s operations comply with its own policies. If the subsidiary has other investors, the
Board shall require the Company’s appointed representative to perform his or her role in the subsidiary’s in the
best interest of the subsidiary while maintaining compliance with the Company’s policies.

3) The suitability and adequacy of the subsidiary’s internal control, along with the conformity with relevant laws and
regulations of all transactions.

4) The disclosure of the subsidiary’s financial information, operating results, related party transactions, acquisition
and disposition of assets, other important transactions, capital increases or decreases, termination, etc.

2. For any significant investment in a business, the Board shall make certain that the shareholders’ agreement or another
agreement in place clearly defines the Company’s ability to manage the subsidiary’s affairs, partake in major decisions,
and monitor the subsidiary’s performance, which will enable the Company to prepare its financial statements in a
timely manner and in conformity with relevant standards.

Principle 3.7
The Board shall conduct a formal annual performance evaluation of itself and its committees. The evaluation results shall be used
1o strengthen their future performance.

idelin

1. The performance of the Board and its committees shall be evaluated at least once a year.

2. The Board shall disclose performance evaluation results, whether as a whole or as individuals, in the corresponding
annual report.

3. The Board shall use evaluation results to improve its and its committees’ performance.

Principle 3.8

The Board shall ensure that each of its member understand his or her roles and responsibilities, the nature of the business, the
Company’s operations, and relevant laws. The Board shall encourage all directors to regularly bolster any skills and knowledge
necessary for their posts.

Guidelines

1. A newly appointed director shall undergo orientation, which includes the following:

- Any information that may benefit his or her directorial role;

- Business directions (objectives, target, vision, mission, and organizational values); and

- Roles and responsibilities, as well as directorial remunerations and other benefits.

2. Directors shall regularly receive the necessary training, any of which shall be disclosed in the corresponding annual
report.

3. The Board shall possess the knowledge and understanding of relevant laws, regulations, standards, risks, and
business-related environment. The Board shall always stay up to date on such information.
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Principle 3.9
The Board shall ensure the effectiveness of its performance and have access the necessary information. The Board shall appoint

a person with the desired qualifications, knowledge, skills, and experience to support the Board as “Company Secretary”.

idelin

1.

Board meetings shall be scheduled in advance to afford each director sufficient time to arrange to attend.

The Board shall meet at least six (6) times per fiscal year.

The Board shall provide a mechanism that allows each board member and management to propose relevant topics
to be included on the meeting agenda.

The Board shall oversee that relevant meeting documents be sent to each director at least seven (7) business days
before the meeting.

The Board shall encourage the President and other executive officers to attend board meetings to present additional
information and details on matters for which they are directly responsible.

The Board shall be able to request additional information from the President, Company Secretary, or a designated
executive officer within the framework of the established policy. If necessary, the Board shall be able to seek inde-
pendent professional advice, the expenses for which shall be absorbed by the Company.

Non-executive directors shall be able to meet, as many times as necessary, among themselves without management
to debate their concerns and report the outcome of their meeting to the President.

The Board shall appoint a Company Secretary with duties pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act and provide
any training and education relevant to his or her ability to serve in this capacity.

Principle 4 The Board of Directors shall nominate and develop senior executive officers and ensure good people management.

Principle 4.1
The Board shall afford a proper mechanism for the nomination and development of president and senior executive officers, making

certain that they possess the knowledge, skills, experience, and characteristics necessary for the Company to achieve its objectives.

idelin

1. The Board shall nominate or assign the Nomination Committee to nominate a candidate with the desired qualifications

for the post of the President.

The Board shall task the President with overseeing the suitability of senior executive officers.

The Board shall ensure business continuity. To this end, succession plans shall be developed for the posts of the
President and other senior executive officers. The implementation of these plans shall be reported to the Board at
least once a year.

4. The Board shall encourage the President and other senior executive officers to continuously undergo any training
relevant to their roles.

5. The Board shall require the President and other senior executive officers to report their directorships or executive posts
at any other company to the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of Audit Committee through the Company
Secretary.

Principle 4.2

The Board shall ensure that an appropriate compensation structure and performance evaluation are in place.

Guidelines
1.

The Board shall establish the President's compensation structure:

- Shortterm benefits, such as monthly salaries, bonus, and pension, based on the Company’s performance and
the President’s performance evaluation.

- Long-term benefits, such as contribution to the Provident Fund, retirement compensation, and ESOP.

The Board shall assign the Chairman or the Chairman of Executive Board to communicate the following evaluation

results to the President:

- The year’s performance evaluated against the year’s objectives and the previous year’s performance

- The Company’s financial liquidity and economic condition in comparison with other businesses in the same sector.

The Board shall task the President with evaluating senior executive officers and other personnel in accordance with

the predetermined performance evaluation criteria.
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Principle 4.3
The Board shall consider the Company’s shareholding structure and relationships with its shareholders, which may affect its
management and operation.
idelin
1. The Company shall not have a shareholders’ agreement that hinders the duties of the Board.
Principle 4.4
The Board shall monitor the management and development of the Company’s human resources to ensure that the Company
has adequate staffing and appropriately knowledgeable, skilled, experienced, and motivation employees.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall task the Executive Board with the supervision of human-resource management. The following matters
shall be reported to the Board at least once a year:
- Company structure and appropriate remunerations; and
- Talent development and retention plans.
2. The Board shall see to the establishment of a provident fund to make certain that the Company’s employees will have
sufficient savings to support their retirement.
Principle 5 The Board of Directors shall nurture innovations and responsible business practices.

Principle 5.1
The Board shall prize and encourage innovations that create value for the business together with benefits for its customers, other

stakeholders, society, and the environment.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall attach importance to an organizational culture of innovation that creates value or sets a standard for
products, services, or work processes. Innovations of this nature shall be incorporated into the Company’s strategies
and guidelines.
2. The Board shall encourage further development of a business innovation, subject to the current business environment.
The Board shall also endeavor to improve the production and work process, in addition to jointly developing innovations
with the Company’s partners, to increase the Company’s competitiveness.

Principle 5.2

The Board shall ensure that management operates the Company’s business with due regard to corporate social and environmental
responsibility and without infringing upon the rights of any stakeholder. These efforts will allow every department to contribute to
the achievement of objectives and targets in a sustainable manner, which is reflected in the operational plan.

Guidelines

1. The Board shall recognize and respect the rights of its various groups of stakeholders. Pursuant to the rules of law
or to any agreements made with the Company, the Board shall ensure the protection of stakeholders’ rights and
that all stakeholders be treated equitably. In this regard, the Board shall devise policies to serve as guidelines for the
treatment towards each group of stakeholders and shall take into account the interests of communities and society,
benefits to the environment, sustainable development, anti-corruption efforts, intellectual property protection, and
respect for fundamental human rights.

2. The Board shall support the preparation of the corporate social responsibility report, which shall be included in the
annual report.

3. The Board shall afford all groups of stakeholders a channel and process by which they may submit a report or
compliant about a matter that may result in damage to the Company, the accuracy of financial reports, or unequitable
treatment.

4. The Board shall devise a whistleblower protection policy or set of guidelines, it's matters that may cause damage to
the company or unfair, which shall appear in the Business Ethics and the Code of Conduct for Directors, Executive
Officers, and Employees.

312



Principle 5.3
To bring about sustainability, the Board shall monitor that resources are efficiently and effectively managed with due regard to
the impact of such management and to resource development throughout the supply chain.

idelin

1. The Company’s operations shall conform to the rules of law, regulations, and environmental policies, taking into
consideration its impact on natural resources and the environment. Operations shall have its performance reviewed
and evaluated regularly.

2. Participation in environmental management, environmental accountability, and efficient and sustainable use of resources
shall become part of the organizational culture. An awareness of these topics shall be instilled in the mind of all
employees.

3. Environmental education and training shall be provided to all employees.

4. A comprehensive environmental management system shall be encouraged, including economical use of resources,
treatment and rehabilitation of resources exploited, replenishment of resources, and sustainable environmental watch
and impact prevention.

5. A mechanism shall be put in place to allow the Company to select eco-friendly trading partners in the supply chain.

6. The Company shall support the development and distribution of eco-friendly technology.

Principle 5.4
The Board shall make use of information technology to augment business opportunities and to further develop the Company’s
operations, which will bring about the achievement of the Company’s objectives and targets.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall ensure sufficient information technology resources for operations.
2. The Board shall develop an information technology security policy and measures.
Principle 6 The Board of Directors shall provide an adequate system of risk management and internal control.
The Board shall ensure that the Company has effective and appropriate risk management and internal control systems that comply
with applicable laws and standards.
idelin
1. The Board shall educate its members about major risks to the business.
2. The Board shall task the Risk Management Committee with the following:
- Establishing the Company’s risk management policy and system;
- Promoting risk management as an integral part of the Company’s organizational culture;
- Providing the appropriate level of risk management with a particular emphasis on early warning signs; and
- Overseeing, monitoring, and evaluating risk management performance.
3. The Board shall establish Internal Audit as an internal department. Internal Audit shall report to the Audit Committee
on the following matters:
- The adequacy of the Company’s internal control; and
- Reviewing and devising internal control measures with a particular emphasis on any significant anomalies
Principle 6.2
The Board shall establish an Audit Committee, who shall perform its tasks effectively and independently.
idelin

1. The Board shall establish an Audit Committee that comprises at least three (3) directors, all of whom shall be
independent directors with required qualifications pursuant to applicable legal requirements promulgated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

2. The Board shall provide a charter for the Audit Committee, in which the directors’ term in office and scope of duties
and responsibilities are clearly defined.
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Principle 6.3
The Board shall establish a policy to manage and monitor conflicts of interest that might occur among the Company,
directors, management, and shareholders. The policy shall include measures to prevent the inappropriate use of corporate assets,
information, and opportunities, as well as inappropriate transactions by related parties.
idelin

1. The Board shall provide an information security system, which includes policies and procedures on the confidentiality,
integrity, and availability of such information, as well as market-sensitive information. The Board shall oversee compliance
by any directors, senior executive officers, employees, and outsiders with access to such information.

2. The Board shall manage and monitor any transaction with a potential conflict of interest, as well as provide guidelines
and procedures to make certain that such a transaction will be made in conformity with the legally prescribed procedure
and information disclosure requirements in the best interest of the Company and the majority of the shareholders.
Any party with a vested interest in a particular transaction shall be excluded from the decision.

3. The Board shall require all directors to report their personal stake in a particular agenda item that will constitute a
conflict of interest before the commencing the consideration of the item. Such a report shall be recorded in the
minutes. The director(s) in question shall be excused from the meeting for the time being and shall cast no vote on
that agenda item.

Principle 6.4

The Board shall adhere to anti-corruption laws and devise its own anti-corruption policy and procedures. The policy shall be made
known to all within the Company and to outsiders as well.

Guidelines

1. The Board shall provide in writing an anti-corruption handbook and anti-corruption regulations. All directors, executive
officers, and employees shall abide by the handbook and regulations. The Board shall also support activities that
promote and instill an awareness of the relevant laws, rules, and regulations in the mind of all directors, executive
officers, and employees.

2. The Board shall disclose to the public its anti-corruption policy and whistleblower channel on the Company’s website
and annual report.

Principle 6.5
The Board shall provide a mechanism for handling complaints and whistleblowing.
idelin

1. Instructions on how to handle complaint submissions shall be included in the Code of Conduct for Directors, Executive
Officers, and Employees.

2. Inthe event that a submission entails matters of corruption, it shall be subject to the procedures in the Anti-Corruption
Policy.

Principle 7 The Board of Directors shall ensure information disclosure and financial integrity.

Principle 7.1

The Board shall ensure the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting system and that timely and accurate disclosure of all
material information regarding the Company is made consistent with applicable requirements.

Guidelines

1. The Board shall ensure that any person involved in the preparation and disclosure of any information of the Company,
including the President, the Chief Financial Officer, accountants, internal auditors, Company Secretary, Investor Relations
Officers, including related relevant staffing, has relevant knowledge, skills and experience, and that sufficient resources,
are allocated.

Regarding information disclosures, the Board shall include a report on its financial reporting accountability.

The Board shall oversee that information disclosures, including financial statements, annual reports, and Form 56-
1, sufficiently reflect the Company’s financial status and performance. The Board shall promote the inclusion of
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) in quarterly or annual financial reports.

4. Any disclosure of information about the Company’s directors and executive officers shall be in conformity with the
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand, as well as other relevant laws.
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Principle 7.2
The Board shall monitor the Company’s financial liquidity and solvency.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall ensure that management regularly monitors, evaluates, and reports on the Company’s financial status.
Upon the earliest signs of problems, the Board and management shall work together to find solutions as quickly as
possible.
2. The Board shall ensure that it does not consciously approve any transactions or propose any transactions for
shareholders’ approval that could negatively affect business continuity, financial liquidity, and solvency.
Principle 7.3
In the event of financial difficulties, the Board shall ensure that the Company has a mitigation plan or mechanism in place.
Stakeholders’ rights shall always be taken into consideration.
idelin
1. The Company operates prudently and in conformity with information disclosure requirements. In the event of financial
difficulties, the Board shall monitor the situation closely.
2. The Board shall ensure that the Company has sound financial mitigation plans that consider stakeholders’ and creditors’
rights. The Board shall diligently monitor the mitigation process through regular reports from management.
3. The Board shall ensure that any mitigatory action taken is reasonable.
Principle 7.4
The Board of Directors shall make certain of appropriate sustainability reporting.
idelin
1. The Board shall consider the appropriateness of the Company’s information disclosure on its legal compliance; ethical
business practices; code of conduct for directors, executive officers, and employees; anti-corruption policy; treatment
of employees and other stakeholders, including equitable treatment and respect for human rights; and social and
environmental responsibilities. Such disclosure shall be aligned with national or international reporting standards. For
instance, the Company may disclose these types of information in the annual report.
2. The Board shall ensure that the information disclosed is important and reflects corporate practices that will bring about
sustainable value creation.
Principle 7.5
The Board shall oversee managements establishment of a dedicated Investor Relations department or officer, who shall be
responsible for suitable, equitable, and timely communication with shareholders, stakeholders, investors, analysts, and the media.
idelin
1. The Board shall assign the President or a related person, who thoroughly understands the Company’s business, to
disclose information to and communicate with external entities via appropriate channels.
2. The Board shall oversee that management establishes a dedicated Investor Relations department or officer.
Principle 7.6
The Board shall encourage the use of information technology to disseminate information.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall afford information disclosures in Thai and English via the Stock Exchange of Thailand and on the
Company’s website.
Principle 8 The Board shall encourage engagement and communication with shareholders.
Principle 8.1
The Board shall afford shareholders the opportunity to participate in the decision-making process involving significant corporate
matters.
Guidelines
1. The Board shall recognize and respect the ownership rights of shareholders and shall not act in any manner to violate
or deprive shareholders of these rights. The Board shall justly serve as caretakers of shareholders’ interests and shall
encourage shareholders, whether they be majority or minority or institutional shareholders from Thailand or overseas,
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to exercise their rights, including their basic rights as shareholders, their right to access sufficient information in a timely
manner, and their right to attend any shareholder meeting during which corporate directions and major decisions are
made.

The Board shall ensure that the agenda of any general meeting of shareholders comply with the Company’s Articles
of Association and relevant laws. Explanations and reasons shall accompany each agenda item in the meeting notice.
The Board shall afford minority shareholders an opportunity to propose an agenda item and/or nominate a directorial
candidate to be elected at a general meeting of shareholders.

The Board shall allow shareholders to submit questions prior to the meeting.

The Board shall ensure that the notice of a general meeting of shareholders and related documents contain complete
and correct information and be made available in both Thai and English on the Company’s website at least 30 days
before the meeting.

The Board shall encourage all shareholders to exercise their rights. The notice of a general meeting of shareholders
and related documents in both Thai and English shall be delivered to them in advance to afford them sufficient time
for consideration.

The Board shall treat every shareholder equitably. Every share of the same type has the same voting right, which is
one share per vote.

The Board shall allow shareholders who are unable to attend a shareholder meeting in person to assign a proxy to
attend and vote on their behalf. The Board shall facilitate the process by using a proxy statement form that allows
shareholders to specify their votes in advance and by nominating at least one independent director as a proxy choice
for shareholders.

Principle 8.2
The Board shall ensure that shareholder meetings are held properly, transparently, and efficiently, and that all shareholders are

able to exercise their rights.

idelin

A DD

The Board shall consider shareholders’ interests before setting a meeting’s date, time, and place.

The Board shall ensure that no action is taken to limit shareholders’ attendance.

The Board shall use information technology to facilitate shareholder meetings

The Board shall adhere to the following shareholder meeting regulations:

1) The Chairman of the Board shall preside over a shareholder meeting.

2) No agenda items shall be added without prior notice.

3) Directors, committee chairpersons, the Chief Financial Officer, and other relevant executive officers are required
to attend shareholder meetings.

4) The number and ratio of shareholders attending in person to shareholders attending via proxies, meeting
procedures, voting instructions, and vote-counting process shall be made known to the meeting before its
commencement.

5) Each director shall be individually elected by shareholder votes.
6) The authority to approve directors’ remuneration shall lie with shareholders

7) Ballots shall be used for voting, and there shall be independent withesses during the vote counting process.

Principle 8.3
The Board shall ensure accurate and complete disclosure of shareholder resolutions and preparation of the minutes of any
shareholder meeting.

idelin

1.
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The Board shall disclose shareholder resolutions and voting results of each agenda through the designated channel
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and on the Company’s website by the next business day.

The Board shall oversee that the minutes of a shareholder meeting include the following: meeting and voting instructions;
names of directors, committee members, and executive officers present and absent; each agenda item’s voting result;
and every question and answer. The minutes shall be made available on the Company’s website.



3. The Board shall ensure that the minutes of every shareholder meeting is submitted to the Stock Exchange of Thailand
within 14 days from the meeting date and to the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce, within
the legally required period.

Business Ethics
1. Responsibility Towards Stakeholders

It is the Board’s policy to promote cooperation between the Company and its stakeholders to strengthen the Company’s
performance. To this end, the Board shall promote engagement and be vigilant of stakeholders’ interests pursuant to their legal
rights. The Company’s stakeholders are, namely, its shareholders, customers, trade partners, competitors, debtors, employees,
local communities and society, the environment, and the government.

1) Shareholders
The Board of Directors shall perform its duties responsibly, prudently, earnestly, and honestly to generate continuous,

sustainable, and good returns on investment for shareholders. In this regard, the Board shall adopt the following policies and
practical guidelines:

1. The Board shall respect shareholders’ ownership rights and shall treat shareholders equitably.

2. Operations shall be undertaken in accordance with the principles of good corporate governance, which will foster
the trust and confidence of shareholders and lead to sustainable growth.

3. The Board shall see to the advancement of the Company’s businesses to ensure proper returns on investment
for shareholders.

4. Significant information that affects or may affect shareholders’ interests shall be disclosed, whether in periodic
accounting reports or ad-hoc reports, pursuant to the relevant laws and notifications. No action shall be taken to
restrict shareholders’ access to the Company’s information.

A report on the Board’s accountability for financial statements shall be included in each year’s annual report.
Minority shareholders shall be given an opportunity to propose matters for inclusion in the meeting agenda and/
or to nominate directorial candidates to be elected at an annual general meeting of shareholders.

Shareholders shall be granted an opportunity to submit questions relevant to the meeting in advance.

8. Shareholder meeting notices in both Thai and English shall be published on the Company’s website at least 30
days prior to the meeting date to enable shareholders to arrange to be in attendance and to study the information.

9. Shareholders’ convenience shall be ensured. The meeting’s date, time, venue, and procedure shall not limit
shareholders’ attendance. Shareholders unable to attend in person shall be able to assign a proxy to attend and
vote on their behalf.

10. Conflicts of interest shall be dealt with prudently and rationally. Information about any conflict of interest shall be
fully disclosed.

11. The Company’s interests and assets shall be safeguarded as a reasonable person would safeguard his or her
property. Wrongful interests, whether obtained by direct or indirect means, shall be eliminated.

2) Customers
Understanding that customer satisfaction and confidence are critical factors that contribute to the Company’s sustainable

success, the Board of Directors shall adopt the following policies and guidelines:

1. The Company shall manufacture and distribute products and services that are environmentally friendly and safe
for consumers.

2. The Company’s businesses shall be operated with commitment to developing goods and services, introducing
innovations, and adding value to goods and services in order to continuously meet customer demand, along with
the disclosure of critical information needed for decision-making without concealment or distortion of facts.

3. The Company’s businesses shall be operated in an honest, earnest, and just manner. No action shall be taken to
violate customers’ rights. Moreover, consumer data shall be treated with confidentiality and shall not be wrongfully
exploited for personal gain or the benefit of a related person.

4. The Company shall never demand, receive, or consent to the direct or indirect receipt of any property or other
dishonest benefit from a customer.
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3)

5. The Company shall adhere to trade agreements. Whenever adherence is not possible, customers shall promptly
be notified in order to jointly find a remedial measure and to prevent losses.

6. The Company shall provide communication channels by which customers are able to file complaints to the
Company. Complaints shall be processed with care and dealt with fairly.

Partners

The Board of Directors shall treat trading partners equitably and take into account mutual interests. In this regard, the

Board shall adopt the following policies and practical guidelines:

4)

1.

The Company shall put a system in place to select environmentally friendly trading partners in the supply chain
whose operations comply with relevant laws, as well as safety and occupational hygiene standards. Business
partners shall be treated on the basis of fair competition, equality, and mutual respect.

Trading partners’ secrets or information shall be treated with confidentiality and shall not be wrongfully exploited
for personal gain or the benefit of a related person.
The Company shall build good relations and understanding with trade partners, which will serve as the basis
for knowledge exchange. The development and creation of value added to goods and services shall be jointly
undertaken to promote mutual growth.
The Company shall adhere to trade agreements and provide accurate information. In the event that a violation
is inevitable, the Company shall expeditiously engage in negotiations with trading partners in order to reach a
mutual solution and prevent losses.
The Company shall not demand, receive, or consent to the receipt of any property or other benefit outside trade
agreements.

mpetitor:

The Board of Directors shall ensure that the Company operates its businesses in accordance with the legal provisions.

In this regard, the Board shall adopt the following policies and practical guidelines:

9)

6)

1.

The Company shall conduct its businesses within the rules of fair competition with due regard to business ethics
and trade competition laws of various countries in which the Company operates.

2. The Company shall not damage the reputation of its business competitors.
Creditors

The Board of Directors shall make certain that the Company operates in a principled and disciplined manner in order
to build trust among creditors. In this regard, the Board shall adopt the following policies and practical guidelines:

1.

ok~ N

All creditors shall be treated equitably.

Contracts and terms shall be strictly adhered to.

Operations shall be administered to ensure creditors’ confidence in the Company’s financial standing and credit rating.
Financial standing shall be accurately and timely disclosed.

In the event of an inability to comply with a particular term, the creditor shall be forthwith notified in order to reach
a mutual solution and prevent losses.

Employees
Regarding employees as a valuable resource and a key factor in the Company’s success, the Board of Directors shall

adopt the following policies and guidelines:
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1.

Employees’ human dignity and fundamental rights shall be respected at work. Employee data or confidential
information shall not be disclosed or transmitted to third parties or unrelated persons.

Employees shall be treated in accordance with the provisions of law, regulations, and articles governing the
Company’s operations

Employment equality shall be promoted. There shall be no discrimination on the basis of gender, skin color, race,
religion, age, disability, or any other status that is not directly related to work.

Training and knowledge exchange shall be sponsored and promoted to encourage learning and skill development
throughout employment; The Company shall seek to strengthen employees’ career security and offer opportunities
for advancement pursuant to each person’s potential.



Employees’ participation in the determination of the Company’s direction and development shall be promoted.
Fair compensation shall be offered, subject to employees” knowledge, skills, duties, responsibilities, and performance.
Appropriate welfare and benefits shall be given to employees, e.g. medical expenses, provident fund contribution,
and a savings cooperative.

Channels shall be provided for employees to communicate suggestions and complaints pertaining to work. Al
suggestions shall be considered, and remedies shall be determined in the best interest of all parties and with
regard to good professional relations.

Facilities necessary for operations shall be provided. Working conditions shall be maintained with due regard to
health, safety, and occupational hygiene as a means to promote and raise employees’ quality of life.

10. Employees of all levels shall be encouraged to participate in corporate social responsibility activities.

7)

mmuni n i

The Board of Directors shall operate the Company’s businesses with due regard to the duties and responsibilities

owed to the nation, community, and society, as well as local traditions, in order to maintain social order. In this regard, the Board
shall adopt the following policies and practical guidelines:

1.

No oA

A business that could lead to social degradation shall not be undertaken, and the rights of any person in the
community and society shall not be violated.

The consciousness of responsibilities towards the community and society as a whole shall always be instilled for
the benefit of the Company and all of its employees.

Measures shall be provided for the prevention and remedy of any negative impact on the community and society
caused by the Company’s operations.

The preservation of local culture and traditions shall be promoted.

The Company shall cooperate with various agencies for community development.

Activities that benefit the public shall be sponsored.

Income shall be locally distributed through the employment of community members and the use of community
products.

Good relations shall be fostered between the Company and the community and society on the basis of propriety,
transparency, and faimess.

8) Environment

The Board of Directors shall undertake businesses with due regard to the Company’s responsibilities towards the
environment. In this regard, the Board shall adopt the following policies and practical guidelines:

1.

6.

Businesses shall be undertaken in accordance with laws, regulations, and policies on the environment with due
regard to the impact on natural resources and the environment. Regular revision and assessment of the Company’s
environmental performance shall be performed.

Organizational culture and consciousness of all employees shall be promoted to encourage cooperation and
responsibility for the efficient and sustainable management of the environment and utilization of resources.
Knowledge promotion and environmental training shall be extended to employees.

An environmental management system shall be promoted, including economical use of resources, treatment
and rehabilitation of resources exploited, replenishment of resources, and sustainable environmental watch and
impact prevention.

There shall be a system in place for selecting trade partners in the supply chain who operate in an environmentally
friendly manner.

Environmentally friendly technology shall be developed and applied whenever possible.

9) State Sector
To make sure that the Company operates in conformity with the rules and regulations enacted by the State, the Board

of Directors shall adopt the following policies and guidelines.

1.

The laws governing operations shall be studied and understood. Meanwhile, no activities that would violate the
letters of the law shall be undergone.
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Legal compliance shall be assured when conducting a transaction with any state official or agency.
Good relations between the Company and the state sector shall be fostered so long as they are within proper
boundaries.
4. The Board shall comp999ly with the relevant laws and business traditions in a particular country or locality.
2. Conflict of Interest

To deal with conflicts of interest, the Board shall adopt the following guidelines:

1. Conflicts of interest or connected transactions shall be administered prudently, fairly, and rationally. There shall be a
transparent system for approving transactions that takes into account the Company’s best interests. Directors with a
vested interest in a particular matter shall not have the right to vote on it and shall be required to make a full disclosure
in accordance with the rules of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand.

2. The Company’s interests shall be upheld, subject to legality. No action that would constitute a conflict of interest with
the Company shall be taken. In addition, no special benefits or privileges shall be given to any person.

3. Directors and executive officers shall be required to disclose their and related persons’ interests in accordance with
the prescribed rules.

4. Directors, executive officers, and employees with insider information shall be prohibited from trading Company’s
securities during the 1-month period prior to public disclosure of the Company’s financial statements and 24 hours,
after the Company’s financial statements disclosure.

5. Directors, executive officers, as well as their spouses and underage children, shall have the duty to report their holding
of the Company’s securities and any changes to their holding to the Board of Directors in the subsequent board
meeting.

6. Company information or secrets acquired or acknowledged shall not be disclosed or transmitted to third parties or
unrelated persons.

7. Any information disclosure shall be made by authorized employees. Classes of confidentiality may be prescribed in
accordance with the significance of the information. Disclosure shall be made within the assigned scope of duties
and responsibilities.

8. Directors and senior executive officers shall be required to inform the Chairman about their trading of the Company’s
securities at least one (1) day before the trading date.

3. Receiving or Giving a Meal or Gift

While the Board of Directors aspires to operate within the framework of fair competition, it understands that receiving or
giving a meal or gift is sometimes a necessary customary practice that fosters good relations. In this regard, the Board shall adopt
the following guidelines:

1. A gift, token, or meal that may influence a decision shall always be prohibited. If it is customary to give or to receive
a gift, token, or meal whose value is in excess of normal practices, a report shall be filed to the respective supervisor.

2. In the case of an assignment or authorization by a supervisor to assist with an external agency, a sum of money, an
object, or a gift may be received in accordance with the applicable rules or standards prescribed by that external
agency, e.g. gifts, presents, and lucky draw prizes.

3. In the case where an agent, contractual party, partner, or any other person wishes to offer a gift, token, or meal in
the name of the Company, prior authorization from the Company shall always be required.

4. Expenses pertaining to these matters shall be maintained within a reasonable budget.

4. Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Efforts

It is the Board of Directors’ policy to comply with anti-corruption laws. In this regard, the Board shall adopt the following

guidelines:

1. Create consciousness, values, attitudes for employees in performing their duties according to the law, rules with
integrity.

2. An efficient and effective internal control system shall be put in place. There shall be suitable supervision and a system
of checks and balances to prevent employees from being involved in fraud and corruption.
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Directors, executive officers, and employees shall be prohibited from performing any act that amounts to a demand or
acceptance of any property or any other benefit, whether for themselves or for others, as an inducement to wrongfully
perform or refrain from performing a duty or to act in a way that could result in a loss to the Company’s legitimate benefits.
Directors, executive officers, and employees shall be prohibited from giving or offering to give any property or any
other benefits to third parties to induce such persons to unlawfully or wrongfully perform or refrain from an act.
There shall be a transparent and accurate financial reporting system.

There shall be a channel for employees and related persons to provide notices of causes for suspicion with confidence
of protection. Personnel shall be appointed to examine all notices of suspicion given.

5. Non-Infringement of Intellectual Property

Pursuant to the Non-Infringement of Intellectual Property Policy, the Board shall adopt the following guidelines.
Business undertakings shall be consistent with laws, regulations, and contractual obligations governing intellectual
property rights.

Intellectual property works of the Company shall be safeguarded. Such intellectual property shall not be used or
allowed to be used by outsiders without authorization.

The intellectual property rights of others shall be respected. The works of others shall not be infringed upon or applied
to personal use except when a license has been obtained or a fee paid to the owner of the work.

Intellectual property of creative works produced by employees shall belong to the Company. Upon termination of
employment, such intellectual property works must be returned to the Company regardless of the form in which it is
stored.

6. Non-Violation of Human Rights

With a great deal of respect for human rights, the Board of Directors shall adopt the following policies and guidelines:

1.
2.

There shall be no activities or support for activities that violate human rights.

Employees shall be provided with knowledge and understanding of human rights, which shall be applied to their
respective functions.

There shall be no limitations to independence or differences in ideology, gender, race, religion, politics, or other
matters. Nonetheless, expressing an opinion that could cause conflicts or divisions shall be best avoided.

Channels shall be provided for employees or persons who believe that their personal rights have been violated or that
they have been treated unfairly to file a complaint with to Company. Such complaints shall be heeded and processed
fairly.

7. Occupational Safety and Health

Attaching importance to occupational safety and health, the Board of Directors shall adopt the following guidelines:

1.

4.

Business undertakings shall comply with safe and healthy work environment laws, regulations, and policies with due
regard to the safety of life and property, as well as to the impact on the health of employees, trading partners, and
stakeholders. Regular monitoring and safety assessment shall be conducted.

Occupational safety shall be promoted. Work regulations, procedures, and standards shall be prescribed according
to the level of risk. The safety of the working condition, work environment, and work procedures shall be improved.
Protective tools and equipment shall be provided to employees.

Preparations shall be made for emergency events. An emergency plan shall be devised. Regular drills and improvements
shall be carried out to prevent and minimize any loss of life or property of the Company, employees, trading partners,
and related persons.

A safe workplace culture shall be fostered for the entire organization to ensure sustainable and safe operations.

Code of Conduct for Directors, Executive Officers, and Employees

1. Formal Responsibilities

Recognizing the importance of good governance, the Board of Directors has continuously ensured that directors, executive

officers, and employees are aware of and comply with its principles under the framework of the Code of Conduct, and that they

act in an honest, cautious, and prudent manner in the best interest of the Company and all related parties. Therefore, the following
Code of Conduct shall be implemented:
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Directors and Executive Officers

1.

Employees

Directors and executive officers shall perform their duties responsibly, prudently, honestly, in good faith, and in
compliance with the law, Articles of Association, relevant notifications, and shareholders meeting resolution;
Directors and executive officers shall perform their duties to the best of their ability in the best interest of the Company,
including attending at all meetings, except when necessity demands otherwise;

Directors and executive officers shall serve in their capacity impartially, and shall not vote on matters in which they
have a vested interest during a meeting;

Directors and executive officers shall mitigate conflicts of interests prudently and reasonably in the Company’s best
interest, ensuring transparent management;

Directors and executive officers, including their spouses and underage children, shall comply with the relevant rules on
the acquisition or disposal of the Company’s assets and disclose the matter to the Board of Director at the subsequent
board meeting;

Directors and executive officers shall be prohibited from trading the Company’s securities within the 1-month period
before and the 24-hour period after the public disclosure of financial statements.

Directors and executive officers shall disclose their and related persons’ interests in accordance with the prescribed
rules.

Directors and senior executive officers shall be required to inform the Chairman about their trading of the Company’s
securities at least one (1) day before the trading date.

The Board of Directors’ performance shall be assessed every year.

Employees shall support and participate in the Company’s operations on a regular basis. They shall perform their
duties to the best of their ability to bring about prosperity and advancements to the Company and fellow employees.
Employees shall comply with relevant laws, policies, working regulation, relevant regulations, and notifications.
Employees shall offer courteousness, hospitality, and excellent service to any of the Company visitors in order to
maintain the Company’s image and reputation.

Employees shall keep trade secrets confidential and not disclose insider information to outsiders.

Employees shall not obtain any loan from the Company’s customers, persons connected to customers, or business
counterparts, except for loans obtained from a bank or financial institution.

Employees shall comply with lawful commands of their supervisors.

Employees shall be committed to teamwork, mutual assistance, harmony, and mutual respect for the benefit of the
Company and fellow employees.

Employees shall treat co-workers with generosity and good human relations. No groundless allegations shall be
made against others. Credit shall not be claimed for the works of others.

Employees shall perform their duties with determination, in earnest, and honestly, and shall not abuse their roles
and responsibilities in the Company for wrongful personal gain or unlawful benefits to others.

10.Employees shall perform their duties responsibly, cautiously, and without neglect in such a manner that could cause

a loss to the work or property of the Company.

11. Employees shall conduct themselves as good citizens who comply with the Constitution and relevant laws. Political

rights shall be exercised appropriately. Employees shall also avoid any involvement in an activity that is unlawful or
inconsistent with public order or the good morals of the people.

2. Maintenance of Company Assets

Directors, executive officers, and employees are accountable for efficiently maintaining the Company’s assets and assets

under its care. In this regard, the following guidelines shall be adopted:

1.
2.
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Assets shall be used for business operations and not for personal gain or for the benefit of outsiders.

Interests and assets shall be safeguarded to prevent losses, damage, or wrongful use pursuant to the standards of a
reasonable person caring for his or her property. Direct and indirect wrongful exploitation of benefits shall be eliminated.



Sufficient insurance protection from losses shall be obtained for assets.

4. The use of computers to access another person’s protected system or data, including to spy on, damage, destroy,
modify, change, or corrupt another person’s data in any manner that could be consider a violation of computer-crime
laws, shall be prohibited. An information security system consistent with international standards shall be installed.

5. Email and internet access provided shall be used cautiously for business purposes as to not prejudice the Company’s
reputation.

6. Passwords for access to the Company’s data shall be kept secret and shall not be disclosed to unauthorized persons.
The Company’s intellectual property works shall not be reproduced, adapted, or used for personal benefit or for the
benefit of others without authorization from the Company.

8. Supervisors shall be notified of any finding of any rights infringement or any act that could lead to a rights infringement
or any act that could potentially lead to a dispute relating to the Company’s intellectual property.

9. The safekeeping of important documents of the Company shall be overseen to ensure full compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. Upon the lapse of the safekeeping period, the relevant employee must oversee that the documents
are destroyed by appropriate means.

3. Informants and Complaints

The Board of Directors shall afford employees and stakeholders an opportunity to give information or file a complaint on
a matter that could constitute a violation of the law, or a dishonest or wrongful act of an employee, including irregular behavior
that could cause a problem or loss to the Company. The Company shall also accept complaints on cases where the rights of an
employee or stakeholder has been infringed upon or where they have been treated unfairly. Suitable channels and procedures
shall be provided by the Company in this regard.

The Company shall hear and process all complaints impartially, transparently, and fairly. Systematic and just measures
for the protection of complainants shall be afforded. Information provided by the complainant shall be kept confidential in the
Company.

M res for the Pr ion of Complainan

1) A complainant may choose to remain anonymous if he/she deems that disclosure could lead to insecurity or loss.

2) The Company shall keep relevant information a secret and take into account the safety of the complainant. Measures
shall be prescribed for the protection of complainants who are employees, including those who cooperate in the
investigation of facts. These persons shall be protected from unfair treatment as a consequence of the complaint, e.g.
disturbances during work, reassignment, or termination of employment.

4. Interpretations

Supervisors shall take responsibility for and give advice to their subordinates to ensure knowledge and understanding of,
as well as compliance with, the prescribed Code of Conduct. If the Code of Conduct does not provide a definitive answer for a
particular scenario, or if there remains a question that renders action impossible, or if a decision cannot be made based on the
existing provisions, the respectively higher-level superior shall be consulted. In the case of a conflict, the decision of the President,
Executive Board, and/or Board of Directors shall be final.

Revised CG Code No.2 was approved by resolution of the Board of the Directors Meeting No. 1/2562 held on 13 February,
2019 and became effective on 14 February, 2019 onwards.
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Attachment 6

Report of the Audit Committee

To The Shareholders

The Audit Committee of O.C.C. Public Company Limited, comprises three Independent Directors. All members pos-
sess adequate qualifications as required by the notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the criteria of the Office of
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee has performed its duties and responsibilities in accordance with
its charter and performs its duties as delegated by the Board of Directors. The report of the Audit Committee Meeting shall
be reported to the Board of Directors’ Meeting as a regular agenda. The Company Secretary serves as secretary to the Audit
Committee.

In 2022, the Audit Committee convened a total of 12 meetings with attendance by the Management on appropriate
agenda. There were 7 meetings with the Board of Directors and 1 meeting with the Non-Executive Board.

Meeting Statistics

iy Audit Committee Board of Non-executive
Name Position i

Director Board of

Director
1. Mrs.Watchanee Watanathawanwong Chairman of Audit 12/12 7)7 1/1

Committee

2. MrWanchai Umpueng-art Director 12/12 /7 1/1
3. MrKnit Kounavudhi* Director 11/12 6/7 1/1

*absent from the Audit Committee and Board of Director meeting due to sickness
e The key performance of duties for the 2022 are summarized as follows:

1. Review of Financial Reports

The Audit Committee reviewed quarterly and annually the financial statements and supervised them to be practiced
in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) and to be disclosed with sufficient information. The Company’s
Auditor shall be invited to join the meeting for information acknowledgement, notification and suggestion on the results of review and
the audit of financial statements. The Company’s Auditor has performed duties and expressed opinion independently. In addition, the
Company's performance results had been considered by having meetings with accounting and financial management and Internal
Audit Office every month to acknowledge the report and to consider the clarifications from the management.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the financial statements of the Company were accurate, complete and
in all material respects, in accordance with Accounting Standards and the Financial Reporting Standards.

2. Internal Control System and Internal Audit

The Audit Committee supervised the Company to have adequate and efficient internal control systems based on the
Report of the Internal Audit Office, Report of the Risk Management Committee, Auditor's Report and Internal Control Sufficiency
Evaluation Form by the Board of Directors. The Management reviewed audit results and monitored the correction of deficiencies
of the internal control system as well as to improve audit performance to be more efficient. The Internal Audit Office reported the
results directly to the Audit Committee, taking into consideration an annual audit plan, budget and the personnel of the Internal
Audit Office, as well as to assess and supervise the Chief of Internal Audit to have adequate knowledge and experience to perform
duties.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company’s internal control was adequate and appropriate for its
business conditions.

3. Risk Management Assessment

The Audit Committee supervised the Company to continuously develop the risk management system in accordance
with the COSO Framework by assessing various aspects covering the entire organization, especially on the assessment of corruption
risk. As well as to communicate with the Risk Management Committee to understand the significant risk and to connect with
internal control.
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The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company’s risk management system was appropriate by having
risk assessment and risk management to be complied with the Company’s risk acceptance.

4. Related Party Transactions and Transactions which may represent Conflicts of Interest

The Audit Committee reviewed the related party transactions or transactions which may represent conflicts of interest
by expressing opinion independently and jointly considered and approved the connected transactions to be complied with the
Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the Company executed such transactions in compliance with general
business according to the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

5. Transaction deemed as Acquisition and Disposition of Assets

The Audit Committee reviewed and joined to consider an approval of the transaction deemed as acquisition and
disposition of assets, to be in accordance with the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory
Board.

The Audit Committee was of the opinion that the transactions of the Company were at arm’s length normal business
condition, transparency, faimess and was in the Company’s best interest, as well as having accurate and complete disclosure.

6. Supervise the Company to practice in compliance with relevant laws, regulations of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and to practice in compliance with Anti-corruption Policy of the Company

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with relevant laws and Anti-corruption Policy, but did not
find violations of laws, regulations or government requirements including of Anti-corruption Policy of the Company.

7. Consideration and Nomination of the Company’s Auditor for Appointment and Determination of Audit Fees

The Audit Committee considered the independence and qualification of the Company’s Auditor and proposed the
matter to the Board of Directors to consider and seek approval of the meeting of shareholders for appointment of Mrs. Suvimol
Krittayakiern, CPA N0.2982 or Ms. Suphaporn Mangijit CPA No.8 125 or Mr. Nopparoek Pissanuwong CPA No.7764 or Mr. Joompoth
Prairattanakorn CPA No.7645 or Ms. Somjintana Polhirunrat CPA N0.5599 or Mr. Viroj Sajjathamnukul CPA No.5128 from DIA
International Audit Co., Ltd. as the Company’s Auditor for the year 2022.

8. Consideration to approve the Charter of the Board of Directors and Audit Committee Charter 2022 (Revised Version)

9. Consideration to prepare an Annual Budget for the Company

The Audit Committee fully performed its duties in response to the business operations with prudence and independence
in line with those as specified in the Audit Committee Charter. It was of the view that the Company’s business operation complied
with the good corporate governance principles, sufficient risk management with effective and proper internal control system as well
as efficient and independent internal audit system, as well as compliance with anti-corruption measures. The Company’s report on
financial information and operations was correct in compliance with the generally accepted accounting standards and the financial
reporting standards. Adequate disclosure of information was provided, and the business operations complied with applicable laws,
rules and requirements relating to the business operations in all respects, that the Audit Committee found none of fault or significant
deficiencies.

V o
oY C_—
(Mrs. Watchanee Watanathawanwong)

Chairman of the Audit Committee
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